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( CORPORATE PROFILE )

Greenville First Bank, N.A., and its holding company, Greenville First Bancshares, Inc.,
were established in 1999 to create a unique financial service institution for the
Greenville market. Greenville is South Carolina’s largest banking market with over
$7.6 billion in depaosits. Qur bank provides a unique approach to client service. Every
client has a “Relationship Team” which includes a specific loan officer and a consistent

support team responsible for serving every banking need.

We consider exceptional client service a critical part of our culture. Greenville First strives to provide a great
work environment for our staff, a special experience for our clients and a superior return on investment for

our shareholders.

2005 HIGHLIGHTS

» Total assets increased 28% to $405 million » Non-performing assets as a % of gross loans

o . declined from .27% to .14%
» Net earnings increased 25% to $2.5 million

« Loan charge-offs as a % of average loans declined

« Net operating earnings increased 71% to $3.4 million from .12% to .07%

* Retail deposits increased by 36% « Operating efficiency ratio declined to 49%

* Opened our second office, The Parkway @ Thornblade,  « Stock price increased from $19.61 to $24.75
in March 2005 (26% increase)

+ Opened our third office, 2125 Augusta Road, « Market capitalization increased to $65 million

in November 2005
* Added 15 incredibly talented bankers to the
Greenville First team

( OUR MARKET )

Downtown
Greenville

The Parkway @ Thnmhla’
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Greenville First’s reputation as a high-performance growth company was
strengthened with record results last year. As our total assets and net earnings
reached record levels, 2005 was clearly a year in which we demonstrated
our commitment to the future. By opening our first two branch offices and
adding fifteen talented bankers to our team, we have invested in the necessary

infrastructure to ensure the continued growth of your company.

Greenville First’s dedication to provide a superior level of professional service
through a unigue banking model is the cornerstone of our success. Qur
targeted marketing focus and relationship team structure ensures that every
client of our bank receives consistent and highly personalized service. Qur
strategy is executed by the finest banking talent in our market and | am proud

of our team’s growing reputation for financial performance.

2005 Performance Summary

Nt cncome cncreased 25% lo £2 5 millvon.

Greenville First generated a net income of $2.5 million or $0.86 per diluted
share in 2005, a 25% increase over the net income of $2.0 million in 2004.
The significant increase in earnings is due to the strong growth in earning
assets coupled with the growing efficiencies of our banking model. Included
in the net income for 2005 is a one-time non-operating expense of $930
thousand, net of taxes, from an impairment charge related to the market value
on our corporate office building. Excluding the $930 thousand non-operating

expense, the net operating income was $3.4 million, an increase of $1.4

e . $3.444
million or 71.1% from the previous year. —
2005
2004
2003
2002 $ in millions

The impairment charge resulted from the pending relocation of the Haywood
Road retail and corporate offices to a much larger facility on Verdae Boulevard.
Our new facility provides ample infrastructure for future growth and is estimated

to be 30% more cost efficient than our current headquarters building.
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Satal assels increased 28% lo $405 million.

Greenville First continues to be a growth corﬁpany as total assets grew $89.5
million to $405.3 million at year-end. After only six years, Greenville First now
ranks as the 16th largest bank in South Carolina out of approximately 100

$405.3
total banks. ,",\

$315.8

Total Assets

3170.4

2005

2004
$ in millions

2003

& 2002
2001

The primary driving force of our asset growth continues to be the expansion
of our loan portfolio, which had growth of $58.2 million in 2005. Total loans
increased 21% to end the year at $338.5 million. Greenville First’s diligent
focus on credit quality is evident. Non-performing assets declined for the year
and represented .12% of total assets at year-end while net charge-offs were
only .07% of average total loans for 2005. The allowance for foan losses stood
at 1.33% of total loans at year-end and more importantly covered our non-
performing loans by over 9 times. On the funding side, total deposits grew
24% in 2005 to end the year at $254.1 million. Retail deposits grew 36% for

the year and enabled the company to reduce its level of wholesale funding.

reenuille (O/—m[ kel value crncreases lo
cver $65 mllion.

The market value of our company increased over $13.9 million to end the year
at $65.8 million. The stock price increased from $19.61 at December 31, 2004,
to end 2005 at $24.75, a 26% increase. The stock trades on the NASDAQ
National Market under the symbol GVBK.




“We have invested in infrastructure and people, and have developed

a solid strategic plan to enhance shareholder value.”

Art Seaver, President




({ COMMITTED TO THE FUTURE |

Greenville First invests for the future.
Greenville First is dedicated to continue as a high-performance growth
company. We have invested in infrastructure and people, and have developed
a solid strategic plan to enhance shareholder value. Qur excitement about the
future is centered around four specific elements: our model, our management,

our market, and our momentum.

Mode!

Our unique “Client FIRST” model provides significant benefits as our clients
receive superior service from a consistent and professional banker. The model
also enhances financial performance as it drives organic growth in a highly

efficient manner.

While Greenville First opened two new offices and increased our bank team
by 36%, our operating efficiency ratio déclined to less than 50% (excluding
the impact of the non-operating real estate impairment charge). Greenville
First's assets per employee and earnings per employee are significantly
greater than average banks and our efficiency ratio is a testament to the

benefits of our model.

ClicredEIRST

from Greenville First
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“Greenville First has met: and exceeded every expectation we have

e

They have proven to be more than abanktousand

s \

our busmess They are truly\a partner.”
e Matt R/ggs & er H/ggs,AOWne(s




Menagement

Since our inception six years ago, Greenville First has assembled an
outstanding banking team that competes with a passion every day. On
average, our executive team members have worked in the Greenville market

for over twenty years.

While the market becomes more competitive each day, the experience and
market knowledge of our bank team provides a significant competitive
advantage. With Client Officers like Brenda McKay and Pat Harrison, Greenville
First reflects experienced leadership. Since the early planning stages of the
bank, Pat has been a member of the management team. Her insight and
wisdom have been instrumental in our development. Brenda brings forth vast
banking experience within the Greenville market. Both exemplify the concept

of true relationship hanking.
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AMarkel
Greenville is the largest banking market in South Carolina with $7.6
billion in deposits according to the latest FDIC data. Its economy is strong
and diverse and provides an excellent opportunity to expand our Client
FIRST style of banking. While we are proud of the historical growth of
Greenville First, our current market share of 3.1% indicates a tremendous

opportunity for future growth.

%ﬁ@w@[m

One of the most accurate terms to describe Greenville First is momentum.
We enter 2006 with three offices, 54 associates, and a solid growth plan
for the future. The move to our new corporate headquarters building in
2006 will provide additional infrastructure as we aggressively provide our
relationship style of banking in our market. With our unique “Client First”
culture, additional capital, and strategic office expansion, Greenville First is
well positioned to continue growing our market share and enhancing our

financial performance.

Your continued support of Greenville First is greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,
R. Arthur Seaver, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer




“The mogﬁ:&g&%ﬂg&réte headquarters in ‘ZQQf}jvkv_y‘illzr

T

provide additional infrastructure as we aggressively provide .

our relationship éjyle of banking in our market.”

_+ Art Seaver, President
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( LOOKING AHEAD )

in 2006 we will move into new retail and corporate offices, located in the
Verdae Development. Verdae is an 1,100-acre master-planned and mixed-use
development that will feature office sites, retail stores, restaurants, a retirement
center, a public golf course and hotels. Strategically placed in the heart of
Greenville's fastest growing corridor, our new headquarters will double our
office space. Along with our retail offices on Augusta Road and The Parkway
@ Thornblade, our Verdae office will provide a tremendous opportunity to
expand our unigue Glient FIRST level of service to an ever-growing client

base. At Greenville First, we are Committed to the Future.

THE PARKWAY @ THORNBLADE TEAM
Jane Foster, Miranda Breazeale, Pat Harrison and Tiffany Beesley

VERDAE TEAM
Debbie Tucker, Melinda Whitmire, Dianne Long, Kathy King, Karla McCall and Terry Gambrell

AUGUSTA ROAD TEAM
Brenda McKay, Diane Totman, Rebekah Webb, Tami Dinkins, Lisa Perrin and Edith Smith



“The way they do businesg fits us perfectly. A professional, friendly
and proactive team. They work hard to help our business.”
Dr. Kris Uprichard, pr Gordon Bray & Dr RobinD. Wilson
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( FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS )
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2005

2004
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Total Assets
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Total Deposits

Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. & Subsidiary

2005

$ in millions

$254.1
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2005
2004

$ in mittions

December 31, 2005

December 31, 2004

For the Years

Net interest income $ 12,084,682 $ 8,648,143
Provision for ioan 1osses 1,000,000 1,310,000
Naninterest income 825,781 761,463
Noninterest expenses 7,855,380 4,853,295
Net income 2,514,152 2,012,589
Diluted income per share 0.86 0.90

[ At Year End

Total assets

$ 405,312,543

$ 315,811,198

Loans, net 334,040,776 276,630,484
Deposits 254,148,041 204,864,142
Shareholders’ equity 30,472,747 28,078,588
Book value per share 11.46 10.60
Market price per share 24.75 19.61



( GREENVILLE FIRST BOARD OF DIRECTORS )

ROw L.
R. Arthur Seaver, Jr.
James B. Orders, I

ROwW 2:

Anne S. Ellefson
William B. Sturgis
David @G. Ellison

RoOwW 3:

Fred Gilmer, Jr.
Andrew B. Cajka, Jr.
Leighton M. Cubbage
Mark A. Cothran

ROwW 4:
Tee Hooper

Rudolph G. Johnstone, 1




Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. & Subsidiary

( CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS )

December 31, 2005

December 31, 2004

Assets ]
Cash and due from banks $ 6,223,397 $ 3,943,877
Federal funds sold 19,380,755 1,394,459
Investments 36,131,372 29,162,221
Loans 338,530,373 280,347,129
Less allowance for foan losses (4,489,597) (3,716,645)
Net loans 334,040,776 276,630,484
Accrued interest receivable 1,694,648 1,145,810
Property and equipment, net 5,576,882 2,013,995
Other assets 2,264,713 1,520,352

$ 405,312,543

$ 315811,198

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

|

Liabilities
Deposits $ 254,148,041 $ 204,864,142
Official checks outstanding 7,786,468 1,384,480
Advances from FHLB 79,500,000 60,660,000
Other borrowings 28,083,000 19,285,999
Accrued interest payable 1,510,635 620,014
Other 3,811,652 917,975
Total liabilities 374,839,796 287,732,610
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock - -
Common stock 26,597 26,480
Additional paid-in capital 25,626,740 25,546,259
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (l0ss) (150,602) 49,989
Retained earnings 4,970,012 2,455,860
Total shareholders’ equity 30,472,747 28,078,588

$ 405,312,543

$ 315,811,198







( CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME )

Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. & Subsidiary

For the Years Ended

December 31, 2005

December 31, 2004

Interest income

Loans $ 19,930,728 $ 12,975,296
Investments 1,738,817 989,404
Total interest income 21,669,545 13,964,700
Interest expense 9,584,863 5,316,557
Net interest income 12,084,682 8,648,143
Provision for loan losses 1,000,000 1,310,000
Net interest income after”
provision for loan 1osses 11,084,682 7,338,143
Noninterest income A
Loan fee income. 169,876 146,986
Service fees on deposit accounts 251,644 296,100
19 Write-down on real estate owned - (2,725)
Other income 404,261 321,102
Total noninterest income 825,781 761,463
Noninterest expenses
Salaries and benefits 3,340,402 2,497,445
Professional fees 303,986 213,168
Marketing 439,946 292,043
Occupancy 799,267 603,033
Data processing and refated costs 919,379 813,097
Impairment of long lived assets 1,500,000 -
Other 552,400 434,509
Total noninterest expenses 7,855,380 4,853,295
Income before provision for income taxes 4,055,083 3,246,311
income tax expense 1,540,931 1,233,722
Net income $ 2,514,152 $ 2,012,589
Diluted income per share $ 0.86 $ 0.90
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding - diluted 2,930,368 2,239,702
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( REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM }

To The Board of Directors

We have audited, in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December
31, 2005 and 2004, and related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2005 (not
presented herein); and in our report dated February 17, 2006, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements from which it has
been derived.

WM}M,L_LC_

Greenville, South Carolina
February 17, 2006

NON-GAAP MEAsURES This annual report contains financial information determined by methods other
than in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). Management believes these
financial measures provide a clearer understanding of the Company’s financial performance. Reconciliations of
net income and the efficiency ratio on a GAAP basis to an operating basis are provided in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

ComMON Stock Greenville First Bancshares, holding company for Greenville First Bank, N.A., is traded on the
NASDAQ National Market under the symbol GVBK.

ANNUAL REPORT FORM 10-K Acopy of The Greenville First Bancshares, Inc.’s, Annual Report on Form
10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is available at no charge by contacting the Investor
Relations Officer listed below or on the Company’s web site at www.greenvillefirst.com.

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Greenville First Bancshares,
Inc., the holding company for Greenville First Bank, N.A., will be held at the bank’s current corporate
headguarters at 112 Haywood Road, Greenville, South Carolina, on Wednesday, May 17, 2008, at 5:30 PM.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Eiliott Davis LLC | P.O. Box 6286 | Greenville, South Carolina 29606

GENERAL COUNSEL

Nelson Mullins Riley & Scarborough LLP | P.O. Box 10084 | Greenville, South Carolina 29603
TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Sun Trust Bank | P.O. Box 4625 | Atianta, Georgia 30302

INVESTOR RELATIONS OFFICER

James M. Austin, I, EVP and CFO | P.O. Box 17465 | Greenville, South Carolina 29606



( GREENVILLE FIRST OFFICERS )

R. Arttur Seaver, Jr.
4 Presidint
| Chief Executive Officer

| James M. Austin, 11
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

8l Fred Gilmer, NI
“=1 Executive Vice President

Fred Gilmer, Jr.
Senior Vice President

J. Edward Terrell
Executive Vice President

Ezra R. Harris
Chief Credit Officer

Gwen G. Bridges
Senior Vice President

Donald L. Kiser
i Senior Vice President

Richard H. Furman
Senior Vice President

Collin D. Mackie
Senior Vice President

Robert B. Thompsaon, 111
Senior Vice President

Matthew B. Kneeland
Vice President

Lorretta J. Bell
Client Officer

Terry T. Gambrell
Client Officer

Patricia M. Harrison
Client Officer

Kathryn L. King
Client Officer

Dianne E. Long
Client Officer

Brend K. McKay
Client Officer
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
xXJ Annual Report Pursuant To Section 13 Or 15(d) of The Securities Exchange Act Of 1934

~ For The Fiscal Year December 31, 2005.
Or

[] Transition Report Pursuant To Secticn 13 Or 15 (D) Of The Securities Exchange Act Of 1934
For the Transition Period from to !

Commission file number 000-27719

Greenville First Bancshares, Inc.
(Exact narne of registrant as specified in its charter)

South Carolina | 58-2459561
(State of Incorporation) (LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
112 Haywood Road, Greenville, 3C 29607
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
864-679-9000
(Telephone Number)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Common Stock

Title of class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock The NASDAQ National Market

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes[ ] No[X]

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act.
Yes[ ] No[X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes[X] No[ ]

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will
not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in
Part 11T of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrart is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See
definition of “accelerated filer and large accele-ated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer [ ] Accelerated filer [ ] Non-accelerated filer [ X ]

Indicate by check mark whether the retistran is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes[ ] No[X]

The aggregate market value of the voting common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant (computed by reference to the price
at which the common stock was recently sold) was $47,628,098 as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently
completed second fiscal quarter.

2,663,719 shares of the registrant’s common stock were outstanding as of March 27, 2006
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders Part I1I (Portions of Items 10-14)
to be held on May 17, 2006.




CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report contains statements which constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These statements are based on
many assumptions and estimates and are not guarantees of future performance. Our actual results may differ materially
from those projected in any forward-looking statements, as they will depend on many factors about which we are unsure,
including many factors which are beyond our control. The words “may,” “would,” “could,” “will,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” and “estimate,” as well as similar expressions, are meant to identify such
forward-looking statements. Potential ricks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to those described below under
Ttem 1A- Risk Factors and the following:

e significant increases in competitive pressure in the banking and financial services industries;

e changes in the interest rate environment which could reduce anticipated or actual margins;

¢ changes in political conditions or the legislative or regulatory environment;

e general economic conditions, either nationally or regionally and especially in our primary service area,
becoming less favorable than expected resulting in, among other things, a deterioration in credit quality;

¢ changes occurring in business conditions and inflation;

e changes in technology;

¢ changes in monetary and tax policies;

e the level of allowance for loan loss;

e the rate of delinquencies and amounts of charge-offs;

e the rates of loan growth and the lack of seasoning of our loan portfolio;

e adverse changes in asset quality and resulting credit risk-related losses and expenses;

e loss of consumer confidence: and economic disruptions resulting from terrorist activities;

e changes in the securities markets; and

e other risks and uncertainties detailed from time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange

Commission.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

PARTI

Item 1. Business

General A

Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. (the “company”) is a South Carolina corporation that owns all of the capital
stock of Greenville First Bank, N.A. (the “bank™) and all of the stock of Greenville First Statutory Trust I and II
(collectively (the “Trusts”)). The bank is a national bank organized under the laws of the United States located in
Greenville County, South Carolina. The bank is primarily engaged in the business of accepting demand deposits and
savings deposits insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and providing commercial, consumer and
mortgage loans to the general public. 'The Trusts are special purpose subsidiaries organized for the sole purpose of
issuing trust preferred securities.

On October 26, 1999, the company sold 1,100,000 sharés of its common stock at $10 per share and on
November 30, 1999 sold 50,000 additional shares for a total of 1,150,000 shares (1,724,994 after adjustment of 3 for 2
stock split). The offering raised approximately $10.6 million, net of underwriting discounts, commissions and offering
expenses.

On June 26, 2003, the Trust offired and sold $6.0 million of floating rate securities. The company received the
proceeds from the issuance of these securities and has reflected the obligation resulting from the receipt of the proceeds as
junior subordinate debentures in the balarice sheets. The company invested $186,000 in the Trust.

On November 17, 2003, shareholders of record as of November 3, 2003, received one additional share of stock
for every two shares of stock owned prio: to the 3 for 2 stock split. All fractional shares were paid in cash. The earnings
per share amounts for all periods shown Fave been adjusted to reflect the 3 for 2 split.




On September 24, 2004, the company received $14.3 million from the sale of 800,000 common stock at a price
of $17.875. On October 15, 2004, the company’s underwriter exercised its option to purchase an additional 120,000
shares at the same price. The total gross proceeds were approximately $16.4 million. The net proceeds to the company
after offering costs and underwriter’s discount were approximately $14.9 million

On December 22, 2005, the Trust offered and sold $7.0 million of floating rate securities. The company
received the proceeds from the issuance of these securities and has reflected the obligation resulting from the receipt of
the proceeds as junior subordinate debentures in the balance sheets. The company invested $217,000 in'the Trust.

Non-GAAP Financial Information

This Report also contains financial information determined by methods other than in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). Management uses these non-GAAP measures to analyze the Company’s
performance in comparison to prior years. The Company incurred a one-time impairment charge of $1.5 million during
2005 which is discussed further in “Income Statement Review — Noninterest expenses.” Management uses operating
measures, which exclude the impairment charge, in the calculation of certain of the Company’s ratios to analyze on a
consistent basis and over a longer period of time, the performance of which it considers to be its core banking operations.
These disclosures should not be viewed as a substitute for GAAP measures, and furthermore, the Company’s non-GAAP
measures may not necessarily be comparable to non-GAAP performance measures of other companies. (See Item 6.
Selected Financial Data.)-

Marketing Focus

Greenville First Bank commenced operations in January 2000 and at that time was the first community bank
organized in the city of Greenville, South Carolina in over 10 years. During the 1990s, several community banks
operating in the Greenville market were acquired by larger regional financial institutions. We formed Greenville First to
take advantage of market opportunities resulting from this continued consolidation of the financial services industry.
Responding to this opportunity, we created a marketing plan focusing on the professional market in Greenville, including
doctors, dentists, and small business owners. We serve this market with a client-focused structure called relationship
teams, which provides each client with a specific banker contact and support team responsible for all of the client’s
banking needs. The purpose of this structure is to provide a consistent and superior level of professional service, and we
believe it provides us with a distinct competitive advantage. We consider exceptional client service to be a critical part of
our culture, which we refer to as “Client FIRST.” We emphasize this Client FIRST culture in the training that we provide
our employees, and we strive to reflect this Client FIRST culture in all aspects of our business.

Location and Service Area

Our primary market is Greenville County, which is located in the upstate region of South Carolina,
approximately midway between Atlanta and Charlotte on the heavily traveled [-85 business corridor. It is South
Carotina’s most populous county with over 390,000 residents. Greenville is also one of the state’s wealthiest counties,
with average household income of $61,023 in 2004. In the past decade, Greenville County has attracted more than $6
billion in new business investments and 43,000 new jobs and is now considered the “economic engine of South Carolina.”
During the same period, Greenville County was rated first in the United States by Site Selection Magazine for both new
and expanding international firms and, in 2002, was ranked fifth out of America’s top 50 cities for European business
expansion. Greenville was also recognized by Expansion Management Magazine in December 2000 for having the best
worker training program in the United States.

Our primary service area consists of Greenville County, South Carolina. We draw a large percentage of our
business from the central portion of Greenville County, within a ten mile radius of our main office. This principal service
area is bounded by Rutherford Road to the north, Poinsett Highway to the west, Mauldin Road and Butler Road to the
south, and Highway 14 and Batesville Road to the east. Included in this area is the highest per capita income tract in the
county. :

We opened our first branch office, located on The Parkway near Thornblade Country Club in Greenville, on
March 14, 2005 and our second branch office, located in the mature and historic Augusta Road area of Greenville, on
November 4, 2005. We believe that the demographics and growth characteristics of these locations will provide us with
significant opportunities to further develop existing client relationships and expand our client base.




Lending Activities

General. We emphasize a range of lending services, including real estate, commercial, and equity-line consumer
loans to individuals and small- to medium-sized businesses and professional firms that are located in or conduct a
substantial portion of their business in our market area. Our underwriting standards vary for each type of loan, as
described below. Since loans typically provide higher interest yields than other types of interest-earning assets, we invest
a substantial percentage of our earning assets in our:loan portfolio. At December 31, 2005, we had loans of $334.0
million, representing 82.4% of our total assets.

We have focused our lending activities primarily on the professional market in Greenville, including doctors,
dentists, and small business owners. By focusing on this client base and by serving each client with a consistent
relationship team of bankers, we have generated a loan portfolio with larger average loan amounts than we believe is
typical for a community bank. As of Deczmber 31, 2005, our average loan size was approximately $147,000. Excluding
home equity lines of credit, the average loan size was approximately $205,000. At the same time, we have strived to
maintain a diversified loan portfolio and I: mit the amount of our loans to any single client. As of December 31, 2005, our
10 largest client loan relationships represented approximately $37.5 million, or 11.1% of our loan portfolio.

Loan Approval. Certain credit risks are inherent in making loans. These include prepayment risks, risks
resulting from uncertainties in the futurc value of collateral, risks resulting from changes in economic and industry
conditions, and risks inherent in dealing vvith individual borrowers. We attempt to mitigate repayment risks by adhering
to internal credit policies and procedures. These policies and procedures include officer and client lending limits, a multi-
layered approval process for larger loans, documentation examination, and follow-up procedures for any exceptions to
credit policies. Our loan approval policies provide for various levels of officer lending authority. When the amount of
aggregate loans to a single borrower exceeds an individual officer’s lending authority, the loan request will be considered
by an officer with a higher lending limit or by the officers’ loan committee, which is comprised of our three most senior
lenders and our chief credit officer. The officers’ loan committee has pre-determined lending limits, and any loans in
excess of this lending limit will be submitied for approval by the finance committee of our board or by the full board. We
do not make any loans to any director, officer, or employee of the bank unless the loan is approved by the board of
directors of the bank and is on terms not nore favorable to such person than would be available to a person not affiliated
with the bank.

Management monitors exposure to credit risk from potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or
groups of borrowers, industries and geographic regions, as well as concentrations of lending products and practices such
as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral periods, loans with initial interest-
only periods, etc.), and loans with high loan-to-value ratios. As of December 31, 2005, approximately $44.5 million, or
13.1% of our loans had loan-to-value retios which exceeded regulatory supervisory limits, of which fifty-five loans
totaling approximately $11.0 million had .oan-to-value ratios of 100% or more. These types of loans are subject to strict
underwriting standards and are more closely monitored than a loan with a low loan-to-value ratio. In addition, our
allowance for loan loss model considers and allocates a higher reserve for these types of loans. Furthermore, there are
industry practices that could subject the (Company to increased credit risk should economic conditions change over the
course of a loan’s life. For example, the Company makes variable rate loans and fixed rate principal-amortizing loans
with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon payment loans). The various types of loans are individually
underwritten and monitored to manage the associated risks.

Credit Administration and Loan Review. We maintain a continuous loan review system. We also apply a credit
grading system to each loan, and we use an independent consultant to review the loan files on a test basis to confirm the
grading of each loan. The bank has a chief credit officer who has over 35 years of banking and credit management
experience that reviews and has establishzd performance benchmarks in the areas of nonperforming assets, charge-offs,
past dues, and loan documentation. Each loan officer is responsible for each loan he or she makes, regardless of whether
other individuals or committees joined in the approval. This responsibility continues until the loan is repaid or until the
loan is officially assigned to another officer.

Lending Limits. Our lending activities are subject to a variety of lending limits imposed by federal law. In
general, the bank is subject to a legal limit on loans to a single borrower equal to 15% of the bank’s capital and
unimpaired surplus. Based upon the cagitalization of the bank at December 31, 2005, we self-imposed a loan limit of
$5.0 million per borrower, which represented approximately 85% of our legal lending limit at December 31, 2005. These
limits will increase or decrease in response to increases or decreases in the bank’s level of capital. We are able to sell




participations in our larger loans to other financial institutions, which allow us to manage the risk involved in these loans
and to meet the lending needs of our clients requiring extensions of credit in excess of these limits.

Real Estate Mortgage Loans. The principal component of our loan portfolio is loans secured by real estate
mortgages. We obtain a security interest in real estate whenever possible, in addition to any other available collateral, in
order to increase the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan. At December 31, 2005, loans secured by first or
second mortgages on real estate made up approximately 82% of our loan portfolio.

These loans will generally fall into one of four categories: commercial real estate loans, construction and
development loans, residential real estate loans, or home equity loans. Most of our real estate loans are secured by
residential or commercial property. Interest rates for all categories may be fixed or adjustable, and will more likely be
fixed for shorter-term loans. We generally charge an origination fee for each loan. Other loan fees consist primarily of
late charge fees. Real estate loans are subject to the same general risks as other loans and are particularly sensitive to
fluctuations in the value of real estate. Fluctuations in the value of real estate, as well as other factors arising after a loan
has been made, could negatively affect a borrower’s cash flow, creditworthiness, and ability to repay the loan.

e Commercial Real Estate Loans. At December 31, 2005, our individual commercial real estate loans ranged
in size from approximately $9,000 to $2.7 million, with an average loan size of approximately $359,000.
These loans generally have terms of five years or less, although payments may be structured on a longer
amortization basis. We evaluate each borrower on an individual basis and attempt to determine the business
risks and credit profile of each borrower. We attempt to reduce credit risk in the commercial real estate
portfolio by emphasizing loans on owner-occupied office and retail buildings where the loan-to-value ratio,
established by independent appraisals, does not exceed 85%. We also generally require that a borrower’s
cash flow exceeds 115% of monthly debt service obligations. In order to ensure secondary sources of
payment and liquidity to support a loan request, we typically review all of the personal financial statements
of the principal owners and require their personal guarantees. At December 31, 2005, commercial real
estate loans (other than construction loans) amounted to $169.2 million, or approximately 49.9% of our loan
portfolio. Of our commercial real estate loan portfolio, $97.0 million in loans were not owner-occupied
properties, representing 57.3% of our commercial real estate portfolio and 28.6% of our total loan portfolio.
The remainder of our commercial real estate loan portfolio, $72.2 million in loans or 42.7% of the
commercial loan portfolio, were owner-occupied. Owner-occupied loans represented 21.3% of our total
loan portfolio.

o  Construction and Development Real Estate Loans. We offer adjustable and fixed rate residential and
commercial construction loans to builders and developers and to consumers who wish to build their own
homes. At December 31, 2005, our commercial construction and development real estate loans ranged in
size from approximately $38,000 to $2.9 million, with an average loan size of approximately $523,000. At
December 31, 2005, our individual residential construction and development real estate loans ranged in size
from approximately $50,000 to $1.4 million, with an average loan size of approximately $258,000. The
duration of our construction and development loans generally is limited to 18 months, although payments
may be strmictured on a longer amortization basis. Construction and development loans generally carry a
higher degree of risk than long-term financing of existing properties because repayment depends on the
ultimate completion of the project and usually on the sale of the property. Specific risks include:

cost overruns;

mismanaged construction;

inferior or improper construction techniques;

economic changes or downturns during construction;

a downturn in the real estate market;

rising interest rates which may prevent sale of the property; and
failure to sell completed projects in a timely manner.

We attempt to reduce the risk associated with construction and development loans by obtaining personal
guarantees where possible and by keeping the loan-to-value ratio of the completed project at or below 80%.
At December 31, 2005, total construction loans amounted to $20.1 million, or 5.9% of our loan portfolio.
Included in the $20.1 million was $14.7 million, or 4.3% of our loan portfolio, that were commercial
construction, and $5.4 million, or 1.6% of our loan portfolio, that were consumer construction loans.




e  Residential Real Estate Loans and Home Equity Loans. We do not generally originate traditional long term
residential mortgages, but we do issue traditional second mortgage residential real estate loans and home
equity lines of credit. At December 31, 2005, our individual residential real estate loans ranged in size from
$8,000 to $1.5 million, with an average loan size of approximately $236,000. Generally, we limit the loan-
to-value ratio on our residential real estate loans to 80%. We offer fixed and adjustable rate residential real
estate loans with terms of up to 30 years. We typically offer these fixed rate loans through a third party
rather than originating and retaining these loans ourselves. We typically originate and retain residential real
estate loans only if they have adjustable rates. We also offer home equity lines of credit. At December 31,
2005, our individual home equity lines of credit ranged in size from $1,400 to $952,000, with an average of
approximately $91,000. Our underwriting criteria and the risks associated with, home equity loans and lines
of credit are generally the same as those for first mortgage loans. Home equity lines of credit typically have
terms of five years or less. We generally limit the extension of credit to 90% of the available equity of each
property, although we may extend up to 100% of the available equity. At December 31, 2005, residential
real estate loans (other than construction loans) amounted to $88.0 million, or 26.0% of our loan portfolio.
Included in the residential real estate loans was $50.8 million, or 15.0% of our loan portfolio, in first and
second mortgages on individuals’ homes, and $37.3 million, or 11.0% of our loan portfolio, in home equity
loans.

Commercial Business Loans. We make loans for commercial purposes in various lines of businesses, including
the manufacturing, service industry, and professional service areas. At December 31, 2005, our individual commercial
business loans ranged in size from app:roximately $500 to $2.2 million, with an average loan size of approximately
$113,000. Commercial loans are generally considered to have greater risk than first or second mortgages on real estate
because commercial loans may be unsecured, -or if they are secured, the value of the collateral may be difficult to assess
and more likely to decrease than real estate. At December 31, 2005, commercial business loans amounted to $53.8
million, or 15.9% of our loan portfolio.

We are eligible to offer small business loans utilizing government enhancements such as the Small Business
Administration’s (“SBA”) 7(a) program ind SBA’s 504 programs. These loans typically are partially guaranteed by the
government, which helps to reduce their risk. Government guarantees of SBA loans do not exceed, and are generally less
than, 80% of the loan. As of December 31, 2005, we had not originated any small business loans utilizing government
enhancements. '

Consumer Loans. We make a variety of loans to individuals for personal and household purposes, including
secured and unsecured installment loans and revolving lines of credit. Consumer loans are underwritten based on the
borrower’s income, current debt level, past credit history, and the availability and value of collateral. Consumer rates are
both fixed and variable, with terms negot: able. At December 31, 2003, our individual consumer loans ranged in size from
$500 to $1.2 million, with an average lozn size of approximately $18,000. Our installment loans typically amortize over
periods up to 60 months. We will offer consumer loans with a single maturity date when a specific source of repayment
is available. We typically require monthly payments of interest and a portion of the principal on our revolving loan
products. Consumer loans are generally considered to have greater risk than first or second mortgages on real estate
because they may be unsecured, or, if they are secured, the value of the collateral may be difficult to assess and more
likely to decrease in value than real estat:. At December 31, 2005, consumer loans amounted to $8.2 million, or 2.4% of
our loan portfolio.

Deposit Services

Our principal source of funds i3 core deposits. We offer a full range of deposit services, including checking
accounts, commercial accounts, savings accounts, and other time deposits of various types, ranging from daily money
market accounts to long-term certificates of deposit. Because of the historically low interest rate environment in the last
three years, we have chosen to obtain a portion of our deposits from outside our local market. Our out-of-market, or
wholesale, certificates of deposits represented 32.0% of total deposits at December 31, 2005. The deposits obtained
outside of our market area generally have lower rates than rates being offered for certificates of deposits in our local
market. This funding strategy allowed us to operate in only three locations, maintain a smaller staff, and not incur
significant marketing costs to advertise deposit rates, which in turn has allowed us to maintain our focus on growing our
loan portfolio. In anticipation of rising interest rates and our continued growth, we have recently begun to focus on
expanding our retail deposit program. We opened two new retail deposit offices, one in the first quarter of 2005 and the
other in the third quarter of 2005, which we believe will assist us in obtaining low cost transaction accounts that are less
affected by rising rates. Deposit rates are reviewed regularly by senior management of the bank. We believe that the




rates we offer are competitive with those offered by other financial institutions in our area. We focus on customer service
and our ClientFIRST culture to attract and retain deposits.

Other Banking Services

We offer other bank services including safe deposit boxes, traveler’s checks, direct deposit, United States
Savings Bonds, and banking by mail. We earn fees for most of these services, including debit and credit card
transactions, sales of checks, and wire transfers. We also receive ATM transaction fees from transactions performed by
our clients. We are associated with the Honor, Cirrus, and Master-Money ATM networks, which are available to our
clients throughout the country. Since we outsource our ATM services, we are charged related transaction fees from our
ATM service provider. We have contracted with Fidelity Integrated Financial Solutions, an outside computer service
company, to provide our core data processing services and our ATM processing. By outsourcing these services, we
believe we are able to reduce our overhead by matching the expense in each period to the transaction volume that occurs
during the period, as a significant portion of the fee charged is directly related to the number of loan and deposit accounts
and the related number of transactions we have during the period. We believe that by being associated with a shared
network of ATMs, we are better able to serve our clients and are able to attract clients who are accustomed to the
convenience of using ATMs, although we do not believe that maintaining this association is critical to our success. We
also offer Internet banking services, bill payment services, and cash management services. We do not expect to exercise
trust powers during our next few years of operation.

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive, and we experience competition in our market from many other
financial institutions. Competition among financial institutions is based upon interest rates offered on deposit accounts,
interest rates charged on loans, other credit and service charges relating to loans, the quality and scope of the services
rendered, the convenience of banking facilities, and, in the case of loans to commercial borrowers, relative lending limits.
We compete with commercial banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, mortgage banking firms, consumer
finance companies, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market funds, and other mutual funds, as
well as other super-regional, national, and international financial institutions that operate offices in Greenville County and
elsewhere.

As of June 30, 2005, there were 23 financial institutions other than us in Greenville County. We compete with
these institutions both in attracting deposits and in making loans. In addition, we have to attract our customer base from
other existing financial institutions and from new residents. Many of our competitors are well-established, larger
financial institutions with substantially greater resources and lending limits, such as BB&T, Bank of America, Wachovia,
and Carolina First Bank. These institutions offer some services, such as extensive and established branch networks and
trust services that we do not provide. In addition, many of our non-bank competitors are not subject to the same extensive
federal regulations that govern bank holding companies and federally insured banks.

We believe our commitment to quality and personalized banking services through our Client FIRST culture is a
factor that contributes to our competitiveness.

Market Share

As of June 30, 2003, the most recent date for which market data is available, total deposits in the bank’s primary
service area were over $7.6 billion, which represented a 3.4% deposit increase from 2004. At June 30, 2005, the bank
represented 3.0% of the market.

Employees

At March 28, 2006, we employed a total of 55 full-time and 3 part-time employees. We believe that our
relations with our employees are good.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Both the company and the bank are subject to extensive state and federal banking laws and regulations that
impose specific requirements or restrictions on and provide for general regulatory oversight of virtually all aspects of our
operations. These laws and regulations are generally intended to protect depositors, not shareholders. The following
summary is qualified by reference to the statutory and regulatory provisions discussed. Changes in applicable laws or
regulations may have a material effect on our business and prospects. Beginning with the enactment of the Financial




Institutions Reform Recovery and Enforcement Act in 1989 and followed by the FDIC Improvement Act in 1991 and the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act in 1999, numerous additional regulatory requirements have been placed on the banking industry
in the past several years, and additional changes have been proposed. Our operations may be affected by legislative
changes and the policies of various regulatory authorities. We cannot predict the effect that fiscal or monetary policies,
economic control, or new federal or state legislation may have on our business and earnings in the future.

The following discussion is not intended to be a complete list of all the activities regulated by the banking laws
or of the impact of such laws and regulations on our operations. It is intended only to briefly summarize some material
provisions.

USA PATRIOT Act of 2002

In October 2002, the USA PATRIOT Act of 2002 was enacted in response to the terrorist attacks in New York,
Pennsylvania, and Washington D.C. that occurred on September 11, 2001. The PATRIOT Act is intended to strengthen
U.S. law enforcement’s and the intelligence communities’ abilities to' work cohesively to combat terrorism on a variety of
fronts. The potential impact of the PATRIOT Act on financial institutions is significant and wide ranging. The
PATRIOT Act contains sweeping anti-money laundering and financial transparency laws and imposes various
regulations, including standards for verifying client identification at account opening, and rules to promote cooperation
among financial institutions, regulators, and law enforcement entities in identifying parties who may be involved in
terrorism or money laundering.

Check 21

On October 28, 2003, President Bush signed into law the Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act, also known
as Check 21. The new law, which became effective October 28, 2004, gives “substitute checks,” such as a digital image
of a check and copies made from that irnage, the same legal standing as the original paper check. Some of the major
provisions include:

¢ allowing check truncation without making it mandatory;

¢ demanding that every financial institution communicate to accountholders in writing a description of its
substitute check processing program and their rights under the law;

o legalizing substitutions for and replacements of paper checks without agreement from consumers;

e retaining in place the previously mandated electronic collection and return of checks between financial
institutions only when individual agreements are in place;

e  requiring that when accountholders request verification, financial 1nst1tut10ns produce the original check
(or a copy that accurately represents the original) and demonstrate that the account debit was accurate
and valid; and

e requiring recrediting of funds to an individual’s account on the next business day after a consumer
proves that the financia! institution has erred.

This new legislation will likely affect bank capital spending as many financial institutions assess whether
technological or operational changes ar: necessary to stay competitive and take advantage of the new opportunities
presented by Check 21.

Greenville First Bancshares, Inc.

We own 100% of the outstanding capital stock of the bank, and therefore we are considered to be a bank holding
company under the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 and the South Carolina Banking and Branching
Efficiency Act.

The Bank Holding Company Act. Under the Bank Holding Company Act, we are subject to periodic
examination by the Federal Reserve and are required to file periodic reports of our operations and any additional
information that the Federal Reserve may require. QOur activities at the bank and holding company levels are limited to:

e  banking and managing or controlling banks;

e furnishing services to or performing services for our subsidiaries; and

* engaging in other activities that the Federal Reserve determines to be so closely related to banking and
managing or controlling bariks as to be a proper incident thereto.




Investments, Control, and Activities. With certain limited exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act requires
every bank holding company to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before:

e  acquiring substantially all the assets of any bank;

e acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank if after the acquisition it
would own or control more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank (unless it already owns or controls the
majority of such shares); or

e merging or consolidating with another bank holding company.

In addition, and subject to certain exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act and the Change in Bank Control
Act, together with regulations promulgated there under, require Federal Reserve approval prior to any person or company
acquiring “control” of a bank holding company. Control is conclusively presumed to exist if an individual or company
acquires 25% or more of any class of voting securities of a bank holding company. Control is rebuttably presumed to
exist if a person acquires 10% or more, but less than 25%, of any class of voting securities and either the company has
registered securities under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or no other person owns a greater
percentage of that class of voting securities immediately after the transaction. Our common stock is registered under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The regulations provide a procedure for rebutting control when ownership of any class
of voting securities is below 25%.

Under the Bank Holding Company Act, a bank holding company is generally prohibited from engaging in, or
acquiring direct or indirect control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any company engaged in, nonbanking
activities unless the Federal Reserve Board, by order or regulation, has found those activities to be so closely related to
banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. Some of the activities that the Federal
Reserve Board has determined by regulation to be proper incidents to the business of a bank holding company include:

making or servicing loans and certain types of leases;

engaging in certain insurance and discount brokerage activities;

performing certain data processing services;

acting in certain circumstances as a fiduciary or investment or financial adviser;

owning savings associations; and

making investments in certain corporations or projects designed primarily to promote community welfare.

The Federal Reserve Board imposes certain capital requirements on the company under the Bank Holding
Company Act, including a minimum leverage ratio and a minimum ratio of “qualifying” capital to risk-weighted assets.
These requirements are described below under “- Greenville First Bank, N.A. - Capital Regulations.” Subject to our
capital requirements and certain other restrictions, we are able to borrow money to make a capital contribution to the
bank, and these loans may be repaid from dividends paid from the bank to the company. Our ability to pay dividends will
be subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in “- Greenville First Bank, N.A. — Dividends.” We are also able
to raise capital for contribution to the bank by issuing securities without having to receive regulatory approval, subject to
compliance with federal and state securities laws.

Source of Strength, Cross-Guarantee. In accordance with Federal Reserve Board policy, we are expected to act
as a source of financial strength to the-bank and to commit resources to support the bank in circumstances in which we
might not otherwise do so. Under the Bank Holding Company Act, the Federal Reserve Board may require a bank
holding company to terminate any activity or relinquish control of a nonbank subsidiary, other than a nonbank subsidiary
of a bank, upon the Federal Reserve Board’s determination that such activity or control constitutes a serious risk to the
financial soundness or stability of any depository institution subsidiary of the bank holding company. Further, federal
bank regulatory authorities have additional discretion to require a bank holding company to divest itself of any bank or
nonbank subsidiaries if the agency determines that divestiture may aid the depository institution’s financial condition.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act was signed into law on November 12, 1999.
Among other things, the Act repealed the restrictions on banks affiliating with securities firms contained in sections 20
and 32 of the Glass-Steagall Act. The Act also permits bank holding companies that become financial holding companies
to engage in a statutorily provided list of financial activities, including insurance and securities underwriting and agency
activities, merchant banking, and insurance company portfolio investment activities. The Act also authorizes activities
that are “complementary” to financial activities. We have not elected to become a financial holding company.

The Act is intended, in part, to grant to community banks certain powers as a matter of right that larger
institutions have accumulated on an ad hoc basis. Nevertheless, the Act may have the result of increasing the amount of




competition that we face from larger institutions and other types of companies. In fact, it is not possible to predict the full
effect that the Act will have on us. ‘

South Carolina State Regulation. As a South Carolina bank holding company under the South Carolina Banking
and Branching Efficiency Act, we are subject to limitations on sale or merger and to regulation by the South Carolina
Board of Financial Institutions. We ar¢: not required to obtain the approval of the Board prior to acquiring the capital
stock of a national bank, but we must notify them at least 15 days prior to doing so. We must receive the Board’s
approval prior to engaging in the acquisition of a South Carolina state chartered bank or another South Carolina bank
holding company.

Greenville First Bank, N.A.

The bank operates as a national banking association incorporated under the laws of the United States and subject
to examination by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency. Deposits in the bank are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to a maximum amount, which is generally $100,000 per depositor subject to the
aggregation rule.

The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and the FDIC regulate or monitor virtually all areas of the bank’s
operations, including

security devices and procedures;

adequacy of capitalization and loss reserves;
loans;

investments;

borrowings;

deposits;

mergers;

issuances of securities;

payment of dividends;

interest rates payable on deposits;

interest rates or fees chargeable on loans;
establishment of bran:hes;

corporate reorganizations;

maintenance of books and records; and
adequacy of staff training to carry on safe lending and deposit gathering practices.

The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency requires the bank to maintain specified capital ratios and imposes
limitations on the bank’s aggregate investment in real estate, bank premises, and furniture and fixtures. The Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency also requires the bank to prepare annual reports on the bank’s financial condition and to
conduct an annual audit of its financial affairs in compliance with its minimum standards and procedures.

Under the FDIC Improvement Act, all insured institutions must undergo regular on-site examinations by their
appropriate banking agency. The cost of examinations of insured depository institutions and any affiliates may be
assessed by the appropriate agency against each institution or affiliate as it deems necessary or appropriate. Insured
institutions are required to submit annuel reports to the FDIC, their federal regulatory agency, and state supervisor when
applicable. The FDIC Improvement Act directs the FDIC to develop a method for insured depository institutions to
provide supplemental disclosure of the estimated fair market value of assets and liabilities, to the extent feasible and
practicable, in any balance sheet, financial statement, report of condition or any other report of any insured depository
institution. The FDIC Improvement Act. also requires the federal banking regulatory agencies to prescribe, by regulation,
standards for all insured depository insti-utions and depository institution holding companies relating, among other things,
to the following:

internal controls;

information systems and audit systems;
loan documentation;

credit underwriting;

interest rate risk exposure; and

asset quality.
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National banks and their holding companies which have been chartered or registered or have undergone a change
in control within the past two years or which have been deemed by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency or the
Federal Reserve Board to be troubled institutions must give the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency or the Federal
Reserve Board 30 days prior notice of the appointment of any senior executive officer or director. Within the 30 day
period, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency or the Federal Reserve Board, as the case may be, may approve or
disapprove any such appointment.

Deposit Insurance - The FDIC has adopted a risk-based assessment system for determining an insured
depository institutions’ insurance assessment rate. The system takes into account the risks attributable to different
categories and concentrations of assets and liabilities. An institution is placed into one of three capital categories: (1)
well capitalized; (2) adequately capitalized; or (3) undercapitalized. The FDIC also assigns an institution to one of three
supervisory subgroups, based on the FDIC’s determination of the institution’s financial condition and the risk posed to the
deposit insurance funds. Assessments range from 0 to 27 cents per $100 of deposits, depending on the institution’s
capital group and supervisory subgroup. In addition, the FDIC imposes assessments to help pay off the $780 million in
annual interest payments on the $8 billion Financing Corporation bonds issued in the late 1980s as part of the government
rescue of the thrift industry. Our FDIC assessment rate is currently 1A or .000036 per million of insured deposits, but
may change in the future. The FDIC may increase or decrease the assessment rate schedule on a semiannual basis. An
increase in the BIF assessment rate could have a material adverse effect on our earnings, depending on the amount of the
increase.

The FDIC may terminate its insurance of deposits if it finds that the institution has engaged in unsafe and
unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations, or has violated any applicable law,
regulation, rule, order, or condition imposed by the FDIC.

Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders - The bank is subject to the provisions of Section 23A of the Federal
Reserve Act, which places limits on the amount of loans or extensions of credit to, or investments in, or certain other
transactions with, affiliates and on the amount of advances to third parties collateralized by the securities or obligations of
affiliates. The aggregate of all covered transactions is limited in amount, as to any one affiliate, to 10% of the bank’s
capital and surplus and, as to all affiliates combined, to 20% of the bank’s capital and surplus. Furthermore, within the
foregoing limitations as to amount, each covered transaction must meet specified collateral requirements. Compliance is
also required with certain provisions designed to avoid the taking of low quality assets.

The bank also is subject to the provisions of Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act which, among other things,
prohibits an institution from engaging in certain transactions with certain affiliates unless the transactions are on terms
substantially the same, or at least as favorable to such institution or its subsidiaries, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies. The bank is subject to certain restrictions on extensions of credit
to executive officers, directors, certain principal shareholders, and their related interests. Such extensions of credit (i)
must be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with third parties and (ii) must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present
other unfavorable features.

The Federal Reserve Board has recently issued Regulation W, which codifies prior regulations under Sections
23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and interpretative guidance with respect to affiliate transactions. Regulation W
incorporates the exemption from the affiliate transaction rules but expands the exemption to cover the purchase of any
type of loan or extension of credit from an affiliate. In addition, under Regulation W:

¢ abank and its subsidiaries may not purchase a low-quality asset from an affiliate;
covered transactions and other specified transactions between a bank or its subsidiaries and an affiliate must
be on terms and conditions that are consistent with safe and sound banking practices; and

e  with some exceptions, each loan or extension of credit by a bank to an affiliate must be secured by collateral
with a market value ranging from 100% to 130%, depending on the type of collateral, of the amount of the
loan or extension of credit.

Regulation W generally excludes all non-bank and non-savings association subsidiaries of banks from treatment
as affiliates, except to the extent that the Federal Reserve Board decides to treat these subsidiaries as affiliates. The
regulation limits the amount of loans that could be purchased by a bank from an affiliate to not more than 100% of the
bank's capital and surplus.
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Dividends - A national bank may not pay dividends from its capital. All dividends must be paid out of undivided
profits then on hand, after deducting expenses, including reserves for losses and bad debts. In addition, a national bank is
prohibited from declaring a dividend on its shares of common stock until its surplus equals its stated capital, unless there
has been transferred to surplus no less than one-tenth of the bank’s net profits of the preceding two consecutive half-year
periods (in the case of an annual dividend). The approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency is required if
the total of all dividends declared by a national bank in any calendar year exceeds the total of its net profits for that year
combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two years, less any required transfers to surplus.

Branching - National banks are required by the National Bank Act to adhere to branch office banking laws
applicable to state banks in the states in which they are located. Under current South Carolina law, the bank may open
branch offices throughout South Carolina with the prior approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency. In
addition, with prior regulatory approval, the bank is able to acquire existing banking operations in South Carolina.
Furthermore, federal legislation permits interstate branching, including out-of-state acquisitions by bank holding
companies, interstate branching by banks if allowed by state law, and interstate merging by banks. South Carolina law,
with limited exceptions, currently permits branching across state lines through interstate mergers.

Community Reinvestment Act - The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, in connection with
examinations of financial institutions within their respective jurisdictions, the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, or the Office of
the Comptrolier of the Currency, shall evaluate the record of each financial institution in meeting the credit needs of its
local community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods. These factors are also considered in evaluating
mergers, acquisitions, and applications to open a branch or facility. Failure to adequately meet these criteria could impose
additional requirements and limitations or. our bank.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act - Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, subject to certain conditions imposed by
their respective banking regulators, national and state-chartered banks are permitted to form “financial subsidiaries” that
may conduct financial or incidental activities, thereby permitting bank subsidiaries to engage in certain activities that
previously were impermissible. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act imposes several safeguards and restrictions on financial
subsidiaries, including that the parent bark’s equity investment in the financial subsidiary be deducted from the bank’s
assets and tangible equity for purposes of calculating the bank’s capital adequacy. In addition, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Act imposes new restrictions on transactions between a bank and its financial subsidiaries similar to restrictions
applicable to transactions between banks and nonbank affiliates.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act also contains provisions regarding consumer privacy. These provisions require
financial institutions to disclose their policy for collecting and protecting confidential information. Customers generally
may prevent financial institutions from skaring personal financial information with nonaffiliated third parties except for
third parties that market an institution's ov/n products and services. Additionally, financial institutions generally may not
disclose consumer account numbers to ary nonaffiliated third party for use in telemarketing, direct mail marketing, or
other marketing to the consumer.

Other Regulations - Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by the bank are subject to state usury
laws and federal laws concerning interest -ates. The bank’s loan operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to
credit transactions, such as:

o the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

o the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring financial institutions to provide information to
enable the public and public officials to determine whether a financial institution is fulfilling its obligation
to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves;

e the Equal Credit Opportunitv Act, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other prohibited
factors in extending credit; ‘

s the Fair Credit Reporting Aut of 1978, governing the use and provision of information to credit reporting
agencies;

o the Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by
collection agencies; and

s the rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of implementing
such federal laws.
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The deposit operations of the bank also are subject to:

¢ the Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer financial
records and prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records; and

o the Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E issued by the Federal Reserve Board to implement that
Act, which governs automatic deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts and customers’ rights and
liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines and other electronic banking services.

Capital Regulations - The federal bank regulatory authorities have adopted risk-based capital guidelines for
banks and bank holding companies that are designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to
differences in risk profiles among banks and bank holding companies and account for off-balance sheet items. The
guidelines are minimums, and the federal regulators have noted that banks and bank holding companies contemplating
significant expansion programs should not allow expansion to diminish their capital ratios and should maintain ratios in
excess of the minimums. We have not received any notice indicating that either Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. or
Greenville First Bank, N.A. is subject to higher capital requirements. The current guidelines require -all bank holding
companies and federally-regulated banks to maintain a minimum risk-based total capital ratio equal to 8%, of which at
least 4% must be Tier 1 capital. Tier | capital includes common shareholders’ equity, qualifying perpetual preferred
stock, and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, but excludes goodwill and most other
intangibles and excludes the allowance for loan and lease losses. Tier 2 capital includes the excess of any preferred stock
not included in Tier 1 capital, mandatory convertible securities, hybrid capital instruments, subordinated debt and
intermediate term-preferred stock, and general reserves for loan and lease losses up to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets.

Under these guidelines, banks’ and bank holding companies’ assets are given risk-weights of 0%, 20%, 50%, or
100%. In addition, certain off-balance sheet items are given credit conversion factors to convert them to asset equivalent
amounts to which an appropriate risk-weight applies. These computations result in the total risk-weighted assets. Most
loans are assigned to the 100% risk category, except for first mortgage loans fully secured by residential property and,
under certain circumstances, residential construction loans, both of which carry a 50% rating. Most investment securities
are assigned to the 20% category, except for municipal or state revenue bonds, which have a 50% rating, and direct
obligations of or obligations gnaranteed by the United States Treasury or United States Government agencies, which have
a 0% rating,

The federal bank regulatory authorities also have implemented a leverage ratio, which is equal to Tier | capital
as a percentage of average total assets less intangibles, to be used as a supplement to the risk-based guidelines. The
principal objective of the leverage ratio is to place a constraint on the maximum degree to which a bank holding company
may leverage its equity capital base. The minimum required leverage ratio for top-rated institutions is 3%, but most
institutions are required to maintain an additional cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis points.

The FDIC Improvement Act established a new capital-based regulatory scheme designed to promote early
intervention for troubled banks, which requires the FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution of bank failures. The
new capital-based regulatory framework contains five categories of compliance with regulatory capital requirements,
including “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized,” and “critically
undercapitalized.” To qualify as a “well capitalized” institution, a bank must have a leverage ratio of no less than 5%, a
Tier 1 risk-based ratio of no less than 6%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of no less than 10%, and the bank must not
be under any order or directive from the appropriate regulatory agency to meet and maintain a specific capital level.
Currently, we qualify as “well capitalized.”

Under the FDIC Improvement Act regulations, the applicable agency can treat an institution as if it were in the
next lower category if the agency determines (after notice and an opportunity for hearing) that the institution is in an
unsafe or unsound condition or is engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice. The degree of regulatory scrutiny of a
financial institution increases, and the permissible activities of the institution decrease, as it moves downward through the
capital categories. Institutions that fall into one of the three undercapitalized categories may be required to do some or all
of the following:

submit a capital restoration plan;

raise additional capital;

restrict their growth, deposit interest rates, and other activities;
improve their management;

eliminate management fees; or

divest themselves of all or a part of their operations.
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These capital guidelines can affect us in several ways. If we grow at a rapid pace, our capital may be depleted
too quickly, and a capital infusion from our holding company may be necessary which could impact our ability to pay
dividends. Our capital levels currently are adequate; however, rapid growth, poor loan portfolio performance, poor
earnings performance, or a combination of these factors could change our capital position in a relatively short period of
time. If we fail to meet these capital requirements, our bank would be required to develop and file a plan with the Office
of the Comptroller of the Currency describing the means and a schedule for achieving the minimum capital requirements.
In addition, our bank would generally not receive regulatory approval of any application that requires the consideration of
capital adequacy, such as a branch or merger application, unless our bank could demonstrate a reasonable plan to meet the
capital requirement within a reasonable period of time. A bank that is not “well capitalized” is also subject to certain
limitations relating to so-called “brokered” deposits. Bank holding companies controlling financial institutions can be
called upon to boost the institutions’ carital and to partially guarantee the institutions’ performance under their capital
restoration plans.

Enforcement Powers - The Financial Institutions Reform Recovery and Enforcement Act expanded and
increased civil and criminal penalties available for use by the federal regulatory agencies against depository institutions
and certain “institution-affiliated parties.” Institution-affiliated parties primarily include management, employees, and
agents of a financial institution, as well as independent contractors and consultants such as attorneys and accountants and
others who participate in the conduct of the financial institution’s affairs. These practices can include the failure of an
institution to timely file required reports or the filing of false or misleading information or the submission of inaccurate
reports. Civil penalties may be as high zs $1,000,000 a day for such violations. Criminal penalties for some financial
institution crimes have been increased to twenty years. In addition; regulators are provided with greater flexibility to
commence enforcement actions against institutions and institution-affiliated parties. Possible enforcement actions incinde
the termination of deposit insurance. Furthermore, banking agencies’ power to issue cease-and-desist orders were
expanded. Such orders may, among other things, require affirmative action to correct any harm resulting from a violation
or practice, including restitution, reimbursement, indemnifications or guarantees against loss. A financial institution may
also be ordered to restrict its growth, dispose of certain assets, rescind agreements or contracts, or take other actions as
determined by the ordering agency to be appropriate.

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies - Our earnings are affected by domestic economic conditions and the
monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies. The Federal Reserve Bank’s monetary
policies have had, and .are likely to contirue to have, an important impact on the operating results of commercial banks
through its power to implement national monetary policy in order, among other things, to curb inflation or combat a
recession. The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board have major effects upon the levels of bank loans,
investments and deposits through its open market operations in United States government securities and through its
regulation of the discount rate on borrowings of member banks and the reserve requirements against member bank
deposits. It is not possible to predict the nature or impact of future changes in monetary and fiscal policies.

Proposed Legislation and Regulatory Action. New regulations and statutes are regularly proposed that contain
wide-ranging proposals for altering the structures, regulations, and competitive relationships of the nation’s financial
institutions. We cannot predict whether or in what form any proposed regulation or statute will be adopted or the extent
to which our business may be affected by £ny new regulation or statute.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our recent operating results may not be indicative of our future operating results.

We may not be able to sustain our historical rate of growth and may not even be able to grow our business at all.
Because of our relatively small size and short operating history, it will be difficult for us to generate similar earnings
growth as we continue to expand, and consequently our historical results of operations will not necessarily be indicative
of our future operations. Various factors, such as economic conditions, regulatory and legislative considerations, and
competition, may also impede our ability to expand our market presence. If we experience a significant decrease in our
historical rate of growth, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected because a high
percentage of our operating costs are fixed expenses.
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Our decisions regarding credit risk and reserves for loan losses may materially and adversely affect our business.

Making loans and other extensions of credit is an essential element of our business. Although we seek to
mitigate risks inherent in lending by adhering to specific underwriting practices, our loans and other extensions of credit
may not be repaid. The risk of nonpayment is affected by a number of factors, including:

the duration of the credit;

credit risks of a particular customer;

changes in economic and industry conditions; and

in the case of a collateralized loan, risks resulting from uncertainties about the future value of the collateral.

We attempt to maintain an appropriate allowance for loan losses to provide for potential losses in our loan
portfolio. We periodically determine the amount of the allowance based on consideration of several factors, including:

an ongoing review of the quality, mix, and size of our overall loan portfolio;
our historical loan loss experience;

evaluation of economic conditions;

regular reviews of loan delinquencies and loan portfolio quality; and

the amount and quality of collateral, including guarantees, securing the loans.

There is no precise method of predicting credit losses; therefore, we face the risk that charge-offs in future
periods may exceed our allowance for loan losses and that additional increases in the allowance for loan losses will be
required. Additions to the allowance for loan losses would result in a decrease of our net income, and possibly our

capital.
Lack of seasoning of our loan portfolio may increase the risk of credit defaults in the future.

Due to the rapid growth of our bank over the past several years and our relatively short operating history, a large
portion of the loans in our loan portfolio and of our lending relationships are of relatively recent origin. In general, loans
do not begin to show signs of credit deterioration or default until they have been outstanding for some period of time, a
process we refer to as “seasoning.” As a result, a portfolio of older loans will usually behave more predictably than a
newer portfolio. Because our loan portfolio is relatively new, the current level of delinquencies and defaults may not be
representative of the level that will prevail when the portfolio becomes more seasoned, which may be higher than current
levels. If delinquencies and defaults increase, we may be required to increase our provision for loan losses, which would
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

An economic downturn, especially one affecting the Greenville County area, could reduce our customer base, our level
of deposits, and demand for financial products such as loans.

Our success significantly depends upon the growth in population, income levels, deposits, and housing starts in
our markets, especially in Greenville County. If the communities in which we operate do not grow or if prevailing
economic conditions locally or nationally are unfavorable, our business may not succeed. An economic downturn would
likely contribute to the deterioration of the quality of our loan portfolio and reduce our level of deposits, which in turn
would hurt our business. Interest received on loans represented approximately 92.0% of our interest income for the year
ended December 31, 2005. If an economic downturn occurs in the economy as a whole, or especially in the Greenville
County area, borrowers may be less likely to repay their loans as scheduled. Moreover, the value of real estate or other
collateral that may secure our loans could be adversely affected. Unlike many larger institutions, we are not able to
spread the risks of unfavorable local economic conditions across a large number of diversified economies. An economic
downturn could, therefore, result in losses that materially and adversely affect our business.

Changes in prevailing interest rates may reduce our profitability.

Our results of operations depend in large part upon the level of our net interest income, which is the difference
between interest income from interest-earning assets, such as loans and mortgage-backed securities, and interest expense
on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and other borrowings. Depending on the terms and maturities of our assets
and liabilities, a significant change in interest rates could have a material adverse effect on our profitability. Many factors
cause changes in interest rates, including governmental monetary policies and domestic and international economic and
political conditions. While we intend to manage the effects of changes in interest rates by adjusting the terms, maturities,




and pricing of our assets and liabilities, our efforts may not be effective and our financial condition and results of
operations could suffer. After operating in a historically low interest rate environment, the Federal Reserve began raising
short-term interest rates in the second quarter of 2004. We anticipate that we will benefit from a rising interest rate
environment. However, no assurance can be given that the Federal Reserve will actually continue to raise interest rates or
that the results we anticipate will actually occur.

We are dependent on key individuals and the loss of one or more of these key individuals could curtail our growth and
adversely affect our prospects.

R. Arthur Seaver, Jr., our president and chief executive officer, has extensive and long-standing ties within our
primary market area and substantial expe-ience with our operations, and he has contributed significantly to our growth. If
we lose the services of Mr. Seaver, he wculd be difficult to replace and our business and development could be materially
and adversely affected.

Our success also depends, in part, on our continued ability to attract and retain experienced loan originators, as
well as other management personnel, including Jim Austin, Fred' Gilmer, III, and Eddie Terrell. Competition for
personnel is intense, and we may not be successful in attracting or retaining qualified personnel. Our failure to compete
for these personnel, or the loss of the services of several of such key personnel, could adversely affect our growth strategy
and seriously harm our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

We are subject to extensive regulation that could limit or restrict our activities.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and are subject to examination, supervision, and comprehensive
regulation by various regulatory agencies. Qur compliance with thése regulations is costly and restricts certain of our
activities, including payment of divider.ds, mergers and acquisitions, investments, loans and interest rates charged,
interest rates paid on deposits, and locations of offices. We are also subject to capitalization guidelines established by our
regulators, which require us to maintain adequate capital to support our growth.

The laws and regulations applicable to the banking industry could change at any time, and we cannot predict the
effects of these changes on our business and profitability. Because government regulation greatly affects the business and
financial results of all commercial banks and bank holding companies, our cost of compliance could adversely affect our
ability to operate profitably.

Efforts to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will involve significant expenditures, and non-compliance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act may adversely affect us.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the related rules and regulations promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission that are now applicable to us, have increased the scope, complexity, and cost of corporate
governarnce, reporting, and disclosure practices. We have experienced, and we expect to continue to experience, greater
compliance costs, including costs related o internal controls, as a result of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. For example, for the
year ended December 31, 2006, we will be required to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and our
management will be required to issue a report on our internal controls over financial reporting. We expect these new rules
and regulations to continue to increase our accounting, legal, and other costs, and to make some activities more difficult,
time consuming, and costly. In the event that we are unable to maintain or achieve compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act and related rules, we may be adversely affected. ‘

We are evaluating our internal control systems in order to allow management to report on, and our independent
registered public accounting firm to attest to, our internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. If we identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting that we cannot remediate in a timely manner, or if we are unable to receive a positive attestation from
our independent registered public accounting firm with respect to our internal control over financial reporting, the trading
price of our common stock could decline znd our ability to obtain any necessary equity or debt financing could suffer.

In addition, the new rules adopted as a result of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could make it more difficult or more

costly for us to obtain certain types of insurance, including directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, which could make
it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of directors or as executive officers.
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Our continued pace of growth may require us to raise additional capital in the future, but that capital may not be
available when it is needed. :

We are required by regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our operations. To
support our continued growth, we may need to raise additional capital. Our ability to raise additional capital, if needed,
will depend in part on conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are outside our control. Accordingly, we
cannot assure you of our ability to raise additional capital, if needed, on terms- acceptable to us. If we cannot raise
additional capital when needed, our ability to further expand our operations through internal growth and acquisitions
could be materially impaired. In addition, if we decide to raise additional equity capital, your interest could be diluted.

We face strong competition for clients, which could prevent us from obtaining clients and may cause us to pay higher
interest rates to attract clients.

The banking business is highly competitive, and we experience competition in our market from many other
financial institutions. We compete with commercial banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, mortgage
banking firms, consumer finance companies, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market funds, and
other mutual funds, as well as other super-regional, national, and international financial institutions that operate offices in
our primary market areas and elsewhere. We compete with these institutions both in attracting deposits and in making
loans. In addition, we have to attract our client base from other existing financial institutions and from new residents.
Many of our competitors are well-established, larger financial institutions. These institutions offer some services, such as
extensive and established branch networks, that we do not provide. There is a risk that we will not be able to compete
successfully with other financial institutions in our market, and that we may have to pay higher interest rates to attract
deposits, resulting in reduced profitability. In addition, competitors that are not depository institutions are generally not
subject to the extensive regulations that apply to us.

We will face risks with respect to future expansion and acquisitions or mergers.

We may seek to acquire other financial institutions or parts of those institutions. We may also expand into new
markets or lines of business or offer new products or services. These activities would involve a number of risks,
including:

s the potential inaccuracy of the estimates and judgments used to evaluate credit, operations, management,
and market risks with respect to a target institution;

e the time and costs of evaluating new markets, hiring or retaining experienced local management, and
opening new offices and the time lags between these activities and the generation of sufficient assets and
deposits to support the costs of the expansion;

e the incurrence and possible impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and possible adverse
effects on our results of operations; and
o the risk of loss of key employees and customers.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None

Item 2.  Properties.

Our main office facility is located at the corner of Haywood Road and Halton Road in downtown Greenville,
South Carolina. The building is a full service banking facility with three drive-through banking stations and an automatic
teller machine. We leased this building from Halton Properties, LLC, which is 100% owned by our director Mark A.
Cothran, through the end of 2005 for approximately $351,000. On December 30, 2005, we purchased the main office
building for $3.1 million. We anticipate that we will continue to operate in this location until the third quarter of 2006,
when we plans to relocate the Haywood Road branch facility and our corporate office. We plan to aggressively market
either the leasing or the sale of the Haywood Road office building.

The bank has signed a 10 year, five-month lease on a new site for its headquarters and main office that are to be

relocated in 2006. The lease provides for a substantial reduction in the rent rate for the first five months of the lease in
order to induce the bank into the agreement. The discounted rent will be amortized over the initial lease term. Beginning
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in mid-2006, the monthly rent expense will be approximately $41,000. The lease provides for annual lease rate
escalations based on cost of living adjustments and renewal options for three additional five-year periods and will be
analyzed and accounted for in accordance w1th FASB Technical Bulletin 85- 3 “Accounting for Operating Leases with
Scheduled Rent Increases.”

On March 5, 2004, we received permission from the OCC to open two additional offices. We opened our first
office on March 14, 2005, which is loczted in the Thornblade area of Greenville, South Carolina on The Parkway, near
the intersection of [-85 and Pelham Road.

We opened our second office, which is located at 2125 Augusta Road in Greenville, South Carolina, on
November 4, 2005. We lease the land for this office from Augusta Road Holdings, LLC, which is owned by one of our
directors, Mark A. Cothran, for approximately $58,000 per year. Rental payments are subject to increase in accordance
with a formula based on the Consumer P:ice Index. The initial term of the lease is 20 years.

We believe that all of our prope:ties are adequately covered by insurance.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
In the ordinary course of operations, we may be a party to various legal proceedings from time to time. We do

not believe that there is any pending or threatened proceeding against us, which, if determined adversely, would have a
material effect on our business, results of operations, or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this
report.

PARTII

Item 5. Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

From the date of our initial pub.ic offering on October 26, 1999 to September 24, 2004, our common stock had
been quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “GVBK.”? On September 24, 2004, our common stock began
trading on the Nasdaq National Market under the same symbol “GVBK. On March 15, 2006, we had approximately
1,000 shareholders of record.

The following table shows the reported high and low bid information reported by the OTC Bulletin Board for the
first three quarters of 2004 and the high and low sales prices reported by the Nasdaq National Market for the fourth
quarter of 2004 and for 2005. The prices listed by the OTC Bulletin Board are quotations, which reflect inter-dealer
prices, without retail mark-up, mark-dow: or commission, and may not represent actual transactions.

2005 High Low
First Quarter $ 21.19 $ 18.85
Second Quarte: 21.00 19.00
Third Quarter 21.90 19.77
Fourth Quarter 25.00 21.16

2004 High Low
First Quarter $ 24.00 $ 17.91
Second Quarter 21.65 18.40
Third Quarter 19.75 17.00
Fourth Quarter 20.00 18.18

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our inception. For the foreseeable
future we do not intend to declare cash dividends. We intend to retain earnings to grow our business and strengthen our
capital base. Our ability to pay dividends depends on the ability of our subsidiary, Greenville First Bank, to pay
dividends to us. As a national bank, Greznville First Bank may only pay dividends out of its net profits, after deducting
expenses, including losses and bad debts In addition, the bank is prohibited from declaring a dividend on its shares of
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common stock until its surplus equals its stated capital, unless there has been transferred to surplus no less than one-tenth
of the bank’s net profits of the preceding two consecutive half-year periods (in the case of an annual dividend). The
approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”) will be required if the total of all dividends
declared in any calendar year by the bank exceeds the bank’s net profits to date for that year combined with its retained
net profits for the preceding two years less any required transfers to surplus. The OCC also has the authority under

federal

law to enjoin a national bank from engaging in what in its opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in

conducting its business, including the payment of a dividend under certain circumstances.

The following table sets forth equity compensation plan information at December 31, 2005. The number of

shares and the exercise prices for options and warrants has been adjusted for the 3 for 2 stock split in 2003.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities

Number of securities Weighted-average remaining available for
to be issued exercise price of future issuance under
upon exercise of outstanding equity compensation plans (c)
outstanding options, options, warrants (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights (a) and rights (b) reflected in column(a))
Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders (1)........ 258,750 $ 8.81 4,000
Equity compensation
plans not approved
by security holders(2)..... 194,175 $ 6.67 -
Total.....coveviiiiiiins 452,925 $ 7.89 4,000
1 The number of shares of common stock available under the 2000 Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. Stock
Incentive Plan automatically increases each time we issue additional shares so that it continues to equal 15% of
our total outstanding shares. Our board of directors has approved 258,750 shares of common stock to be issued
as stock options.
(2) Each of our organizers received, for no additional consideration, a warrant to purchase one share of common

stock for $6.67 per share for each share purchased during our initial public offering. The warrants are
represented by separate warrant agreements. One third of the warrants vest on each of the first three
anniversaries of the date our bank opened for business, and they are exercisable in whole or in part during the ten
year period following that date. The warrants may not be assigned, pledged, or hypothecated in any way. The
194,175 of shares issued pursuant to the exercise of such warrants are transferable, subject to compliance with
applicable securities laws. If the South Carolina Board of Financial Institutions or the FDIC issues a capital
directive or other order requiring the bank to obtain additional capital, the warrants will be forfeited, if not
immediately exercised.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share amounts)

Summary Balance Sheet Data:

A SIS, 1 vu ittt ettt e e $ 405,313 315,811 230,841 170,358 118,565
Federal funds sold..........coovveviviiiiiiiiiin e, 19,381 1,394 2,843 42 101
Investment SECUTITIES. ... vu e ieriiieneree v enreanae 36,131 29,162 15,759 15,497 18,468
Loans (Met)(1).....ocovirinriiiiieiieiiie e 334,041 - 276,630 206,077 148,079 95,340
Allowance for 10an 10SS€S.........ccovvveiniireirinineannns 4,490 3,717 2,705 1,824 1,192
DEPOSIES. .. vveaeteireeeieiieier ettt 254,148 204,864 168,964 133,563 92,700
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase
and federal funds purchased............................ 14,680 13,100 9,297 9,107 8,483
Other borrowed funds.............ccoeiieniiiiiiiiennnnns 79,500 60,660 32,500 15,500 6,000
Junior subordinated debentures................ ........... 13,403 6,186 6,186 ' - -
Shareholders” equity.........vevinrrneirninerieeerieinnenn 30,473 28,079 11,187 10,232 9,459
Summary Results of Operations Data: ‘ :
INterest INCOME. . ..o vttt ee v ieee et e ervaeeeaans $ 21,670 13,965 9,722 8,153 6,310
INLEIESt EXPENSE. . evvvsrveeieereerrnaasesaneeess eevrnennns 9,585 i 5,317 3,618 3,492 3,353
Net INETest INCOMIC. .t iviitirirvirvreeerereieneiensrenenns 12,083 8,648 6,104 4,661 2,957
Provision for loan 108S€S...........covviiiiiiiiciiinnnns 1,000 1,310 1,050 1,050 600
Net interest income after provision for loan losses...... 11,085 7,338 5,054 3,611 2,357
NONInterest iNCOME. .. ....c.uvuerrerneeeerriinneeerennnnss 826 761 422 520 284
NORINETESt EXPENSE. ....vteeenarrerarrnererienrenarnennns 7,856 4,852 3,853 3,379 2,782
Income (loss) before taxes. .. ...coovcoiiiviiicni i 4,055 3,247 1,623 752 (141)
Income tax expense (benefit).............ccceeennine... 1,541 1,234 617 - (22)
Net income (1o8S)......vevivviriiiiiiiiiieceevein e $ 2,514 2,013 1,006 752 (119)
Net operating income (1058} (4).......ccovevveviricrnnenn. $ 3,444 2,013 1,006 752 (119)
Per Share Data(2):
Net income (10s5), basic.......c..coevviiiiiiine i, $ 95 1.02 58 44 07
Net income (loss), diluted..............coocovvvin i, $ .86 .90 .53 43 (.07)
Book Value......coovviiiiii e $ 11.46 10.60 6.49 5.93 5.48
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
BaSIC. .u vt 2,657 1,972 1,725 1,725 1,725
Diluted. .. ooeiieiie e e 2,930 2,240 1,881 1,754 1,725

Performance Ratios:
Return (loss) on average assets:

GAAP. .. 0.70 % 0.73 % 0.52 % 0.51 % (0.13)%
Operating(4).......ooeviiie e 0.96 % 073 % 0.52 % 0.51% 0.13y%
Return (loss) on average equity:
GAAP.. 8.44 % 1237 % 9.28% 772 % (1.26)%
Operating(4)........ovveveeiiiincrie e 11.56 % 12.37 % 9.28% 772 % (1.26)%
Net interest Margin............veevvrneeenerneicevenannenn 345% - 3.17% 324% 330% 3.43%
Loan to deposit ratio(1)........c.ocovniviiirniirineinnns 133.20 % 136.85 % 123.57 % 112.23 % 104.13 %
Efficiency ratio(3):
GAAP . 60.85 % 51.58% 59.04 % 6521 % . 85.84 %
Operating(4)......oooviiiiiiii 4923 % 51.58 % 59.04 % 65.21 % 85.84 %
Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonperforming assets, past due and restructured
loans to total loans(1).........cocoieeniiiiiiiiciiiinns 0.14% 0.27% 021 % 043 % 037 %
Nonperforming assets, past due and restructurzd
loans to total @SSeS........ovvirieriiiiiieiirees 0.12% 0.24 % 0.19% 0.37% 0.30 %
Net charge-offs to average total loans(1)................. 0.07 % 0.12% 0.10% 0.34 % 0.01 %
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans...... 962.74 % 502.84 % 609.35 % 1612.79 % 331.19%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans(1)............... 1.33% 1.33% 1.30% 1.22% 124 %
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data, Continued

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

Capital Ratios:

Average equity t0 average assets............oocvieiiiin 8.36% 5.87 % 5.57% 6.71 % 1032 %
Leverage ratio.........oc.vvivieniiiiiinniieinninniines 11.60 % 11.00 % 6.09 % 6.08 % 8.24 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio...............cociiiininnn 13.60 % 13.40 % 7.78 % 738 % 9.25%
Total risk-based capital ratio.............oooviiieininn 14.90 % 14.60 % 10.24 % 8.63 % 10.43 %
Growth Ratios and Other Data: .
Percentage change in netincome..................oconee 24.89 % 100.10 % 33.78 % n/m n/m
Percentage change in diluted net income per share...... (4.44)% 69.81 % 23.26 % n/m n/m
Percentage change in assets..................ooccceeeiiie 28.34 % 36.81 % 35.50 % 43.68 % 93.01 %
Percentage change in loans(1)..............ooovni 20.75 % 3424 % 39.17% 55.32 % 107.15 %
Percentage change in deposits...........c.ooovvieiinininnn 24.06 % 21.25% 26.51 % 44.08 % 85.42 %
Percentage change in equity...........coveiviiininiininen, 8.53% 151.00 % 933 % 8.17% 0.17)%
Reconciliation of GAAP to Non-GAAP Measures:

Net income (loss), as reported (GAAP).................. 3 2,514 2,013 1,006 752 (119)

Non-operating items:

Impariment on long lived assets, net of income tax.. 930 - - - -
Net operating income (net income (loss), excluding

non-operating items)..........coocovviiiiiiiiiiiiniin $ 3,444 2,013 1,006 752 (119)
Noninterest expense, as reported (GAAP)............... $ 7,856 4,852 3,853 3,379 2,782

Non-operating items:

Impairment on long lived assets........................ 1,500 - - - : -
Operating noninterest expense (noninterest expense,

excluding non-operating items).............cooviuvinine $ 6,356 4,852 3,853 3,379 : 2,782

(1) Includes nonperforming loans.
(2) Adjusted for all years presented giving retroactive effect to a three-for-two common stock split in November 2003.

(3) Computed by dividing noninterest expense by the sum of net interest income on a tax equivalent basis and noninterest

income, net of securities gains or losses.

(4) Return on average assets, return on average equity and the efficiency ratio, on an operating basis, are calculated using
operating earnings and operating noninterest expense and are non-GAAP measures which are further explained in
“General — Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”

As used in the table above, “n/m” means not a meaningful measurement.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion ancl Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We have adopted various accounting policies that govern the application of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States and with general practices within the banking industry in the preparation of our financial
statements. Our significant accounting policies are described in footnote 1 to our audited consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2005.

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by us that have a material impact on
the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities. We consider. these accounting policies to be critical accounting
policies. The judgment and assumptions we use are based on historical experience and other factors, which we believe to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of the nature of the judgment and assumptions we make, actual results
could differ from these judgments and estimates that could have a material impact on the carrying values of our assets and
liabilities and our results of operations.

We believe the allowance for loan losses is the critical accounting policy that requires the most significant
Jjudgment and estimates used in preparation of our consolidated financial statements.. Some of the more critical judgments
supporting the amount of our allowance for loan losses include judgments about the credit worthiness of borrowers, the
estimated value of the underlying collateral, the assumptions about cash flow, determination of loss factors for estimating
credit losses, the impact of current events, and conditions, and other factors impacting the level of probable inherent
losses. Under different conditions or using different assumptions, the actual amount of credit losses incurred by us may
be different from management’s estimates provided in our consolidated financial statements. Refer to the portion of this
discussion that addresses our allowance or loan losses for a more complete discussion of our processes and methodology
for determining our allowance for loan losses.

GENERAL

We were incorporated in March 1999 to organize and serve as the holding company for Greenville First Bank,
N.A. Since we opened our bank in January 2000, we have experienced consistent growth in total assets, loans, deposits,
and shareholders’ equity. We experiercced our first quarterly profit in the third quarter of 2001, and we have been
profitable in each subsequent quarter. We became cumulatively profitable in the third quarter of 2003.

Like most community banks, we derive the majority of our income from interest received on our loans and
investments. Our primary source of fuads for making these loans and investments is our deposits, on which we pay
interest.. Consequently, one of the key measures of our success is our amount of net interest income, or the difference
between the income on our interest-eaming assets, such as loans and investments, and the expense on our interest-bearing
liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. Another key measure is the spread between the yield we earn on these
interest-earning assets and the rate we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities, which is called our net interest spread.

There are risks inherent in all loans, so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb probable losses on
existing loans that may become uncollectible. We maintain this allowance by charging a provision for loan losses against
our operating earnings for each period. We have included a detailed discussion of this process, as well as several tables
describing our allowance for loan losses.

In addition to earning interest on our loans and investments, we earn income through fees and other charges to
our clients. We have also included a discussion of the various components of this noninterest income, as well as of our
noninterest expense.

The operating efficiency ratio represents the percentage of one dollar of operating expense required to be
incurred to earn a full dollar of revenue. We compute our operating efficiency ratio by dividing noninterest expense,
excluding the impairment on long-lived assets, by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income. For the year
ended December 31, 2005, we spent on average $0.49 to earn each $1.00 of revenue.

The following discussion and aralysis also identifies significant factors that have affected our financial position
and operating results during the periods included in the accompanying financial statements. We encourage you to read
this discussion and analysis in conjuncticn with our financial statements and the other statistical information included in
this report.
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Effect of Economic Trends

During the three years ended December 31, 2003 and the six months ended June 30, 2004, our rates on both
short-term or variable rate earning assets and short-term or variable rate interest-bearing liabilities declined primarily as a
result of the actions taken by the Federal Reserve to lower short-term rates. Beginning in July of 2004 and through 20035,
our short-term or variable rate interest-bearing liabilities began to increase as the Federal Reserve began to increase short-
term rates.

During most of 2001 and during 2002, the United States experienced an economic decline. During this period,
the economy was affected by lower returns of the stock markets. Economic data led the Federal Reserve to begin an
aggressive program of reducing rates that moved the Federal Funds rate down 11 times during 2001 for a total reduction
of 475 basis points. During the fourth quarter of 2002 and the first quarter of 2003, the Federal Reserve reduced the
Federal Funds rate down an additional 75 basis points, bringing the Federal Funds rate to its lowest level in 40 years.
During the last six months of 2004 and through 2005, the Federal Reserve increased rates 13 times for a total of 325 basis
points. The Federal Reserve chose to again increase rates 25 basis points at their meeting in January of 2006,

Despite sharply lower short-term rates, stimulus to the economy during 2003 was muted and consumer demand
and business investment activity remained weak. During all of 2003 and substantially all of the six months ended June
30, 2004, the financial markets operated under historically low interest rates. As a result of these unusual conditions,
Congress passed an economic stimulus plan in 2003. During 2004, many economists believed the economy began to
show signs of strengthening and the Federal Reserve began to increase the short-term interest rates. Many economists
believe that the Federal Reserve will continue to increase rates during 2006. The following discussion includes our
analysis of the effect we anticipate these rising interest rates will have on our financial condition. However, no assurance
can be given that the Federal Reserve will actually continue to raise interest rates or that the results we anticipate will
actually occur.

Results of Operations
Income Statement Review

Summary

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $2.5 million, a 24.9% increase from $2.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004. Included in net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 is a non-operating expense
of $930,000, net of taxes, from an impairment charge on long lived assets. Excluding the $930,000 non-operating
expense, net operating income was $3.4 million, an increase of $1.4 million, or 71.1%, from the previous year ended
December 31, 2004.

The $1.4 million increase in net operating income resulted from a $3.4 million increase in net interest income, a
$64,318 increase in noninterest income, a $310,000 reduction in the provision for loan losses offset by a §$1.5 million
increase, excluding the impairment charge, in noninterest expense and $307,209 additional income tax expense. Our
operating efficiency ratio was 49.23% and 51.58% for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Our net income in 2004 increased $1.0 million, or 100.1%, compared to our net income in 2003 of $1.0 million.
The $1.0 million increase in net income resulted from a $2.5 million increase in net interest income, a $339,779 increase
in noninterest income offset by a $260,000 additional provision for loan losses, a $1.0 million increase in noninterest
expense and $617,188 higher income tax expense. Our efficiency ratio was 51.58% and 59.04% for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. ‘

Net Interest Income

Our level of net interest income is determined by the level of earning assets and the management of our net
interest margin. The continuous growth in our loan portfolio is the primary driver of the increase in net interest income.
During the three years ended December 31, 2005, our loan portfolio had increased an average of $62.0 million per year. -
The growth in 2005 was $57.4 million. We anticipate the growth in loans will continue to drive the growth in assets and
the growth in net interest income. However, no assurance can be given that we will be able to contlnue to increase loans
at the same levels we have experienced in the past.
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Our decision to grow the loan portfolio at the current pace created the need for a higher level of capital and the
need to increase deposits and borrowings. This loan growth strategy also resulted in a significant portion of our assets
being in higher earning loans than in lower yielding investments. At December 31, 2005, loans represented 82.4% of
total assets, while investments and fedzral funds sold represented 13.7% of total assets. While we plan to continue our
focus on increasing the loan portfolio, as rates on investment securities begin to rise and additional deposits are obtained,
we also anticipate increasing the size of the investment portfolio.

The historically low interest rate environment in the last three years allowed us to obtain short-term borrowings
and wholesale certificates of deposit at rates that were lower than certificate of deposit rates being offered in our local
market. Therefore, we decided not to begin our retail deposit expansion program until the beginning of 2005. This
funding strategy allowed us to operate :n one location until 2005, maintain a smaller staff, and not incur marketing costs
to advertise deposit rates, which in turn allowed us to focus on the fast growing loan portfolio. At December 31, 2005,
retail deposits represented $172.7 million, or 42.6% of total assets, borrowings represented $107.6 million, or 26.5% of
total assets, and wholesale out-of-market deposits represented $81.4 million, or 20.1% of total assets.

In anticipation of rising interes: rates, we opened one retail deposit office in March and a second in November of
2005. We plan to focus our efforts at these two locations on obtaining low cost transaction accounts that are less affected
by rising rates. Also, in anticipation of rising rates, during 2005, we offered aggressive promotional rates on new
checking accounts and new money market accounts. Based on prior experience, we anticipate the majority of these funds
to be retained at the end of the promotion. Our goal is to increase both the percentage of assets being funded by “in
market” retail deposits and to increase the percentage of low-cost transaction accounts to total deposits. No assurance can
be given that these objectives will be achieved; however, we anticipate that the two additional retail deposit offices will
assist us in meeting these objectives. We also anticipate the current deposit promotion and the opening of the two new
offices will continue to have a negative impact on earnings in the year ending 2006. However, we believe that these two
strategies will provide additional clients in our local market and will provide a lower alternative cost of funding in a
higher or rising interest raté environment, which we believe will increase earnings in future periods.

As more fully discussed in the *“- Market Risk™ and “- Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity” sections below, at
December 31, 2005, 61.0% of our loans had variable rates. Given our high percentage of rate-sensitive loans, our primary
focus during the three years ended December 31, 2005 has been to obtain short-term liabilities to fund our asset growth.
This strategy allows us to manage the imact on our earnings resulting from changes in market interest rates.

Also in anticipation of rising rates, in May 2004 we converted a total of $25.0 million of short-term deposits and
borrowings with a term of less than three months into $25.0 million of deposits and borrowings with a weighted average
life of five years. At December 31, 2005, 72.2% of interest-bearing liabilities had a maturity of less than one year. We
believe that we are positioned to benefit from future increases in short-term rates. At December 31, 2005, we had $62.1
million more assets than liabilities that rejprice within the next three months.

We intend to maintain a capital level for the bank that exceeds the OCC requirements to be classified as a “well
capitalized” bank. To provide the additional capital needed to support our bank’s growth in assets, in 2003 we issued
$6.2 million in junior subordinated debentures in connection with our trust preferred securities offering. During 2004, we
issued 920,000 additional shares of common stock that resulted in $14.9 million of additional capital. In 2005, we issued
an additional $7.2 million in junior subordinated debentures in a second trust preferred securities offering. The company
also has a $4.5 million unused short-terin holding company line of credit that could be utilized to provide additional
capital for the bank if deemed necessary. As of December 31, 2005, the company’s regulatory capital levels were over
$15.5 million in excess of the various wel. capitalized requirements.

In addition to the growth in both assets and liabilities, and the timing of repricing of our assets and liabilities, net
interest income is also affected by the ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities and the changes in
interest rates earned on our assets and interest rates paid on our liabilities.

Our net interest income margin for the three years ended December 31, 2005, exceeded our net interest spread
because we had more interest-earning asvets than interest-bearing liabilities. Average interest-carning assets exceeded
average interest-bearing liabilities by $45.8 million, $29.5 million, and $21.8 million for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The cost of the two additional retail offices is expected to reduce the amount by
which interest-earning assets exceed interest-bearing liabilities.
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During the two years ended December 31, 2004, our rates on both short-term or variable rate earning-assets and
short-term or variable rate interest-bearing liabilities declined primarily as a result of the actions taken by the Federal
Reserve in 2002 and 2003 to lower short-term rates. -

The impact of the Federal Reserve’s actions during the two years ended December 31, 2004, resulted in a decline
in both the yields on our variable rate assets and the rates that we paid for our short-term deposits and borrowings. Our
net interest spread and net interest margins also declined since more of our rate sensitive assets repriced sooner than our
rate sensitive liabilities during the two year period ending December 31, 2004. Our net interest margin for the years
ended December 31, 2004, and 2003 was 3.17% and 3.24%, respectively.

During the last six months of 2004 and the twelve months in 2005, the Federal Reserve increased rates thirteen
times for a total of 325 basis points. The Federal Reserve actions resulted in our net interest margin increasing during both
the second half of 2004 and the 2005 year. As a result of the Federal Reserve’s actions to increase the interest rate
thirteen times during the eighteen months ending December 31, 2005, our rates on both short-term or variable rate
earning-assets and short-term or variable rate interest-bearing liabilities increased during 2005. Our net interest margin
was 3.45% for the year ending 2005 compared to 3.17% for the 2004 year.

We have included a number of unaudited tables to assist in our description of various measures of our financial
performance. For example, the “Average Balances” table shows the average balance of each category of our assets and
liabilities as well as the yield we earned or the rate we paid with respect to each category during 2005, 2004, and 2003. A
review of these tables shows that our loans typically provide higher interest yields than do other types of interest-earning
assets, which is why we direct a substantial percentage of our earning assets into our loan portfolio. Similarly, the
“Rate/Volume Analysis” table helps demonstrate the effect of changing interest rates and changing volume of assets and
liabilities on our financial condition during the periods shown. We also track the sensitivity of our various categories of
assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates, and we have included tables to illustrate our interest rate sensitivity with
respect to interest-earning accounts and interest-bearing accounts. Finally, we have included various tables that provide
detail about our investment securities, our loans, our deposits, and other borrowings.




The following table sets forth information related to our average balance sheet, average yields on assets, and
average costs of liabilities. We derived these yields by dividing income or expense by the average balance of the
corresponding assets or liabilities. We derived average balances from the daily balances throughout the periods indicated.
During the same periods, we had no interest-bearing deposits in other banks or any securities purchased with agreements
to resell. All investments were owned at an original maturity of over one year. Nonaccrual loans are included in earning
assets in the following tables. Loan yields have been reduced to réflect the negative impact on our earnings of loans on
nonaccrual status. The net of capitalized loan costs and fees are amortized into interest income on loans.

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates
For the Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Average Income/  Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/  Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance  Expense Rate

(Dollars in thousands)
Earning assets:

Federal funds sold........ $ 3,129 % 105 332%3 1,842 3 23 1.25%3 1,676 § 18 1.07 %
Investment securities...... 36,873 1,634 443 % 22,585 . 967 428% 12,498 517 4.14%
Loans..........coovvvinnnn 310,317 19,931 6.42 % 248,115 12,975 523% 174,289 9,187 527%
Total earning-assets. . .. 350,319 21,670 6.19% 272,542 13,965 512% 188,463 9,722 5.16 %
Nonearning assets.......... 6,695 4,534 6,295
Total assets.............. $ 357,014 ‘ $ 277,076 $ 194,758
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW accounts............ $ 28,153 % 390 1.39%8 24,552 § 332 135%8 15253 § 127 083 %
Savings & money
market .......ocoeeiienin 48,815 931 1.91 % 43,188 630 1.46 % 22,822 129 0.57 %
Time deposits.............. 129,735 4,715 3.63% 99,420 2,608  2.62% 90,585 2,511 297 %
Total interest-bearing
deposits......oovirinnen 206,703 6,036 292% 167,160 3,570 2.149% 128,660 2,767 215%
FHLB advances........... 74,013 2,548 344 % 54,515 1,204 221 % 27,569 591 2.14 %
Other borrowings. ......... 23,849 1,001 420 % 21,375 543 254 % 10,478 260 248 %
Total interest-bearing
liabilities.................. 304,565 9,585 3.15% 243,050 - 5317 219% 166,707 3,618 217 %
Noninterest bearing ‘
Habilities.................. 22,608 17,756 17,208
Shareholders’ equity....... 29,841 16,270 10,843
Total liabilities and '
shareholders’ equity..... $§ 357,014 $ 277,076 - $ 194,758
Net interest spread......... 3.04% 293% 2.99 %
Net interest income/
MArgiN.....ocvveveeenenn. $_ 12985  345% $ 8,648 3.17% 3 6,104 3.24 %

Our net interest spread was 3.04% for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to 2.93% for the year ended
December 31, 2004 and 2.99% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The net interest spread is the difference between
the yield we earn on our interest-earning assets and the rate we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities.

The net interest margin is calculated as net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets. Our net
interest margin for the period ended December 31, 2005 was 3.45%, compared to 3.17% for the year ended December 31,
2004 and 3.24% for the year ended December 31, 2003. During 2005, interest-earning assets averaged $350.3 million,
compared to $272.5 million in 2004 and $188.5 million in 2003.

The net interest spread and net interest margin declined during the two years ended December 31, 2004 as a
result of the bank having more interest-earning assets than interest-bearing liabilities that repriced as market rates
declined over most of the two year period. The net interest spread and net interest margin began to increase during 2005
as the bank had more interest-earning assets than interest-bearing liabilities that repriced as market rates increased during
the second half of 2004 and the twelve months of 2005. '

Net interest income, the largest component of our income, was $12.1 million, $8.6 million, and $6.1 million, for
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The significant increase in both 2005 and 2004 related
primarily to the net effect of higher levels of both average earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. In 2005 and
2004, average earning assets increased $77.8 million and $84.1 million, respectively. During the same periods, average
interest-bearing liabilities increased $61.5 million and $76.3 million, respectively.
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The $3.4 million increase in net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the same
period in 2004 resulted primarily from a $2.5 million increase related to the impact of higher average earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities during the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the same period in 2004. The
remaining increase is largely a result of the impact of higher interest rates on both interest-earning and interest-bearing
liabilities. The $2.5 million increase in net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the same
period in 2003 resulted from a $2.7 million increase in net interest income due to volume offset by a $120,000 decrease in
net interest income due to rate. The increase in net income was caused by higher average eaming assets and interest-
bearing liabilities, while the decrease in net interest income was related to lower net interest margin.

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $21.7 million, consisting of $19.9 million on loans,
$1.6 million on investments, and $104,414 on federal funds sold. Interest income for the same period ended December
31, 2004 was $14.0 million, consisting of $13.0 million on loans, $966,653 on investments, and $22,751 on federal funds
sold. Interest income for 2003 was $9.7 million, consisting of $9.2 million on loans, $517,005 on investments, and
$18,171 on federal funds sold. Interest on loans for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 represented
92.0%, 92.9% and 94.5%, respectively, of total interest income, while income from investments and federal funds sold
represented 8.0%, 7.1% and 5.5% of total interest income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The high percentage of interest income from loans related to our strategy to maintain a significant portion of
our assets in higher earning loans compared to lower yielding investments. Average loans represented 88.6%, 91.0% and
92.5% of average interest-earning assets for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Included
in interest income on loans for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $604,564, $496,119 and
$349,887, respectively, related to the net amortization of loan fees and capitalized loan origination costs.

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $9.6 million, a 80.3% increase compared to $5.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2004. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, interest expense
consisted of $6.0 million and $3.6 million, respectively, related to deposits and $3.5 million and $1.7 million,
respectively, related to borrowings. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $3.6 million, consisting
of $2.8 million related to deposits and $850,989 related to borrowings. Interest expense on deposits for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 represented 63.0%, 67.2% and 76.5%, respectively, of total interest expense, while
interest expense on borrowings represented 37.0%, 32.8% and 23.5%, respectively, of total interest expense. The smaller
increase in interest expense on deposits compared to the increase in interest on borrowings during the year ended
December 31, 2004 resulted from our decision to delay our retail deposit office expansion program and instead utilize
additional borrowings from both the FHLB, and from the sale of securities under agreements to repurchase with brokers.
During the year ended December 31, 2005, average interest-bearing deposits were higher by $39.5 million than for the
same period in 2004, while FHLB advances and other borrowings $22.0 million higher than for the same period in 2004.
Average interest-bearing deposits were higher by $38.5 million during the vear ended December 31, 2004 than for the
same period 2003, while FHLB advances and other borrowings during 2004 were $37.8 million higher than for the same
period in 2003.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we were able to pledge additional collateral to the FHLB, allowing
us the ability to increase our FHLB borrowings. Both the short-term borrowings related to the sale of securities under
agreements to repurchase and the FHLB advances provide us with the opportunity to obtain low cost funding with various
maturities similar to the maturities on our loans and investments.
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Net interest income can be analyzed in terms of the impact of changing interest rates and changing volume. The
following tables set forth the effect which the varying levels of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and
the applicable rates have had on changes in net interest income for the periods presented.

Rate/Volume Analysis

Years Ended
December 31, 2005 vs. 2004 - December 31, 2004 vs. 2003
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Rate/ Rate/
Volume Rate Volume Total Volume Rate Volume Total

{Dollars in thousands)
Interest income ‘

Loans......covveeviviininnenn $ 3,199 2,998 759 6,956 3,883 (73) (23) 3,787
Investment securities........ 603 39 25 667 417 18 15 450
Federal funds sold............ 16 38 27 81 2 3 - 5

Total interést income. .... 3,818 3,075 811 7,704 4,302 (52) 8) 4,242

Interest expense

Deposits....cocuvvveeeennnnen, 840 1,309 317 2,466 743 44 16 803
FHLB advances.............. 426 676 242 1,344 578 18 17 613
Other borrowings............ 62 355 41 ' 458 270 6 6 282
Total interest expense.... 1,328 2,340 600 4,268 1,591 68 39 1,698
Net interest income.......... $ 2,490 735 211 3,436 2,711 (120) 47) 2,544

Provision for Loan Losses

We have established an allowance for loan losses through a provision for loan losses charged as an expense on
our statement of income. We review our loan portfolio periodically to evaluate our outstanding loans and to measure both
the performance of the portfolio and the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Please see the discussion below under
“Balance Sheet Review - Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses” for a description of the factors we consider in
determining the amount of the provision vve expense each period to maintain this allowance.

Included in the statement of income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 is a noncash
expense related to the provision for lozn losses of $1.0 million, $1.3 million and $1.1 million, respectively. The
additional provision added to our allowance for loan losses in each year resulted in a net increase in the allowance for
loan losses of $772,952, $1.0 million, and $881,001 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The allowance for loan losses did not increase by the entire amount of each of the provisions for loan losses because we
reported net charge-offs of $227,048, $298,505 and $168,999 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The net charge-offs during 2005 represented 0.07% of the average outstanding loan portfolio for the year
ended December 31, 2005. Net charge-offs during 2004 and 2003 represented 0.12% and 0.10%, respectively, of the
average outstanding loan portfolio for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. The increases in the allowance for
each of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, related to our decision to increase the allowance in response
to the $58.2 million, $71.6 million and $58.9 million growth in loans for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The loan loss reserve ‘was $4.5 million, $3.7 million and $2.7 million as of December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively. The allowance fcr loan losses as a percentage of gross loans was 1.33% at both December 31,
2005 and 2004 and 1.30% at December 3., 2003, while the percentage of nonperforming loans and assets to gross loans
was 0.14%, 0.27% and 0.21% at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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Noninterest Income

The following tables set forth information related to our noninterest income.

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Loan feeincome.............cooveniennnn. $ 169,876 146,986 183,932
Service fees on deposit accounts........ 251,644 296,100 251,938
Write-down of real estate owned....... - (2,725) (253,699)
Otherincome........cooovivvivieienienn.. 404,261 321,102 239,513
Total noninterest income............... $ 825,781 761,463 421,684

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $825,781, an increase of $64,318 or 8.4%
compared to noninterest income of $761,463 during the same period in 2004. Noninterest income for the year ended
December 31, 2003 was $421,684. The $339,779 increase in 2004 was primarily related to a $253,699 write-down on
real estate that was previously acquired in foreclosure.

Loan fee income consists primarily of late charge fees and mortgage origination fees we receive on residential
loans funded and closed by a third party. Loan fees were $169,876 and $146,986 for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The $22,890 increase relates primarily to a $18,971 increase in mortgage origination fees. We
received $35,562 of mortgage origination fees in 2005 compared to $16,591 in 2004. We anticipate that the level of
mortgage origination fees will remain stable as the mortgage refinancing business has declined due to higher mortgage
rates currently being offered. The remaining increase is due to a net increase of $3,919 in late fees and other related loan
fees 2005 compared to 2004.

Income from loan fees decreased by $36,946 to $146,986 for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $183,932
for the same period in 2003. The decrease relates primarily to the $90,467 reduction in mortgage origination fees. We
received $16,591 of mortgage origination fees in 2004 compared to $107,058 in 2003. As a result of our larger loan
portfolio, late fees and other related loan fees increased $53,521 in 2004 compared to 2003.

Service fees on deposits consist primarily of service charges on our checking, money market, and savings
accounts and the fee income received from client non-sufficient funds (“NSF”) transactions. Deposit fees were $251,644
and $296,100 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. While the number of client accounts continues to
grow, the $44,456 decrease is primarily related to a significant amount of NSF fees incurred by and charged to one individual
customer in the prior year. NSF income was $151,459 and $188,880 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, representing 60.2% of total service fees on deposits in 2005 compared to 63.8% of total service fees on deposits in
2004. In addition, service charges on deposit accounts decreased to $82,950 from $93,024 for the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The lower service charges are a result of an increase in the earnings credit paid on business
checking accounts which offsets the service fees that would have been charged on these accounts.

Deposit fees were $296,100 and $251,938 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
additional $44,162 of income related to both higher service charges and an increase in NSF transactions which resulted
from the larger number of client accounts. NSF income was $188,880 and $160,260 for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively, representing 63.8% of total service fees on deposits in 2004 compared to 63.6% of total
service fees on deposits in 2003.

Other income consists primarily of fees received on debit and credit card transactions, income from sales of
checks, and the fees received on wire transfers. Other income was $404,261 and $321,102 for the years ended December
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The $83,159 increase resulted primarily from an increase in the volume of ATM
transactions for which we receive fees. The ATM transaction fees were $350,429 and $290,143 for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The ATM transaction fees represented 86.7% and 90.4% of total other
income for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Included in noninterest data processing and
related costs was $278,936 and $252,581 related to corresponding transaction costs associated with ATM transaction fees
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The net impact of the fees received and the related cost of
the ATM transactions on earnings for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $71,493 and $37,562,

respectively.




s

QOther income was $239,513 for the year ended December 31, 2003. The $81,589 increase in 2004 from 2003
resulted primarily from an increase in the volume of ATM transactions for which we receive fees. The ATM transaction
fees were $290,143 and $213,844 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The ATM transaction
fees represented 90.4% and 89.3% of total other income for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Included in noninterest data processing and related costs was $252,581 and $201,970 related to corresponding transaction
costs associated with ATM transaction fees for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The net
impact of the fees received and the related cost of the ATM transactions on eamings for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003 was $37,562 and $11,874, respectively.

Noninterest Expenses
The following tables set forth information related to our noninterest expenses.

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Compensation and benefits............ $ 3,340,402 2,497,445 1,983,204
Professional fees..........o.ooiiinnl. 303,986 213,168 175,126
Marketing........cooovevivininiinnnn, 439,946 292,043 159,486
INSUIANCE. ... viit i i e eieciinnees 152,761 128,978 110,219
OCCupancy.....ccovveveeineinninennn. 799,267 603,033 587,992
Data processing and related costs.... 919,379 813,097 625,779
Telephone.........oocviviiiinniinn, 55,972 32,216 22,097
Impairment of long lived assets...... 1,500,000 - -
Other.......ocoivieieiiii, 343,667 273,315 188,946

Total noninterest expense............ $ 7,855,380 4,853,295 3,852,849

We incurred noninterest expenses of $7.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to $4.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Of the $3.0 million increase, 50% or $1.5 million was related to the
impairment of long lived assets. Noninterest expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003 were $3.9 million. Average
interest-earning assets increased 28.5% and 44.6% during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
while general and administrative expensz, excluding the one-time $1.5 million impairment charge, increased by 30.9%
and 26.0%, respectively, for the same periods.

The $1.5 million impairment charge relates to our decision to exercise our option to purchase our main office
and headquarters building in December of 2005. We paid approximately $3.1 million for the building, a price which was
calculated based on a pre-determined formula. Purchasing the building as compared to continuing to lease the building
will provide a cost benefit to the Compary of approximately $90,000 per year. We also engaged an outside appraiser to
evaluate the market value of our building. This analysis concluded that the building’s market value, including leasehold
improvements, was approximately $2.2 million, whereas the purchase price and leasehold improvements totaled
approximately $3.7 million, providing for an impairment charge of $1.5 million. In addition, we have decided to move
our current main office and headquarters to a new location approximately one mile away to provide us with additional
space. The cost to continue to operate a branch facility at the existing location would be approximately $300,000,
annually. Qur move to the new building will provide an additional savings of approximately $100,000, annually,
primarily due to a reduction in rent from $25.50 per square foot to $18.00 per square foot. We are in the process of
actively marketing our building for sale.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, compensation and benefits, occupancy, data processing and related
costs, and the impairment of long lived assets accounted for 83.5% of the total noninterest expense compared to 80.6% in
2004 and 83.0% in 2003.
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The following tables set forth information related to our compensation and benefits.

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Base compensation...................... $ 2,353,952 1,708,492 1,396,373
Incentive compensation................. 594,925 570,049 420,000
Total compensation.................... 2,948,877 2,278,541 1,816,373
Benefits.......cooooviieiiiiiiiins 525,715 341,124 285,941
Capitalized loan origination costs..... (134,190) (122,220) (119,110)
Total compensation and benefits.... § 3,340,402 2,497,445 1,983,204

Compensation and benefits expense was $3.3 million, $2.5 million and $2.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Compensation and benefits represented 42.5% of our total noninterest
expense for the year ended December 31, 2005, and 51.5% of our total noninterest expense for the same period in both
2004 and 2003. The $842,957 increase in compensation and benefits expense in 2005 compared to 2004 is primarily
related to a $645,460 increase in base compensation and $184,591 of additional benefits cost. In addition, incentive
compensation expense increased by $24,876, offset by an increase of $11,970 in loan origination compensation expense,
which is required to be capitalized and amortized over the life of the loans as a reduction of loan interest income.
Compensation and benefits expense increased by $314,241 in 2004 compared to 2003. The increase is a result of
$312,119 additional base compensation, $150,049 in additional incentive compensation, and $55,183 in higher benefits
costs, offset by an increase of $3,110 in loan origination compensation expense.

The $645,460 increase in base compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the
same period in 2004, related to the cost of 14 additional employees as well as annual salary increases. Seven of the new
employees relate to the staff that was hired for the new retail offices that opened in the first and fourth quarters of 2005.
The remaining seven employees were hired primarily to support the growth in both loans and deposit operations. The
$312,119 increase in base compensation expense in 2004, related to the addition of 10 employees who were needed to
support the growth in earning assets and related deposit expenses, plus the impact of annual salary increases.

Incentive compensation represented 20.2%, 25.0%, and 23.1% of total compensation for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The incentive compensation expense recorded for the years 2005,
2004 and 2003 represented an accrual of the portion of the estimated incentive compensation earned during the respective
year. ’

Benefits expense increased $184,591 in the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2004 and $55,183 in 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. Benefits expense represented

17.8%, 15.0%, and 15.7% of the total compensation for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively.

The following tables set forth information related to our data processing and related costs.

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Data processing CostS........o.ovvvvirininnnnn $ 473,013 420,588 292,526
ATM transaction eXpense..................... 278,936 252,581 201,970
Courier eXpense. ......ooveivieireiiiiniiennn 81,214 74,166 61,826
Other expenses..........cccoevviiinininn, 86,216 65,762 69,457
Total data processing and related costs.... § 919,379 813,097 625,779

Data processing and related costs were $919,379, $813,097 and $625,779 for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2005, our data processing costs for our core
processing system increased by $52,425 to $473,013 compared to $420,588 for the same period in 2004. Data processing
costs for our core processing system were $292,526 for the year ended December 31, 2003. We have contracted with an
outside computer service company to provide our core data processing services.
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Data processing costs increased $52,425, or 12.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 and $128,062, or
43.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2004 when compared to the same periods in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
increases in costs were caused by the higher number of loan and deposit accounts. A significant portion of the fee
charged by the third party processor is directly related to the number of loan and deposit accounts and the related number
of transactions.

We receive ATM transaction income from transactions performed by our clients. Since we also outsource this
service, we are charged related transaction fees from our ATM service provider. ATM transaction expense was $278,936,
$252,581 and $201,970 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The increase relates to the
higher transaction volume during the respective periods. ‘

Occupancy expense represented 10.2%, 12.4% and 15.3% of total noninterest expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Occupancy expense increased $196,234 to $799,267 for the year ended
December 31, 2005 from $603,033 for the same period in 2004. The increase resulted primarily from increased rent
expense and the increased depreciation expenses related to opening our Parkway and Augusta Road offices. During 2004,
occupancy expense increased only $15,041 from $587,992 for the year ended December 31, 2003.

The $1.5 million impairment on long lived assets charge for the year ended December 31, 2005 is related to the
purchase of our Haywood Road office building. On December 30, 2005, we purchased the main office building for $3.1
million and immediately thereafter recorded a $1.5 million write-down on the valuation of the purchased building in
accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.” The $1.5 million impairment is based on various
assumptions related to our ability to either sell or lease the building at various lease rates. The actual results of our ability
to either sell or lease the building could significantly differ from the assumption used in the impairment calculation.

The remaining $356,612 increase in noninterest expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the
same period in 2004, resulted primarily rom increases of $90,818 in professional fees, $147,903 in marketing costs,
$23,783 in insurance expenses, and $94,108 in telephone and other expenses. A significant portion of the increase in
professional fees related to additional lega. and accounting fees related to new SEC reporting requirements. The increase
in marketing expenses related to expanding our market awareness in the Greenville market, while a significant portion of
the increase in other expenses was due to increased costs of postage and office supplies, additional staff education and
training, and higher dues and subscription costs

Contributing to the increase in noninterest expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the same
period in 2003 were increases of $38,042 in professional fees, $132,557 in marketing costs, $18,759 in insurance
expenses, and $84,369 in other expenses. A significant portion of the increase in professional fees related to additional
audit expenses. The increase in marketing expenses related to expanding our market awareness in the Greenville market,
while a significant portion of the increase in other expenses was due to increased costs of postage and office supplies,
additional staff education and training, and higher dues and subscription costs.

Income tax expense was $1.5 million, $1.2 million and $616,534 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003. Our effective tax rate was 38% for each of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003.

Balance Sheet Review
General

At December 31, 2005, we had total assets of $405.3 million, consisting principally of $334.0 million in loans,
$36.1 million in investments, $19.4 million in federal funds sold, and $6.2 million in cash and due from banks. Our
liabilities at December 31, 2005 totaled $374.8 million, consisting principally of $254.1 million in deposits, $79.5 million
in FHLB advances, $14.7 million of short-tenn borrowings, $7.8 million of official checks outstanding, and $13.4 million
of junior subordinated debentures. At Decem’er 31, 2005, our shareholders” equity was $30.5 million.

Federal Funds Sold

At December 31, 2005, our $19.4 mullion in short-term investments in federal funds sold on an overnight basis
comprised 4.8% of total assets, compared to $1.4 million, or 0.4% of total assets, at December 31, 2004. As a result of
the historically low yields paid for federal funds sold during 2004, we maintained a lower than normal level of federal
funds during 2004. In addition, the $6.4 million increase in official checks outstanding caused our federal funds sold to
be higher than normal at December 31, 2005.
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Investments

At December 31, 2005, the $36.1 million in our investment securities portfolio represented approximately 8.9%
of our total assets. We held U.S. Government agency securities, municipal securities, and mortgage-backed securities
with a fair value of $30.0 million and an amortized cost of $30.9 million for an unrealized loss of $864,088. As a result
of the strong growth in our loan portfolio and the historical low fixed rates that were available during the last two and
one-half years, we have maintained a lower than normal level of investments. As rates on investment securities rise and
additional deposits are obtained, we anticipate increasing the size of the investment portfolio.

Contractual maturities and yields on our investments at December 31, 2005 are shown in the following table.
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. At December 31, 2005, we had no securities with a maturity of

one to five years.
Less than One Year Five to Ten Years Over Ten Years Total
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
(Dollars in thousands)

Available for Sale

Federal agencies.............coccee. $ 1,012 549%$ - -5 -$ 1,012 5.49 %

State and political subdivisions... - - . 1292 4.00% 1292 4.00%

Mortgage-backed securities....... - - 1,186 4.64 % 7,821 4.42 % 9,007 4.44 %
Tt $ 1012 549%S __ LI86  464%$ _ 9113  436%S$ _ 11311 449%

Held to Maturity

Mortgage-backed securities....... $ - -3 576 3.78%$ 18,769 455%$ 19,345 4.53 %

At December 31, 2005, our investments included securities issued by Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, and Federal National Mortgage Association with carrying values of $1.1 million, $4.1
million, and $24.3 million, respectively.

Other investments at December 31, 2005 consisted of Federal Reserve Bank stock with a cost of $863,700,
investments in Greenville First Statutory Trust I and II of $186,000 and $217,000, respectively, and Federal Home Loan
Bank stock with a cost of $4.2 million. At December 31, 2004, we owned Federal Reserve Bank stock with a cost of
$485,150, Federal Home Loan Bank stock with a cost of $3.2 million, and an investment in Greenville First Statutory
Trust I of $186,000.

The amortized costs and the fair value of our investments at December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 are shown in
the following table.

2005 2004 2003
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(Dollars in thousands)

Available for Sale
Federal agencies...........coocveennicnonnnn, $ 1,005 1,012 1,014 1,053 1,022 1,098
State and political subdivisions ............. 1,292 1,292 - - - -
Mortgage-backed securities.................. 9,242 9,007 11,070 11,107 2,460 2,531

Total.. oo 3 11,539 11,311 12,084 12,160 3,482 3,629
Held to Maturity
Mortgage-backed securities.................. $ 19,345 18,709 13,139 13,089 9,834 9,761
Loans

Since loans typically provide higher interest yields than other types of interest-eaming assets, a substantial
percentage of our earning assets are invested in our loan portfolio. Average loans for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 were $310.3 million and $248.1 million, respectively. Before allowance for loan losses, total loans outstanding
at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $338.5 million and $280.3 million, respectively.

The principal component of our loan portfolio is loans secured by real estate mortgages. Most of our real estate
loans are secured by residential or commercial property. We do not generally originate traditional long term residential
mortgages, but we do issue traditional second mortgage residential real estate loans and home equity lines of credit. We
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obtain a security interest in real estate whenever possible, in addition to any other available collateral. This collateral is
taken to increase the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan. Generally, we limit the loan-to-value ratio on loans
we make to 80%. Due to the short time our portfolio has existed, the current mix may not be indicative of the ongoing
portfolio mix. We attempt to mainiain a relatively diversified loan portfolio to help reduce the risk inherent in
concentration in certain types of collateral.

The following table summarizss the composition of our loan portfolio for each of the five years ended December

31, 2005.
2005 2004 2603 2002 2001
% of % of % of % of % of
Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Real Estate:
Commercial
Owner Occupied....... $ 72,222 213% $ 54,323 194% § 39,301 188% $ 22,653 151% § 16,533 17.1 %
Nonowner occupied... 96,950 28.7% 76,284 27.2% 53,898 258% 43,077 287 % 22,813 23.6%
Construction............ 14,661 43 % 12,212 44 % 10,878 52 % 4,008 27 % 8,292 8.6 %
Total commercial
real estate........... 183,833 543 % 142,819 51.0% 104,077 49.8 % 69,738 46.5 % 47,638 493 %
Consumer
Residential.............. 50,756 15.0 % 46,240 16.5 % 35,823 17.2 % 25,500 17.0 % 12,899 13.4%
Home equity . 37,254 11.0% 35,085 12.5% 24,278 11.6 % 18,069 121% 8,937 93 %
Construction 5,409 1.6 % 5,938 2.1% 4,365 21% 4,200 2.8% 3,972 4.1 %
Total consumer
real estate.......... 93,419 27.6 % 87,263 311 % 64,466 309 % 47,769 31.9% 25,808 26.8%
Total real estate....... 277,252 81.9% 230,082 82.1% 168,543 80.7 % 117,507 784 % 73,446 76.1 %
Commercial business..... 53,753 15.9% 44,872 16.0 % 36,107 17.3 % 28,192 18.8 % 20,529 213 %
Consumer - other......... 8,211 24% 6,035 2.1% 4,662 22% 4591 31 % 2,813 29%
Deferred origination '
fees, net..........co..... (685) . (0.2)% (642) (0.2% (530) 0.2)% (387) 0.3)% (256) _ (0.3)%
Total gross loans, net
of deferred fees......... 338,531 100.0 % 280,347 100.0 % 208,782 100.0 % 149,903 100.0 % 96,532 100.0 %
Less —allowance for I
loan losses.............. (4,490) G717 (2.705) (1,824) (1,192)
Total loans, net......... L% 334,041 $ 276,630 $ 206,077 $ 148,079 S 95,340
Maturities and Sensitivity of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates
The information in the following tables is based on the contractual maturities of individual loans, including loans
which may be subject to renewal at their contractual maturity. Renewal of such loans is subject to review and credit
approval, as well as modification of terms upon maturity. Actual repayments of loans may differ from the maturities
reflected below because borrowers have: the right to prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties.
The following table summarizzs the loan maturity distribution by type and related interest rate characteristics at
December 31, 2005,
After one
One year but within After five
or less five years years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate- mortgage.............ooevvie e h) 48,762 173,373 35,047 257,182
Real estate- construction.......................... ' 9,359 6,708 4,003 20,070
Total real estate...........cooevvnivinenenin 58,121 180,081 39,050 277,252
Commercial........cooviiiiiiniii, 31,849 21,564 340 53,753
Consumer- other...........o.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiine . . 4,210 3,689 312 8,211
Deferred origination fees, net..................... (188) (399) (98) (685)
Total gross loan, net of
deferred fees..........ocoevviniiiiin $ 93,992 204,935 39,604 338,531

Loans maturing — after one year with
Fixed interestrates.................cocoeene
Floating interest rates.................cocounen

95,346
149,193

©“a oo
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Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

We have established an allowance for loan losses through a provision for loan losses charged to expense on our
statement of income. The allowance for loan losses represents an amount which we believe will be adequate to absorb
probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. Our judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses is based on a number of assumptions about future events, which we believe to be reasonable, but which may
or may not prove to be accurate. Our determination of the allowance for loan losses is based on evaluations of the
collectibility of loans, including consideration of factors such as the balance of impaired loans, the quality, mix, and size
of our overall loan portfolio, economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, the amount and quality
of collateral securing the loans, our historical loan loss experience, and a review of specific problem loans. We also
consider subjective issues such as changes in the lending policies and procedures, changes in the local/national economy,
changes in volume or type of credits, changes in volume/severity of problem loans, quality of loan review and board of
director oversight, concentrations of credit, and peer group comparisons. Due to our limited operating history, the
provision for loan losses has been made primarily as a result of our assessment of general loan loss risk compared to
banks of similar size and maturity. Periodically, we adjust the amount of the allowance based on changing circumstances.
We charge recognized losses to the allowance and add subsequent recoveries back to the allowance for loan losses. There
can be no assurance that charge-offs of loans in future periods will not exceed the allowance for loan losses as estimated
at any point in time or that provisions for loan losses will not be significant to a particular accounting period.

The following table summarizes the activity related to our allowance for loan losses for the five years ended
December 31, 2005.

December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance, beginning of year........... $ 3,717 2,705 1,824 1,192 600
Charge-offs
Commercial...................co.eee 27 (70) (18) (410) -
Real estate-construction............ - - - - -
Real estate-mortgage............... (229) (225) (118) - -
Consumer.................. e (34) (40) (37 8 8
Total charge-offs.................. (290) (335) (173) (418) (8)
Recoveries
Commercial...........c.oovvvennnnn, 1 13 - - -
Real estate-construction............ - - - - -
Real estate-mortgage............... 60 2 - - -
Consumer..........cccovvvveenenennn. 2 22 4 - -
Total recoveries.................. - 63 37 4 - -
Net loans charged-off.................. $ (227) (298) (169) (418) (8)
Provision for loan losses.............. 1,000 1,310 1,050 1,050 600
Balance, end of year................... $ 4,490 3,717 2,705 1,824 1,192
Net charge-offs to average loans.... 0.07 % 012% 0.10 % 0.34 % 0.01 %

We do not allocate the allowance for loan losses to specific categories of loans. Instead, we evaluate the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on an overall portfolio basis utilizing our credit grading system which we apply
to each loan. We have retained an independent consultant to review the loan files on a test basis to confirm the grading of
each loan.
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Nonperforming Assets

The following table shows the nonperforming assets, percentages of net charge-offs, and the related percentage
of allowance for loan losses for the five years ended December 31, 2005. All loans over 90 days past due are on and
included in loans on nonaccrual. ? .

2005 - 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
Loans over 90 days past due...................ooeee $ 351 - 683 396 3 360
Loans on nonaccrual: ‘ : '
Mortgage. ... 419 339 150 - 360
Commercial.........coovviiiiii 41 386 224 100 -
CONSUITIET . ..ot veee e et e 6 14 70 13 -
Total nonaccrual loans.............c...coeveeeen. 466 739 444 113 360
Total of nonperforming loans................... 466 739 444 113 360
Other nonperforming assets...............c..coeenen. - 28 - 525 -
Total nonperforming assets..................... 3 466 767 444 638 360
Percentage of total assets..............ocovvvvvninnnn 0.12 % 0.24 % 0.19% 037 % 0.30%
Percentage of nonperforming loans and
assets to gross loans..........ovevevveinininents 0.14 % 027 % 021 % 0.43 % 0.37%
Allowance for loan losses to gross loans............ 133 % 1.33 % 1.30% 1.22% 1.24%
Net charge-offs to average loans..................... 0.07 % 0.12 % 0.10 % 0.34 % 0.01 %

At December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, the allowance for loan losses was $4.5 million and $3.7 million,
respectively, or 1.33% of outstanding loans. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, our net charged-off
loans were $227,048 and $298,503, respectively.

At December 31, 2005, noniccrual loans represented 0.11% of total assets. At December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004, we had $466,333 and $739,126 of loans, respectively, on nonaccrual status. Generally, a loan is
placed on nonaccrual status when it becomes 90 days past due as to principal or interest, or when we believe, after
considering economic and business coriditions and collection efforts, that the borrower’s financial condition is such that

collection of the loan is doubtful. A payment of interest on a loan that is classified as nonaccrual is recognized as income
when received.

While our nonperforming assets, including loans on nonaccrual, and loans over 90 days past due have decreased
from 2004, we have allowed our allowance for loan losses as a percentage of gross loans to remain at a higher level in
order to provide for certain risks associated with loans with high loan-to-value ratios, loan concentrations, and large
credits which are in our current loan postfolio.

The amount of foregone interzst income on the nonaccrual loans for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 was approximately $23,000 and $9,200, respectively. The amount of interest income recorded in 2005 for loans
that were on nonaccrual at December 31, 2005 was approximately $6,000, and was approximately $10,000 in 2004.

As of December 31, 2005, we were not aware of any potential problem loans that were not already categorized
as nonaccrual, past due, or restructured, that had borrower credit problems causing us to have serious doubt as to the
ability of the borrower to comply with the present loan repayment terms.

Deposits and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Our primary source of funds fior loans and investments is our deposits, advances from the FHLB, and short-term

repurchase agreements. National and local market trends over the past several years suggest that consumers have moved
an increasing percentage of discretionary savings funds into investments such as annuities, stocks, and fixed income
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mutual funds. Accordingly, it has become more difficult to attract deposits. We have chosen to obtain a portion of our
certificates of deposits from areas outside of our market. The deposits obtained outside of our market area generally have
lower rates than rates being offered for certificates of deposits in our local market. We also utilize out-of-market deposits
in certain instances to obtain longer-term deposits than are readily available in our local market. We anticipate that the
amount of out-of-market deposits will decline after the additional retail deposit offices opened in 2005 mature. The
amount of out-of-market deposits was $81.4 million at December 31, 2005 and $77.3 at December 31, 2004.

We anticipate being able to either renew or replace these out-of-market deposits when they mature, although we
may not be able to replace them with deposits with the same terms or rates. Our loan-to-deposit ratio was 133%, 137%,
and 124% at, December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

The following table shows the average balance amounts and the average rates paid on deposits held by us for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003.

2005 2004 2003
Amount  Rate Amount  Rate Amount  Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Noninterest bearing demand deposits... $ 19,083 -% % 15,081 -% 8 14,852 - %
Interest bearing demand deposits. ........ 28,153 1.39% 24,552  1.35%% 15,253  0.83%
Money market accounts................... 47,527 1.95% 41,892  1.49% 21,029  0.61%
Savings acCOUNtS. ......o.vvevininernerinen. 1,288 37% 1,296  0.34% 1,793  0.41%
Time deposits less than $100,000 ....... 25291  3.36% 23,611 2.48% 3,171 3.09%
Time deposits greater than $100,000.... 104,444  3.70% 75,809  2.67% 59,414  2.59%
Total deposits.......cceveveevevenininenn, $ 225786 2.67% $ 182,241 196% $ 143,512 1.93%

Core deposits, which exclude time deposits of $100,000 or more and wholesale time deposits, provide a
relatively stable funding source for our loan portfolio and other earning assets. Our core deposits were $125.9 million,
$107.8 million, and $89.9 million at December 31, 2005, December 31, 2004, and December 31, 2003, respectively.

All of our time deposits are certificates of deposits. The maturity distribution of our time deposits of $100,000
or more at December 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Three months or 1€8S........ooovoviviviiineeeinannnnn. $ 15,680 3 19,328
Over three through six months....................... 23,965 14,050
Over six through twelve months..................... 27,132 21,302
Overtwelvemonths............ocoooiiiiiiniiinnn, 49,878 29,339
TOMAL. ..ol $ 116,655 $ 84,019

The increase in the amount of time deposits over $100,000 or more for the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to the year ended December 31, 2004 resulted primarily from the utilization of deposits that were obtained
outside of our primary market.

Capital Resources

Total shareholders’ equity was $30.5 million at December 31, 2005 and $28.1 million at December 31, 2004.
The $2.4 million increase between 2005 and 2004 primarily resulted from $2.5 million of net income earned during 2005.

The following table shows the return on average assets (net income divided by average total assets), return on
average equity (net income divided by average equity), and equity to assets ratio (average equity divided by average total
assets) for the three years ended December 31, 2005. Since our inception, we have not paid cash dividends.

2005 2004 2003
Return on average assets............... 0.70% 0.73% 0.52%
Return on average equity.............. 8.44% 12.37% 9.28%
Equity to assets ratio................... 8.36% 5.87% 5.57%
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The Federal Reserve and bank: regulatory agencies require bank holding companies and financial institutions to
maintain capital at adequate levels based on a percentage of assets and off-balance sheet exposures, adjusted for risk
weights ranging from 0% to 100%. Tte Federal Reserve guidelines contain an exemption from the capital requirements
for “small bank holding companies.” On February 27, 2006, the' Federal-Reserve approved a new rule expanding the
definition of a “small bank holding company.” The new definition will include bank holding companies with less than
$500 million in total assets. Bank holding companies will not qualify under the new definition if they (i} are engaged in
significant nonbanking activities either directly or indirectly through a subsidiary, (i1) conduct significant off-balance
sheet activities, including securitizations or managing or administering assets for third parties, or (iii} have a material
amount of debt or equity securities (including trust preferred securities) outstanding that are registered with the SEC. The
new rule will be effective on March 30, 2006. Although we have less than $500 million in assets, it is unclear at this
point whether we otherwise meet the requirements for qualifying as a “small bank holding company.” According to the
Federal Reserve Board, the revision of the criterion to exclude any bank holding company that has outstanding a material
amount of SEC-registered debt or equity securities reflects the fact that SEC registrants typically exhibit a degree of
complexity of operations and access to multiple funding sources that warrants excluding them from the new policy
statement and subjecting them to the capital guidelines. In the adopting release for the new rule, the Federal Reserve
Board stated that what constitutes a "material" amount of SEC-registered debt or equity for a particular bank holding
company depends on the size, activitics and condition of the relevant bank holding company. In lieu of using fixed
measurable parameters of materiality across all institutions, the rule provides the Federal Reserve with supervisory
flexibility in determining, on a case-by-case basis, the significance or materiality of activities or securities outstanding
such that a bank holding company should be excluded from the policy statement and subject to the capital guidelines.
Prior to adoption of this new rule, our holding company was subject to these capital guidelines, as it had more than $150
million in assets. Until the Federal Reserve provides further guidance on the new rules, it will be unclear whether our
holding company will be subject to the exemption from the capital requirements for small bank holding companies.
Regardless, our bank falls under these minimum capital requirements as set per bank regulatory agencies.

Under the capital adequacy guidelines, regulatory capital is classified into two tiers. These guidelines require an
institution to maintain a certain level of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital to risk-weighted assets. Tier 1 capital consists of
common shareholders’ equity, excluding the unrealized gain or loss on securities available for sale, minus certain
intangible assets. In determining the aniount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including certain off-balance sheet assets,
are multiplied by a risk-weight factor of' 0% to 100% based on the risks believed to be inherent in the type of asset. Tier 2
capital consists of Tier 1 capital plus the general reserve for loan losses, subjéct to certain limitations. We are also
required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on total average assets, which is known as the Tier 1 leverage ratio.

At both the holding company and bank level, we are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. To be considered “adequately capitalized” under these capital guidelines,
we must maintain a minimum total risk-based capital of 8%, with at least 4% being Tier 1 capital. In addition, we must
maintain a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of at least 4%. To be considered “well-capitalized,” we must maintain total
risk-based capital of at least 10%, Tier 1 capital of at least 6%, and a leverage ratio of at least 5%.

The following table sets forth the holding company’s and the bank’s various capital ratios at December 31, 2005,
2004, and 2003. For all periods, the bank was considered “well capitalized” and the holding company met or exceeded its
applicable regulatory capital requirements.

2005 2004 2003
Holding Holding Holding
Compuny Bank Company Bank Company Bank
Total risk-based capital....... 14.9 % 13.7 % 14.6 % 13.7% 10.2 % 10.1 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital...... 13.6 % 12.4 % 13.4 % 12.4 % 7.8 % 8.8 %
Leverage capital............... 11.6 % 10.5 % 11.0 % 10.2 % 6.1 % 7.7 %

38




Borrowings

The following table outlines our various sources of borrowed funds during the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004, and 2003, the amounts outstanding at the end of each period, at the maximum point for each component during the
periods and on average for each period, and the average interest rate that we paid for each borrowing source. The
maximum month-end balance represents the high indebtedness for each component of borrowed funds at any time during
each of the periods shown.

Period- Maximum
Ending End Month-end Average for the Period
Balance Rate Balance Balance Rate

At or for the Year (Dollars in thousands)
Ended December 31, 2005
Federal Home Loan Bank advances......... $ 79,500 384% $ 81,500 $ 74,013 3.44 %
Securities sold under agreement to

TEPUICHASE. ... ovvie it 14,680 432 % 18,947 16,710 335%
Federal funds purchased....................... - 4.60 % - 755 293 %
Junior subordinated debentures............... 13,403 6.74 % 13,403 6,384 6.57 %
At or for the Year
Ended December 31, 2004
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.......... $ 60,660 282% $ 58,400 § 54,515 221%
Securities sold under agreement to

TePUrchase. ....ooovveniiiiiiiiiii e, 13,100 225% 14,637 13,643 1.43 %
Federal funds purchased....................... - 244 % - 332 1.46 %
Correspondent bank line of credit............ - 4.40 % 3,000 1,214 3.38%
Junior subordinated debentures............... 6,186 5.65 % 6,186 6,186 4.88 %
At or for the Year
Ended December 31, 2003
Federal Home Loan Bank advances......... $ 32,500 200% $ 40,000 $ 27,569 2.14%
Securities sold under agreement to

TEPUIChASE. ...oveeriitii e, 9,297 1.12 % 9,865 5,689 1.23 %
Federal funds purchased....................... - 1.40 % 1,556 450 1.56 %
Correspondent bank line of credit............ - 3.12% 3,000 1,332 3.23%
Junior subordinated debentures............... 6,186 4.56 % 6,186 3,107 4.54 %

Effect of Inflation and Changing Prices

The effect of relative purchasing power over time due to inflation has not been taken into account in our
consolidated financial statements. Rather, our financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Unlike most industrial companies, our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary in nature. Therefore, the
effect of changes in interest rates will have a more significant impact on our performance than will the effect of changing
prices and inflation in general. In addition, interest rates may generally increase as the rate of inflation increases,
although not necessarily in the same magnitude. As discussed previously, we seek to manage the relationships between
interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide rate fluctuations, including those resulting from
inflation.

Off-Balance Sheet Risk

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a client as long as the client has not violated any
material condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 2005, unfunded commitments to extend credit were
$70.8 million, of which approximately $27.6 million was at fixed rates and $43.2 million was at variable rates. A
significant portion of the unfunded commitments related to consumer equity lines of credit. Based on historical
experience, we anticipate that a significant portion of these lines of credit will not be funded. We evaluate each client’s
credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by us upon extension
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of credit, is based on our credit evaluation of the borrower. The type of collateral varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and commercial and residential real estate.

At December 31, 2005, there was a $3.8 million commitment under letters of credit. The credit risk and
collateral involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to clients.
Since most of the letters of credit are expected to expire without bemg drawn upon, they do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements.

Except as disclosed in this document, we are not involved in off-balance sheet contractual relationships,
unconsolidated related entities that have off-balance sheet arrangements or transactions that could result in liquidity needs
or other commitments that significantly impact earnings.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates, which principally arises from
interest rate risk inherent in our lending, investing, deposit gathering, and borrowing activities. Other types of market
risks, such as foreign currency exchange rate risk and commodity price risk, do not generally arise in the normal course of
our business.

We actively monitor and manage our interest rate risk exposure principally by measuring our interest sensitivity
“gap,” which is the positive or negative: dollar difference between assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate
repricing within a given period of time. Interest rate sensitivity can be managed by repricing assets or liabilities, selling
securities available for sale, replacing an asset or liability at maturity, or adjusting the interest rate during the life of an
asset or liability. Managing the amount of assets and liabilities repricing in this same time interval helps to hedge the risk
and minimize the impact on net interest income of rising or falling interest rates. We generally would benefit from
increasing market rates of interest when we have an asset-sensitive gap position and generally would benefit from
decreasing market rates of interest when we are liability-sensitive.

Approximately 61.0% of our lcans were variable rate loans at December 31, 2005 and we were asset sensitive
during most of the year ended December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2005, we expect to be asset sensitive for the first
three months, then we expect to be liability sensitive for the following nine months because substantially all of our
variable rate loans repriced within the first three months of the year but a majority of our deposits will reprice over a 12-
month period. The ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets after 12 months was 2.7% because $10.4 million more
assets will reprice in a 12 month period than liabilities. However, our gap analysis is not a precise indicator of our
interest sensitivity position, The anaiysis presents only a static view of the timing of maturities and repricing
opportunities, without taking into consideration that changes in interest rates do not affect all assets and liabilities equally.
For example, rates paid on a substantial portion of core deposits may change contractually within a relatively short time
frame, but those rates are viewed by us s significantly less interest-sensitive than market-based rates such as those paid
on noncore deposits. Net interest income: inay be affected by other significant factors in a given interest rate environment,
including changes in the volume and mix. of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Liquidity represents the ability of a company to convert assets into cash or cash equivalents without significant
loss, and the ability to raise additional funds by increasing liabilities. Liquidity management involves monitoring our
sources and uses of funds in order to mzet our day-to-day cash flow requirements while maximizing profits. Liquidity
management is made more complicated because different balance sheet components are subject to varying degrees of
management control. For example, the t.ming of maturities of our investment portfolio is fairly predictable and subject to
a high degree of control at the time investment decisions are made. However, net deposit inflows and outflows are far
less predictable and are not subject to the same degree of control.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, our liquid assets amounted to $25.6 million and $5.3 million, or 6.3% and
1.7% of total assets, respectively. Our investment securities at December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $36.1 million
and $29.2 million, or 8.9% and 9.2% of total assets, respectively. Investment securities traditionally provide a secondary
source of liquidity since they can be converted into cash in a timely manner. However, substantially all of these securities
are pledged against outstanding debt. Therefore, the related debt would need to be repaid prior to the securities being sold
in order for these securities to be convertzd to cash.

Our ability to maintain and expand our deposit base and borrowing capabilities serves as our primary source of
liquidity. We plan to meet our future cash needs through the liquidation of temporary investments and the generation of
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deposits. In addition, we will receive cash upon the maturity and sale of loans and the maturity of investment securities.
During most of 2004 and 2005, as a result of historically low rates that were being earned on short-term liquidity
investments, we chose to maintain a lower than normal level of short-term liquidity securities. In addition, we maintain
two federal funds purchased lines of credit with correspondent banks totaling $18.1 million. We are also a member of the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, from which applications for borrowings can be made for leverage purposes. The
FHLB requires that securities, qualifying mortgage loans, and stock of the FHLB owned by the bank be pledged to secure
any advances from the FHLB. The unused borrowing capacity currently available from the FHLB at December 31, 2005
was $20.0 million, based on the bank’s $4.2 million investment in FHLB stock, as well as qualifying mortgages available
to secure any future borrowings.

We believe that our existing stable base of core deposits, borrowings from the FHLB, short-term repurchase
agreements, and proceeds we received from our secondary offering will enable us to successfully meet our long-term
liquidity needs.

Asset/liability management is the process by which we monitor and control the mix and maturities of our assets
and liabilities. The essential purposes of asset/liability management are to ensure adequate liquidity and to maintain an
appropriate balance between interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to minimize potentially adverse impacts on
earnings from changes in market interest rates. Our asset/liability management committee (“ALCO™) monitors and
considers methods of managing exposure to interest rate risk. We have both an internal ALCO consisting of senior
management that meets at various times during each month and a board ALCO that meets monthly. The ALCOs are
responsible for maintaining the level of interest rate sensitivity of our interest sensitive assets and liabilities within board-
approved limits.

The following table sets forth information regarding our rate sensitivity, as of December 31, 2005, at each of the
time intervals. The information in the table may not be indicative of our rate sensitivity position at other points in time.
In addition, the maturity distribution indicated in the table may differ from the contractual maturities of the earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities presented due to consideration of prepayment speeds under various interest rate change
scenarios in the application of the interest rate sensitivity methods described above.

Within After three but After one but After
three within twelve within five five
months months years years Total

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-eaming assets:

Federal funds sold.................... $ 19,381 § -3 - -3 19,381
Investment securities................ 1,414 5,255 16,322 7,664 30,655
LOAMS. vt cir et ire et riairreen 213,020 14,672 80,434 30,601 338,727
Total earning assets........................ | $ 233,815 § 19,927 § 96,756 $ 38,265 $ 388,763
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Money market and NOW........... $ 85,738 $ -3 -3 -3 85,738
Regular savings..................... 1,319 - - - 1,319
Time deposits.........cvcvevviennnnn. 19,468 71,692 50,749 3,469 145,378
Repurchase agreements............. 14,680 - - - 14,680
FHLB advances...................... 27,000 10,000 39,500 3,000 79,500
Junior subordinated debentures.... 13,403 - - - 13,403
Total interest-bearing liabilities.......... $ 161,608 § 81,692 § 90,249 $ 6,469 $ 340,018
Period gap......c.cocovveieniiniiiiien, $ 72,207 $ (61,765) $ 6,507 $ 31,796
Cumulative gap........ccoeievniinnennns 72,207 10,442 16,949 48,745

Ratio of cumulative gap to total
€ATTING ASSELS...uevvrvneiiieiniineininnes 18.6 % 27 % 4.4 % 12.5%
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Contractual Obligations

We utilize a variety of short-term and long-term borrowings to supplement our supply of lendable funds, to assist
in meeting deposit withdrawal requirements, and to fund growth of interest-earning assets in excess of traditional deposit
growth. Certificates. of deposit, repurchease .agreements, FHLB advances, and junior.subordinate debentures serve as our
primary sources of such funds. ‘ o :

Obligations under noncancelatle operating lease .agreements are payable over several years with the longest
obligation expiring in 2025. We do not feel that any existing noncancelable operating lease agreements are likely to
materially impact the Company’s financial condition or results of operations in an adverse way. Contractual obligations
relative to these agreements are noted ir: the table below. Option periods that we have not yet exercised are not included
in this analysis as they do not represent contractual obligations until exercised.

The following table provides payments due by period for obligations under long-term borrowings and operating
lease obligations as of December 31, 2005.

Payments Due by Period
Over One Over Two Over Three After
Within to Two to Three to Five Five
One Year Years Years Years Years Total

(Dollars in thousands)

Certificate of deposits............. $ 91,160 $ 16,060 § 20,570 § 14,119 § 3,469 § 145378
Repurchase agreements........... 14,680 ' 14,680
FHLB advances.................... 14,500 5,000 20,000 18,000 22,000 79,500
Junior subordinate debentures. .. - - - - 13,403 13,403
Operating lease obligations...... o 364 1,836 1,529 1,869 2,514 8,112
Total....oooi $ 120,704 $ 2289 $° 42,099 $ 33,988 $ 41,386 § 261,073

Accounting, Reporting, and Regulatory Matters

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No.
123(R)”). SFAS No. 123(R) will require companies to measure all employee stock-based compensation awards using a
fair value method and record such expense in its financial statements. In addition, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)
requires additional accounting and disclosure related to the income tax and cash flow effects resulting from share-based
payment arrangements. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective beginning as of the first annual reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2005. SFAS No. 123(R) allows for adoption using either the modified prospective or modified
retrospective methods. The Company znticipates using the modified prospective method when this statement is adopted
in the first quarter of 2006. The Company has evaluated the impact upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and has
concluded that the adoption will not have a material impact on financial position or results of operations upon adoption.

In April 2005, the Securities znd Exchange Commission’s Office of the Chief Accountant and its Division of
Corporation Finance issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No.107 to provide guidance regarding the application of
SFAS No.123(R). SAB No. 107 providles interpretive guidance related to the interaction between SFAS No. 123(R) and
certain SEC rules and regulations, as well as the staff’s views regarding the valuation of share-based payment
arrangements for public companies. SAB No. 107 also reminds public companies of the importance of including
disclosures within filings made with the SEC relating to the accounting for share-based payment transactions, particularly
during the transition to SFAS No. 123(F).

During the last half of 2005, the FASB issued four FASB Staff Positions (“FSP”) related to the implementation
of SFAS No. 123(R). These FSP’s related to (1) the classification and measurement of freestanding financial instruments
originally issued in exchange for employee services, (2) the application of grant date as defined in SFAS No. 123(R}, (3)
the transition election related to accounting for the tax effects of share-based payment awards, and (4) the classification of
options and similar instruments issued as employee compensation that allow for cash settlement upon the occurrence of a
contingent event. The issuance of these FSP’s by the FASB is intended to clarify the interpretation of the guidance related
to these specific issues when implementing SFAS No. 123(R).
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In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — an amendment of
APB Opinion No. 29.” The standard is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured
based on the fair value of the assets exchanged and eliminates the exception under ABP Opinion No. 29 for an exchange
of similar productive assets and replaces it with an exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have
commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are
expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. The standard is effective for nonmonetary exchanges
occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 153 is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — a replacement of
APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3”. SFAS No. 154 establishes retrospective application as the required
method for reporting a change in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable, in which case the changes should be
applied to the latest practicable date presented. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a correction of an error be reported as a
prior period adjustment by restating prior period financial statements. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes
and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.

In March 2005 the FASB issued FIN No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” This Interpretation clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement
obligation as used in SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” refers to a legal obligation to
perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on a future event
that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is
unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and (or) method of settlement. Thus, the timing and (or)
method of settlement may be conditional on a future event. Accordingly, an entity is required to recognize a liability for
the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The
fair value of a liability for the conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized when incurred—generally
upon acquisition, construction, or development and (or) through the normal operation of the asset. Uncertainty about the
timing and (or) method of settlement of a conditional asset retirement obligation should be factored into the measurement
of the liability when sufficient information exists. FIN No. 47 is effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2005. The Company adopted FIN No. 47 in 2005 and its adoption had no material effect on financial
position or results of operations.

In March 2004, the FASB issued Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-
Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments.” This issue addresses the meaning of other-
than-temporary impairment and its application to investments classified as either available for sale or held to maturity
under SFAS No. 115 and it also provides guidance on quantitative and qualitative disclosures. The disclosure
requirements in paragraph 21 of this Issue were effective for annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2003 and were adopted by the Company effective December 31, 2003.

The recognition and measurement guidance in paragraphs 6-20 of this Issue was to be applied to other-than-
temporary impairment evaluations in reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004, but was delayed by FASB action in
October 2004 through the issuance of a proposed FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) on the issue. In July 2005, the FASB
issued FSP FAS 115-1 and FSP FAS 124-1—"“The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to
Certain Investments.” This FSP addresses the determination as to when an investment is considered impaired, whether
that impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an impairment loss. This FSP also includes accounting
considerations subsequent to the recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures
about unrealized losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. This FSP will be effective for
other-than-temporary impairment analysis conducted in periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company has
evaluated the impact that the adoption of FSP FAS 115-1 and FSP FAS 124-1 and has concluded that the adoption will
not have a material impact on financial position and results of operations upon adoption.

In December 2005, the FASB issued FSP SOP 94-6-1, “Terms of Loan Products that May Give Rise to a
Concentration of Credit Risk.” The disclosure guidance in this FSP is effective for interim and annual periods ending
after December 19, 2005. The FSP states that the terms of certain loan products may increase a reporting entity's
exposure to credit risk and thereby may result in a concentration of credit risk as that term is used in SFAS No. 107, either
as an individual product type or as a group of products with similar features. SFAS No. 107 requires disclosures about
each significant concentration, including “information about the (shared) activity, region, or economic characteristic that
identifies the concentration.” The FSP suggests possible shared characteristics on which significant concentrations may
be determined which include, but are not limited to:
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a. Borrowers subject to significant payment increases

b. Loans with terms that permit negative amortization

¢. Loans with high loan-to-value ratios.

This FSP requires entities to provide the disclosures requiréd by SFAS No. 107 for loan products that are
determined to represent a concentratior: of credit risk in accordance with the guidance of this FSP for all periods
presented. The Company adopted this disclosure standard effective December 31, 2005.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies that

do not require adoption until a future clate are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements upon adoption.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

See Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Market
Risk and Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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GREENVILLE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2005 2004
Assets
Cash and due from Danks. ....c.o.iiriiit v a e $ 6,223,397 b 3,943,877
Federal funds SO1A. ..ot e e et e e e et as 19,380,755 1,394,459
Investment securities available forsale.........ccooiiiiiiiiii i 11,310,956 12,159,674
Investment securities held to maturity-

(fair value $18,709,112 and $13,088,613)...c.cciniiiiiiiiiiiiic e 19,345,016 13,138,697
Other INVEStMENTS, AF COST. .. utrirtire it vnrs e aeeneenteanaaneantrerrrarreraerneanranee 5,475,400 3,863,850
| 00T 1 11 SO PP PP 334,040,776 276,630,484
Property and eqUIPMENt, MEt.......ouvuiuitintiiiieen et re i 5,576,882 2,013,995
Accrued INterest TECEIVADIE .. .vvtie ittt et re e et eere e e 1,694,648 1,145,810
Other real estate OWNEd. ... . oviiiii i it et et e e e ies e aaaaeens - 28,000
(01 =3 g 111 O 2,264,713 1,492,352

X e BT PSPPI $ 405,312,543 $ 315,811,198

Liabilities

DIEPOSIES. . e et ettt ettt et et e e § 254,148,041 $ 204,864,142
Official checks outstanding.............. O OO T URUPT PPNt 7,786,468 1,384,480
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements...............o.ooooviiiiiiiininn, 14,680,000 13,099,999
Federal Home Loan Bank advances...........ovevieiiienniinniiieieninieiiiieeeeeennes 79,500,000 60,660,000
Junior subordinated debentures. . ..c.vviirn e e e, 13,403,000 6,186,000
Accrued interest payable........oooovniiini i 1,510,635 620,014
Accounts payable and accrued BXpenses........o.ovviviiiiiiiiii 3,811,652 917,975
Total HabilitiEs. ..o vttt ettt 374,839,796 287,732,610

Commitments and contingencies — Note 13

Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, 10,000,000 shares
authorized, no shares iSSued...........oooiiriii e - -
Common stock, par value $.01 per share,
authorized, 10,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 2,659,719 and

2,647,994 at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively......... e 26,597 26,480
Additional paid-capital.............coiiiiii 25,626,740 25,546,259
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS)..........cooviiiiiiiininin, (150,602) 49,989
Retained earnings. . ... o.vveinivriit i e 4,970,012 2,455,860

Total shareholders’ equity........cccoevviiiiiiiiiiii e, 30,472,747 28,078,588
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity.......cccovevniiivinercnminrcneciincninn $ 405,312,543 $ 315,811,198

See notes to consolidated financial statements that are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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GREENVILIE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Interest income
08I, . e e $ 19,930,728  § 12,975,296  $ 9,186,378
INVeStMeNnt SECUIIES. ... vit ettt ee e ea e 1,634,403 966,653 517,005
Federal funds sold..............ooviiii e 104,414 22,751 18,171
Total interest INCOME.......o.vvviiiniieiiriiiiiiniieieaiieenns. 21,669,545 13,964,700 9,721,554
Interest expense
DEPOSIES. . it teteet ettt e ettt et e e 6,036,043 3,570,263 2,766,951
BOITOWINES. .. vttt ettt e e e e e e e v e anens 3,548,820 1,746,294 850,989
Total Interest EXPense. ... ...v.ivireiiviiireieneeeienrernenainnns 9,584,863 5,316,557 3,617,940
Net Interest INCOME. .. ..ottt et eeanes 12,084,682 8,648,143 6,103,614
Provision for 10an 10SSes. ...c.ovvviiiiiiit i 1,000,000 1,310,000 1,050,000
Ne_t interest income after prpvision for lcan losses.................. 11,084,682 7,338,143 5,053,614
Noninterest income
Loan fee income. ...... RPN 169,876 146,986 183,932
Service fees on deposit acCOUNS. ....ouvviveniniiiiiiiieee, 251,644 296,100 251,938
Write-down of real estate owned......... ... - (2,725) (253,699)
(81115 11 1e7s) 11 T PR PSREP 404,261 321,102 239,513
Total noninterest iNCOME............ovivveviiiniiininannnnnn. 825,781 761,463 421,684
Noninterest expenses
Compensation and benefits............ccoviiiiciininnn, 3,340,402 2,497,445 1,983,204
Professional fees............oooiiii i 303,986 213,168 175,126
MarKEtnE. .. vvev i 439,946 292,043 159,486
INSULANCE. ...t e e e 152,761 128,978 110,219
OCCUPANCY ...ttt eee ettt ettt et e e e e e aae et e eraaanenns 799,267 603,033 587,992
Data processing and related costs..........cocoveriniiiiieniniinn 919,379 813,097 625,779
TelephOne. . ..ot 55,972 32,216 22,097
Impairment of long lived assets............c.coovviiiiiiinniiinnnne 1,500,000 - -
O N . 343,667 273,315 188,946
Total NONINEErest EXPENSES. .. ..vvvnerirnerieerraneneinerarenes 7,855,380 4,853,295 3,852,849
Income before income tax eXpense......o.oeevvvvniiiinnans 4,055,083 3,246,311 1,622,449
INCOME tAX EXPEIMSE....uuvrerrereeeerornrreeneensassssseraersssnssasessans 1,540,931 1,233,722 616,534
INEL ITICOMIC. e vuerieiniarnrnrscreerernresrarnscssrarassasessssssssnensasasns $ 2,514,152 § 2,012,589 § 1,005,915
Earnings per common share
B, c ittt i $ 95 § 1.02 § .58
Diluted. ... ... $ 86 8 90 § .53
Weighted average common shares outstanding
BaSIC. . et . 2,656,730 1,972,087 1,724,994
DiIlUted. ..o s 2,930,368 2,239,702 1,881,129

See notes to consolidated financial statements that are an integral part of these consolidated statements,
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GREENVILLE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

Accumulated Total
Additional other Retained share-
Commeon stock paid-in comprehensive earnings holders'
Shares Amount capital income (loss) (deficit) equity

December 31,2002......000ieeininnivinnenns 1,150,000 § 11,500 $ 10,635200 $ 147,733 % (562,644) § 10,231,789
Net ICOME. . .vviieineieieiieeiaiennns - - - - 1,005,915 1,005,915
Stock split—3for2 .........oevvvvinennen. 574,994 5,750 (5,750) - - -
Comprehensive income, net of tax -

Unrealized holding loss on securities

available forsale.......................... - - - (50,736) - (50,736)
Comprehensive income...................... - - - - - 955,179
December 31, 2003......cccivvivniniinescnn 1,724,994 § 17,250 § 10,629450 $§ 96,997 § 443271 § 11,186,968
Net iCOME. ......v.veooveerererreeeresne - - - - 2,012,589 2,012,589
Comprehensive income, net of tax -

Unrealized holding loss on securities

available for sale...............c.oeen - - - (47,008) - (47,008)
Comprehensive inCOME.......o.c.vvvrvenenn. - - - - - 1,965,581
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net 920,000 9,200 14,896,829 - - 14,906,029
Proceeds from exercise of

WAITANES. ..o eveeeneeererrecennnencenene 3,000 30 19,980 - - 20,010
December 31,2004.......c.ccccvenrerenene 2,647,994 $§ 26480 $ 25,546,259 $ 49,989 § 2,455860 $ 128,078,588
Net INCOME......vivivi e - - - - 2,514,152 2,514,152
Comprehensive income, net of tax -

Unrealized holding loss on securities

available forsale......................... - - - (200,591) - (200,591)
Comprehensive income...................... - - - - - 2,313,561
Proceeds from exercise of stock

options and warrants...................... 11,725 117 80,481 - - 80,598
December 31, 2005.......c.covivernennnrenn 2,659,719 $ 26,597 § 25,626,740 $ (150,602) $ 4,970,012 $ 30,472,747

See notes to consolidated financial statements that are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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GREENVILLE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities

NELINCOME . ..ottt ettt re e e e ae e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to casi
provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses ...........coocceiiiiiiiiiin i
Depreciation and other amortization...............coooevviiniinenienin..
Impairment of long lived assets............c.cooeveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn.
Write-down of real estate owned..............ccoooiii i,
Accretion and amortization of securities discounts and premium, net
Increase in deferred tax asset................cooviiiiiiiiniiiin .
Decrease (increase) in other assets, Net..........c.cco.ovveiiiviinininn....

Increase in other liabilities, net...............oooiiiiiii e, ‘

Net cash provided by operating activities...........................

Investing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash realized from:
Origination of 10ans, Net............covviiiiiiniini e
Purchase of property and equipment.................ocooviiiiiinnn .
Purchase of investment securities:

Available for Sale. ... s ‘

Held t0 Maturity........coovviriien e e

Other INVEStMENS. ...\ ouivieiiiiie e e
Payments and maturity of investment se:urities:

Available forsale............cooiiiiiiii

Held to maturity..........ocoiii

Other IMVESIMENTS. ...ttt e e et ee e eneans '

Financing activities
Increase in deposits, Met........oviuiiitiir i e
Increase in federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements............
Decrease in other borrowings. ... ...o..o.viiiiiiiiiii e
Proceeds from the issuance of junior subordinated debentures..............
Increase in Federal Home Loan Bank advarnces....................ooevves
Proceeds from the issuances of common stock, net..........o..ooooena
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options and warrants...................

Net cash provided by financing activities...........................

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.............

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of tie period...........ccccenreren ‘

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the periiod...........ccccevvenininrerannn

Supplemental information
Cash paid for
Inerest. ..o

Schedule of non-cash transactions
Foreclosure of real estate. ..........oovive i e

See notes to consolidated financial statements that are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
$ 2514152 $ 2,012,589 1,005,915
1,000,000 1,310,000 1,050,000
260,009 163,738 162,618
1,500,000 - .
- 2,725 253,699
127,724 94,394 94,773
(754,428) (244,837) (654,653)
(566,771) (1,162,682) 692,079
10,289,618 239,027 778,194
14,370,304 2,414,954 3,382,625
(58,410,292) (72,169,136) (59,047,821)
(5,322,896) (1,353,474) (200,935)
(1,292,018) (9,983,843) -
(10,258,021) (5,585,719) (10,158,438)
(5,241,250) (4,575,000) (2,971,150)
1,777,884 1,340,037 10,103,883
3,982,907 2,228,854 1,011,777
3,629,700 3,007,300 1,580,000
28,000 277,486 -
(71,105,986) (86,813,495) (59,682,684)
49,283,899 35,900,547 35,400,325
1,580,001 3,803,000 189,999
- - (2,500,000)
7,217,000 ; 6,186,000
18,840,000 28,160,000 19,500,000
- 14,906,029 -
80,598 20,010 -
77,001,498 82,789,586 58,776,324
20,265,816 (1,608,955) 2,476,265
5,338,336 6,947,291 4,471,026
S 25604152 § 5338336 6,947,291
$ 8694242 § 5268815 3,651,740
$ 2,192,025 § 2,148425 580,040
$ - $ 308210 ]
$ 200591 § 47,008 50,736




GREENVILLE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES

Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) is a South Carolina corporation that owns all of the capital stock
of Greenville First Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”) and all of the stock of Greenville First Statutory Trust I and II (collectively
(the “Trusts™)). The Bank is a national bank organized under the laws of the United States located in Greenville County,
South Carolina. The Bank is primarily engaged in the business of accepting demand deposits and savings deposits
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and providing commercial, consumer and mortgage loans to the
general public. The Trusts are special purpose subsidiaries organized for the sole purpose of issuing trust preferred
securities.

On October 26, 1999, the Company sold 1,100,000 shares of its common stock at $10 per share and on November 30,
1999 sold 50,000 additional shares for a total of 1,150,000 shares (1,724,994 after adjustment of 3 for 2 stock split). The
offering raised approximately $10.6 million, net of underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses.

On June 26, 2003, the Trust offered and sold $6.0 million of floating rate securities. The Company received the
proceeds from the issuance of these securities and has reflected the obligation resulting from the receipt of the proceeds as
junior subordinate debentures in the balance sheets. The Company invested $186,000 in the Trust.

On November 17, 2003, shareholders of record as of November 3, 2003, received one additional share of stock for
every two shares of stock owned prior to the 3 for 2 stock split. All fractional shares were paid in cash. The earnings per
share amounts for all periods shown have been adjusted to reflect the 3 for 2 split.

On September 24, 2004, the Company sold 800,000 shares of its common stock and on October 15, 2004 sold
120,000 additional shares for a total of 920,000 shares. All shares were sold at $17.875 per share. The offering raised
approximately $14.9 million, net of underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses.

On December 22, 20085, the Trust offered and sold $7.0 million of floating rate securities. The Company received the
proceeds from the issuance of these securities and has reflected the obligation resulting from the receipt of the proceeds as
junior subordinate debentures in the balance sheets. The Company invested $217,000 in the Trust.

The following is a description of the more significant accounting and reporting policies that the Company follows in
preparing and presenting consolidated financial statements.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiary, Greenville First Bank, N.A. In consolidation, all significant intercompany transactions have been
eliminated. The accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. In accordance with guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) in
Interpretation number 46, the operations of the Trusts have not been consolidated in these financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amount of income and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Risks and uncertainties

In the normal course of its business the Company encounters two significant types of risks: economic and regulatory.
There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company is
subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds, or on
different bases, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default within the Company’s loan portfolio
that results from borrowers’ inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market risk reflects
changes in the value of collateral underlying loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held by the Company.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

The Company is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies. These regulations can and do change
significantly from period to period. The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies,
which may subject it to changes with respect to valuation of assets, amount of required loss allowance and operating
restrictions resulting from the regulaiors’ judgments based on information available to them at the time of their
examinations. The bank makes loans to individuals and businesses in and around “Upstate” South Carolina for various
personal and commercial purposes. The Bank has a diversified loan portfolio. Borrowers’ ability to repay their loans is
not dependent upon any specific economic sector.

Investment securities

The Company accounts for investment securities in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities". The statement requires
investments in equity and debt securitics to be classified into three categories:

1. Available for sale securities: These are securities that are not classified as either held to maturity or as trading
securities. These securities are reported at fair market value. Unrealized gains and losses are reported, net of
income taxes, as separate components of shareholders’ equity (accumulated other comprehensive income).

2. Held to maturity securities: These are investment securities that the Company has the ability and intent to hold until
maturity. These securities are stated at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and the accretion of discounts.

3. Trading securities: These are securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling in the near
future. Trading securities are reported at fair market value, and related unrealized gains and losses are recognized
in the income statement. The Company has no trading securities.

Gains or losses on dispositions of investment securities are based on the differences between the net proceeds and the
adjusted carrying amount of the securities sold, using the specific identification method. Premiums and discounts are
amortized or accrued into interest inconie by a method that approximates a level yield.

Other investments

The Bank, as a member institution, is required to own stock investments in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta and
the Federal Reserve Bank. The stock is generally pledged against any borrowings from these institutions. No ready
market exists for the stock and it has 1o quoted market value. However, redemption of these stocks has historically
been at par value. Other investments also include a $403,000 investment in the Trusts.

Loans, interest and fee income on loans

Loans are stated at the principal balance outstanding. Unamortized net loan fees and the allowance for possible loan
losses are deducted from total loans on the balance sheet. Interest income is recognized over the term of the loan based
on the principal amount outstanding. The net of loan origination fees received and direct costs incurred in the
origination of loans is deferred and amortized to interest income over the contractual life of the loans adjusted for actual
principal prepayments using a method ayproximating the interest method.

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when principal or interest becomes ninety days past due, or when
payment in full is not anticipated. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, interest accrued but not received is
generally reversed against interest incorae. Cash receipts on non-accrual loans are not recorded as interest income, but
are used to reduce principal. ‘

Allowance for loan losses

The provision for loan losses charged to operating expenses reflects the amount deemed appropriate by management to
establish an adequate reserve to meet the present and foreseeable risk characteristics of the current loan portfolio.
Management’s judgment is based on periodic and regular evaluation of individual loans, the overall risk characteristics
of the various portfolio segments, past experience with losses and prevailing and anticipated economic conditions.
Loans that are determined to be unco.lectible are charged against the allowance. Provisions for loan losses and
recoveries on loans previously charged ¢ff are added to the allowance.

50




NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

Impaired loans

The Bank accounts for impaired loans in accordance with SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of
a Loan”. This statement requires that all lenders value loans at the loan’s fair value if it is probable that the lender will
be unable to collect all amounts due according to the terms of the loan agreement. Fair value may be determined based
upon the present value of expected cash flows, market price of the loan, if available, or value of the underlying
collateral. Expected cash flows are required to be discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate. SFAS No. 114 was
amended by SFAS No. 118 to allow a lender to use existing methods for recognizing interest income on an impaired
loan and by requiring additional disclosures about how a creditor recognizes interest income on an impaired loan.

Under SFAS No. 114, as amended by SFAS No. 118, when the ultimate collectibility of an impaired loan’s principal is
in doubt, wholly or partially, all cash receipts are applied to principal. Once the reported principal balance has been
reduced to zero, future cash receipts are applied to interest income, to the extent that any interest has been foregone.
Further cash receipts are recorded as recoveries of any amounts previously charged off. When this doubt does not
exist, cash receipts are applied under the contractual terms of the loan agreement first to interest income then to
principal.

A loan is also considered impaired if its terms are modified in a troubled debt restructuring. For these accruing
impaired loans, cash receipts are typically applied to principal and interest receivable in accordance with the terms of
the restructured loan agreement. Interest income is recognized on these loans using the accrual method of accounting.

Non-performing assets

Non-performing assets include real estate acquired through foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of foreclosure, and loans
on non-accrual status. Loans are placed on non-accrual status when, in the opinion of management, the collection of
additional interest is questionable. Thereafter no interest is taken into income until such time as the borrower
demonstrates the ability to pay both principal and interest.

Real estate acquired in settlement of loans

Real estate acquired through foreclosure is initially recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair value. Subsequent to
the date of acquisition, it is carried at the lower of cost or fair value, adjusted for net selling costs. Fair values of real
estate owned are reviewed regularly and writedowns are recorded when it is determined that the carrying value of real
estate exceeds the fair value less estimated costs to sell. Costs relating to the development and improvement of such
property are capitalized, whereas those costs relating to holding the property are expensed.

Property held for sale

Property held for sale is included in property and equipment on the consolidated balance sheets and is stated at the
lower of cost or market.

Property and equipment

Assets held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or market. Property and equipment are stated at cost. Major repaits
are charged to operations, while major improvements are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Upon retirement, sale, or other disposition of property and
equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts, and gain or loss is included in
income from operations.

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which includes the cost of construction and other direct costs attributable to
the construction. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and put into use.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

The Bank enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase. Fixed-coupon repurchase agreements are
treated as financing, with the obligation to repurchase securities sold being reflected as a liability and the securities
underlying the agreements remaining as assets.




NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

Advertising and public relations expense

Advertising, promotional and other business development costs are generally expensed as incurred. External costs
incurred in producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. External costs relating
to direct mailing costs are expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are sent.

Income taxes

The financial statements have been rrepared on the accrual basis. When income and expenses are recognized in
different periods for financial reporting purposes versus for the purposes of computing income taxes currently payable,
deferred taxes are provided on such temporary differences. The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance
with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the consolidated financial
statements or tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled.

Stock based compensation

The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan that is further described in Note 18. The Company
accounts for the plan under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stocl: Issued to Employees, ” and related Interpretations. No stock-based employee
compensation cost is reflected in net in:ome, as all stock options granted under these plans had an exercise price equal
to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. On December 20, 2005, the Board of
Directors approved accelerating the vesting of 45,813 unvested stock options effective December 28, 2005. The
decision to accelerate vesting of these options was made so as to reduce compensation expense upon the adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 by approximately $68,000 and $52,000 in the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2007, respectively, and $4,000 in each of the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009.. The following table
illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to stock-based employee compensation.
The 2003 amounts have been restated fer the 3 for 2 stock split.

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Net income, as reported.........coovvviiiiiiricniinncccs i $ 2,514,152 $ 2,012,589 $ 1,005,915
Deduct: Total stock-based employee ,

compensation expense determined under fair value

based method for all awards, net of related tax effects....... (199,934) (82,876) (78,452)
Pro forma net income..........co.coeiviiiiin i $ 2,314,218 S 1,929,713 $ 927,463
Earnings per common share:

Basic - as reported......... e PO $ .95 $ 1.02 $ .58

Basic - pro forma. ............ccococviininieeenenn. ST $ 87 3 98 $ 54

Diluted - as reported............. . T $ ‘ .86 $ .90 $ .53

Diluted —pro forma................cooiiiii $ 79 $ .86 $ 49

The fair market value of the option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The following assumptions were used for grants: expected volatility of 6.76 % for 2005 and 10.00% for 2004
and 2003, risk-free interest rate of 4.02% for 2005 and 3.00% for 2004 and 2003, respectively, and expected lives of the
options 10 years and the assumed divider.d rate was zero.

Statement of cash flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those amounts included in the balance
sheet captions “Cash and due from banks” and “Federal funds sold ” Cash and cash equivalents have an original
maturity of three months or less.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts, previously reported, have been reclassified to state all periods on a comparable basis that had no
effect on shareholders’ equity or net income.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

Earnings per common share

The following schedule reconciles the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. Dilutive common shares arise from the
potentially dilutive effect of the Company’s stock options and warrants that are outstanding. The assumed conversion
of stock options and warrants can create a difference between basic and dilutive net income per common share. The
2003 numbers of shares and the earnings per share have been adjusted for the 3 for 2 stock split.

2005 2004 2003

Basic Farnings Per Share

Average common Shares. ........ovvevvvieiiieninneeeinne 2,656,730 1,972,087 1,724,994

Nt IICOME. ittt it e e e s $ 2,514,152 $ 2,012,589 $ 1,005915

Eamings per share.........covvvevinieriiinieciinieniiennenes $ .95 ;] .02 8 .58
Diluted Earnings Per Share

Average common shares outstanding....................c....n 2,656,730 1,972,087 1,724,994

Average dilutive common shares...............cocoeviiinin 273,638 267,615 156,135

Adjusted average common shares...............cocoi 2,930,368 2,239,702 1,881,129

I B Te0) o1 L= TP OEPRPPRIN $ 2,514,152 $ 2,012,589 $ 1,005915

Earnings per Share..........coovverveivieiiniiiceienenn $ 86 3 90 3 .53

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that affect accounting, reporting, and disclosure of
financial information by the Company:

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No.
123(R)”). SFAS No. 123(R) will require companies to measure all employee stock-based compensation awards using a
fair value method and record such expense in its financial statements. In addition, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)
requires additional accounting and disclosure related to the income tax and cash flow effects resulting from share-based
payment arrangements. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective beginning as of the first annual reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2005, SFAS No. 123(R) allows for adoption using either the modified prospective or modified
retrospective methods. The Company anticipates using the modified prospective method when this statement is adopted
in the first quarter of 2006. The Company has evaluated the impact upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and has
concluded that the adoption will not have a material impact on financial position or results of operations upon adoption.

In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Office of the Chief Accountant and its Division of
Corporation Finance issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No.107 to provide guidance regarding the application of
SFAS No.123(R). SAB No. 107 provides interpretive guidance related to the interaction between SFAS No. 123(R) and
certain SEC rules and regulations, as well as the staff’s views regarding the valuation of share-based payment
arrangements for public companies. SAB No. 107 also reminds public companies of the importance of including
disclosures within filings made with the SEC relating to the accounting for share-based payment transactions, particularly
during the transition to SFAS No. 123(R).

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — an amendment of
APB Opinion No. 29.” The standard is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured
based on the fair value of the assets exchanged and eliminates the exception under ABP Opinion No. 29 for an exchange
of similar productive assets and replaces it with an exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have
commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are
expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. The standard is effective for nonmonetary exchanges
occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 153 is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections ~ a replacement of
APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3”. SFAS No. 154 establishes retrospective application as the required
method for reporting a change in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable, in which case the changes should be
applied to the latest practicable date presented. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a correction of an error be reported as a
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

prior period adjustment by restating pricr period financial statements. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes
and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.

In March 2005 the FASB issued Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” This Interpretation clarifies that the term conditional asset
retirement obligation as used in SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” refers to a legal
obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on a
future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement
activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and (or) method of settlement. Thus, the timing
and (or) method of settlement may be conditional on a future event. Accordingly, an entity is required to recognize a
liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably
estimated. The fair value of a liability for the conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized when
incurred—generally upon acquisition, construction, or development and (or) through the normal operation of the asset.
Uncertainty about the timing and (or) method of settlement of a conditional asset retirement obligation should be factored
into the measurement of the liability wheun sufficient information exists. FIN No. 47 is effective no later than the end of
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2005. The Company adopted FIN No. 47 in 2005 and its adoption had no material
effect on financial position or results of operations.

In March 2004, the FASB issued Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments.” This issue addresses the meaning of
other-than-temporary impairment and its application to investments classified as either available for sale or held to
maturity under SFAS No. 115 and it also provides guidance on quantitative and qualitative disclosures. The disclosure
requirements in paragraph 21 of this Issue were effective for annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2003 and were adopted by the Company effective December 31, 2003,

The recognition and measurement guidance in paragraphs 6-20 of this Issue was to be applied to other-than-
temporary impairment evaluations in reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004, but was delayed by FASB action in
October 2004 through the issuance of a proposed FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) on the issue. In July 2005, the FASB
issued FSP FAS 115-1 and FSP FAS 124-1—“The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to
Certain Investments.” This FSP addresses the determination as to when an investment is considered impaired, whether
that impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an impairment loss. This FSP also includes accounting
considerations subsequent to the recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures
about unrealized losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. This FSP will be effective for
other-than-temporary impairment analysis conducted in periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company has
evaluated the impact that the adoption of FSP FAS 115-1 and FSP FAS 124-1 and has concluded that the adoption will
not have a material impact on financial position and results of operations upon adoption.

In December 2005, the FASB issued FSP SOP'94-6-1, “Terms of Loan Products that May Give Rise to a
Concentration of Credit Risk.” The disclosure guidance in this FSP is effective for interim and annual periods ending
after December 19, 2005. The FSP states that the terms of certain loan products may increase a reporting entity's
exposure to credit risk and thereby may result in a concentration of credit risk as that term is used in SFAS No. 107, either
as an individual product type or as a group of products with similar features. SFAS No. 107 requires disclosures about
each significant concentration, including “information about the (shared) activity, region, or economic characteristic that
identifies the concentration.” The FSP suggests possible shared characteristics on which significant concentrations may
be determined which include, but are not limited to:

a. Borrowers subject to significant payment increases
b. Loans with terms that permit negative amortization
c. Loans with high loan-to-value ratios.

This FSP requires entities to provide the disclosures required by SFAS No. 107 for loan products that are
determined to represent a concentration of credit risk in accordance with the guidance of this FSP for all periods
presented. The Company adopted this disclosure standard effective December 31, 2005.

During the last half of 2005, the FASB issued four FSP’s related to the implementation of SFAS No. 123(R).
These FSP’s related to (1) the classification and measurement of freestanding financial instruments originally issued in
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

exchange for employee services, (2) the application of grant date as defined in SFAS No. 123(R), (3) the transition
election related to accounting for the tax effects of share-based payment awards, and (4) the classification of options and
similar instruments issued as employee compensation that allow for cash settlement upon the occusrence of a contingent
event. The issuance of these FSP’s by the FASB is intended to clarify the interpretation of the guidance related to these
specific issues when implementing SFAS No. 123(R).

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies
that do not require adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements upon adoption.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required to maintain average cash reserve balances, computed by applying prescribed percentages
to its various types of deposits, either at the bank or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 2005
and 2004, the bank had $1.3 million and $1.0 million, respectively on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank to meet this
requirement.

NOTE 3 - FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD

The Bank’s cash reserves in excess of the required amounts to be held by the Federal Reserve Bank (Note 2)
may be lent to other banks on a daily basis. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, federal funds sold amounted to $19.4
million and $1.4 million, respectively. Management limits its credit risk by placing its deposits and federal funds with
institutions that maintain high credit standards.

NOTE 4 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized costs and fair value of investment securities available for sale and held to maturity are as follows:

December 31, 2605
Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for sale
Federal agencies...........ccoovevvvniiiiiiiinnienieninnnnn. $ 1,005,294 § 6,269 § - 3 1,011,563
State and political subdivisions................occeviuinnn. 1,292,007 - - 1,292,007
Mortgage-backed securities..........cooooveieiiiininnn 9,241,839 1,110 235,563 9,007,386
$ 11,539,140 § 7,379 § 235,563 $ 11,310,956
Held to maturity
Mortgage-backed securities..........c.cooveiininniniinnnn $ 19345016 § - 3 635904 § 18,709,112
December 31, 2004
Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for sale
Federal agencies........ovvvevvincreiiieeinienninincin $ 1,013,803 $ 39,322 $ - S 1,053,125
Mortgage-backed securities.............oooviinn 11,070,132 36,417 - 11,106,549
S 12,083,935 § 75,739 § - 8§ 12,159,674
Held to maturity
Mortgage-backed securities..............ccocoiiiiviniinnn $ 13,138,697 § - 3 50,084 S 13,088,613
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NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES, Continued

The amortized costs and fair values of investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturitics because issuers
have the right to prepay the obligations.

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value

Available for sale

Due Withinl ONE YEar.........evviieivnirairrrerneseeinss $ 1,005,294 3 1,011,563 § - 8 -
Due after one through three years......................... - - 1,013,803 1,053,125
Due after five throughtenyear............................ 1,195,265 1,185,621 1,679,258 1,707,784
Due after ten Years. .......o.vovivevininireniniiieninareen, 9,338,581 9,113,772 9,390,874 9,398,765

$ 11,539,140 § 11,310,956 $ 12,083,935 § 12,159,674

Held to maturity ;
Due after five through ten year ..............ocoeivinnen. $ 576,195 $ 559,081 $ 758,454 ) 759,485
Due after ten Years..........ocoevvveieeiiiiiieininenininasnn. 18,768,821 18,150,031 12,380,243 12,329,128

$ 19,345,016 $ 18,709,112 § 13,138,697 § 13,088,613

The table below summarizes gross unrealized losses on investment securities and the fair market value of the
related securities, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2005.

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value losses value losses value losses
Available for sale
Mortgage-backed. ............ $ 8846,732 § 235563 § ‘ - $ - $§ 8,846,732 § 235,563
Held to maturity
Mortgage-backed............  § 8831207 $§ 274614 $ 9,877,905 S 361,290 $ 18,709,112 § 635,904

At December 31, 2005, the Company had nine mortgage-backed securities in an unrealized loss position. The
Company believes, based on industry analyst reports and credit ratings that the deterioration in value is attributed to
changes in market interest rates and not in the credit quality of the issuer and therefore, these losses are not considered
other-than-temporary. The Company has the ability and intent to hold these securities until such time as the value
recovers or the securities mature.

Other investments totaled approximately $5.5 million and $3.9 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Other investments at December 31, 2005, consisted of Federal Reserve Bank stock with a cost of $863,700,
Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) stock with a cost of $4.2 million, and investments in the Trusts of $403,000. At
December 31, 2004, the company owned Federal Reserve Bank stock with a cost of $485,150, Federal Home Loan Bank
stock with a cost of $3.2 million, and an investment in the Trust of $186,000. All of the FHLB stock is used to
collateralize advances with the FHLB.

No investment securities were sold in 2005, 2004 or 2003. Accordingly, no gains or losses were recorded. At
December 31, 2005 and 2004, $16.4 million, and $17.0 million, respectively, of securities were pledged as collateral for
repurchase agreements from brokers.

Management limits its credit risk by investing its portfolio principally in obligations of the United States, its
agencies or its corporations and genera) obligation municipal securities. Included in the investment portfolio at December
31, 2008, are mortgage-backed securities issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation totaling $24.3 million and $4.1 million, respectively.
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NOTE 5-1OANS

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various personal and commercial purposes
primarily in the upstate region of South Carolina. The Company’s loan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any single
borrower or a relatively small number of borrowers. The Company focuses its lending activities primarily on the
professional market in Greenville, including doctors, dentists, and small business owners. The principal component of the
loan portfolio is loans secured by real estate mortgages which account for 81.9% of total loans at December 31, 2005,
Commercial loans comprise 66.3% of total real estate loans and consumer loans account for 33.7%. Commercial loans
are further categorized into owner occupied which represents 21.3% of total loans and non-owner occupied of 28.6%.
Construction loans represent only 5.9% of the total loan portfolio.

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of borrowers,
industries and geographic regions, Management monitors exposure to credit risk from concentrations of lending products
and practices such as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral periods, loans
with initial interest-only periods, etc.), and loans with high loan-to-value ratios. As of December 31, 2005, approximately
$44.5 million, or 13.1% of our loans had loan-to-value ratios which exceeded regulatory supervisory limits, of which
fifty-five loans totaling approximately $11.0 million had loan-to-value ratios of 100% or more. Additionally, there are
industry practices that could subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic conditions change over the
course of a loan’s life. For example, the Company makes variable rate loans and fixed rate principal-amortizing loans
with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon payment loans). The various types of loans are individually
underwritten and monitored to manage the associated risks.

The composition of net loans by major loan categories is as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004
Real estate:
Commercial
OWNEr OCCUPIEA. ...\ ettt e $ 72,222,318 $ 54,323,486
NON-OWNET OCCUPIE. ..t vieit it iet et et e e veeaeas 96,950,130 76,284,002
COMSUCHION. ..ottt ettt a e 14,660,536 12,211,605
183,832,984 142,819,093
Consumer:
Residential. ... ... 50,756,108 46,240,388
HOME @QUILY . ..ttt 37,253,869 35,084,921
003 (T3 g 1o 4T+ ) « DO 5,408,551 5,937,489
93,418,528 87,262,798
Total real estate l0ams. ....oviviitiii i 277,251,512 230,081,891
Commercial BUSINESS. ......ovu it 53,752,732 44,871,612
oMU -0 T, e e 8,211,323 6,034,980
Deferred origination fees, net...........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e, (685,194) (641,354)
GIOSS L0aNS. 1.ttt 338,530,373 280,347,129
Less allowance for 10an 10SSeS. ... ouivr it (4,489,597) (3,716,645)
AN, I8, .ottt et e e 334,040,776 $ 276,630,484

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, there was $466,333 and $739,126, respectively of loans classified as non-
accruing loans. Foregone interest income on the non-accrual loans in 2005 was approximately $23,000 and was

approximately $9,200 in 2004,

At December 31, 2005, certain of the Bank’s first mortgage loans were pledged as collateral for advances from
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, as set forth in Note 9.

The composition of gross loans by rate type is as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004
Variable rate L0aNS. ...ttt e s $ 206,537,381 $ 186,486,910
Fixed rate Loans .. ..ooviini e 131,992,992 93,860,219
S 338,530,373 $ 280,347,129
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NOTE 5 - LOANS, Continued

The allowance for loan losses is available to absorb future loan charge-offs. The allowance is increased by
provisions charged to operating income and by recoveries of loans that were previously written-off. The allowance is
decreased by the aggregate loan balances, if any, that were deemed uncollectible during the year.

Activity within the allowance for loan losses account follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Balance, beginning of year............oooviiiiiiiiiiii e $ 3,716,645 $ 2,705,150 § 1,824,149
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off against the allowance...... 63,206 36,423 3,647
Provision for 10an 10SSES.........vvvivriit it e, 1,000,000 1,310,000 1,050,000
Loans charged-off against the allowance.............................. (290,254) (334,928) (172,646)
Balance, end of year..........oooiiiiiiiii $ 4,489,597 § 3,716,645 § 2,705,150

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Components of property and
equipment included in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

December 31,
2005 2004
Land. ..o e $ 1,099,459 $ 422,000
BUildings. ...oovnieei e e 3,634,323 -
Leasehold ImProvements. ... ..o i e - 450,090
Furniture and qUIPMENt. ...ttt e 1,316,290 1,030,264
SORWEATE. .t 256,012 216,255
CONSITUCTION 1L DIOCESS. ...t veeentetnt et ete s et et ease e ate s aeas et e e narrnane e 17,204 663,527
6,323,288 2,782,136
Accumulated depreCiation. ... . i iiiii it ittt e eees (746,406) (768,141)
Total property and eqUIPIMENt. . ....v ittt ettt eer e $ 5,576,882 $ 2,013,995

The Company leased its main office building through the end of 2005 (see Note 13). On December 30, 2005,
the Company purchased the main office building for $3.1 million. Immediately thereafter, the Company recorded a $1.5
million write-down on the valuation of the purchased building in accordance with SFAS 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for l.ong-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” The $1.5 million write-down is based
on various assumptions related to the Corrpany’s ability to either sell or lease the building at various lease rates. The
actual results of the Company’s ability to either sell or lease the building could significantly differ from the assumptions
used in the impairment calculation.

The Company anticipates that it will continue to operate in this location uatil the third quarter of 2006, when it
plans to relocate the Haywood Road branch facility and its corporate office. The Company plans to aggressively market
either the leasing or the sale of the Haywood Road office building. No.assurance can be given that the Company will be
able to lease or sell the current building.

At December 31, 2005, construction in process is related to costs incurred on property for a future branch
office site. At December 31, 2004, construction in process is related to building a branch office.
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NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, Continued

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $260,009,
$163,738 and $162,618, respectively. Depreciation is charged to operations over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation for the principal items follow:

Depreciation/Amortization

Tvype of Asset Life in Years Method
SOBWALE. ... cvvesirie e 3 Straight-line
Furniture and equipment..................ee. Sto7 Straight-line
Leaschold improvements...................... 5to 15 Straight-line
Buildings......cccooiiviiiin 40 Straight-line

NOTE 7 - DEPOSITS

The following is a detail of the deposit accounts:

December 31,

2005 2004
NOR-ItErest BEATINE. ...\ iv ittt st e $ 21,712665 $ 17,553,036
Interest bearing:
NOW ACCOUNTS. ..t ittt it ettt trae et et ettt et aterreaeanaaneaseneenennanannaneenrs 29,466,156 31,433,208
Money market @CCOUIES. .. ... uiuitvr ittt s 56,272,124 55,647,710
SV . ot ettt ettt e 1,318,732 1,244,015
Time, less than $100,000.........iiii e 28,722,911 14,967,414
Time, $100,000 and OVET. ...\ttt 116,655,453 84,018,759
TOtal AEPOSIES. .eveen ittt e $ 254,148,041 $§ 204,864,142

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the bank had approximately $81.4 million and $77.3 million of time deposits
that were obtained outside of the bank’s primary market. Interest expense on time deposits greater than $100,000 was
$3.7 million and $1.9 million in the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

At December 31, 2005 the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows:

2006, ettt e $ 91,159,537
2007 e 16,060,265
2008 e e 20,570,467
2000 e 9,484,953
2010 and afler. . ..ot e 8,103,142

$ 145,378,364

NOTE 8 -FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

At December 31, 2005 the bank had sold $14.7 million of securities under agreements to repurchase with
brokers with a weighted rate of 4.32% that mature in less than 90 days. These agreements were secured with
approximately $15.5 million of investment securities. The securities, under agreement to repurchase, averaged $16.7
million during 2005, with $18.9 million being the maximum amount outstanding at any month-end. The average rate
paid in 2005 was 3.35%.

At December 31, 2004 the bank had sold $13.1 million of securities under agreements to repurchase with
brokers with a weighted rate of 2.25% that mature in less than 90 days. These agreements were secured with
approximately $13.2 million of investment securities. The securities, under agreement to repurchase, averaged $13.6
million during 2004, with $14.6 million being the maximum amount outstanding at any month-end. The average rate
paid in 2004 was 1.43%.




NOTE 9 -FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

At December 31, 2005 the bank had $79.5 million of advances from the FHLB. These advances are secured
with approximately $101.6 million of first mortgage loans and stock in the FHLB. The Company also has an option
whereby it may, on May 5, 2006, increase the size of a $10 million advance which matures on May 5, 2010, by an
additional $10 million at the same rate and maturity date. Listed below is a summary of the terms and maturities of the
advances: :

Amount Rate Maturity Repricing Date
$ 7,000,000 445 % January 6, 2006 Daily

5,000,000 4.15% October 15,2007  January 15, 2006

10,000,000 3.88% April 25,2012 January 25, 2006
7,500,000 2.93 % February 10,2015  February 10, 2006
7,500,000 4.48 % March 10, 2006 March 10, 2006
3,000,000 4.83 % August 24,2011 August 24, 2006

10,000,000 2.84 % October 7, 2009 October 10, 2006
7,500,000 3.22% February 10,2015 February 12, 2007
7,000,000 421 % May 14,2014 May 14, 2009
5,000,000 3.36 % January 30, 2013 January 30, 2008

10,000,000 4.58 % May 5, 2010 -

3 79,500,000

December 31, 2004 the bank had $60.7 million of advances from the FHLB. These advances are secured with
approximately $91.5 million of first mortgage loans and stock in the FHLB. Listed below is a summary of the terms and
maturities of the advances:

Amount Rate Maturity Repricing Date
$ 18,160,000 2.44 % October 1, 2005 Daily

5,000,000 2.07 % October 15, 2007 January 15, 2005
7,500,000 2.46 % March 10, 2006 March 10, 2005
5,000,000 1.78 % May 14, 2007 May 15, 2005
3,000,000 4.83 % August 24,2011 August 24, 2006

10,000,000 2.84 % October 7, 2009 October 10, 2006
5,000,000 3.36 % January 30, 2013 January 30, 2008
7,000,000 421 % May 14,2014 May 14, 2009

3 60.660.000

NOTE 10 -NOTE PAYABLE

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had an unused revolving line of credit in the amount of $4.5
million, with another bank maturing on March 20, 2006. The Company has utilized this line of credit in the past to
provide proceeds to increase the capital investment in the Company’s wholly-owned bank. The line of credit bears
interest at the 30 day LIBOR rate plus 2.00%, which at December 31, 2005 was 6.39%. The Company has pledged all of
the stock of the Bank as collateral for this line of credit. The line of credit agreement contains various covenants related to
net income and asset quality. As of Dezember 31, 2005, the Company believes it was in compliance with all covenants.
The Company anticipates renewing this line of credit.

NOTE 11 - JUNIOR SUBORDINATI:D DEBENTURES

On June 26, 2003, Greenville First Statutory Trust [, (a non-consolidated subsidiary) issued $6.0 million
floating rate trust preferred securities with a maturity of June 26, 2033. The rate is adjusted quarterly and was 7.64% at
December 31, 2005. In accordance with the revised FIN 46, the Trust has not been consolidated in these financial
statements. The Company received fromn the Trust the $6.0 million proceeds from the issuance of the securities and the
$186,000 initial proceeds from the capi-al investment in the Trust, and accordingly has shown the funds due to the Trust
as $6.2 million junior subordinated debentures. The debenture issuance cost, net of accumulated amortization, totaled
$135,000 at December 31, 2005 and is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. Amortization of debt
issuance costs totaled $18,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and are included in other
borrowings interest expense.
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NOTE 11 - JUNIOR SUBORDINATE DEBENTURES, Continued

On December 22, 2005, Greenville First Statutory Trust I1, (a non-consolidated subsidiary) issued $7.0 million
floating rate trust preferred securities with a maturity of December 22, 2035. The rate is adjusted quarterly and was
5.98% at December 31, 2005. In accordance with the revised FIN 46, the Trust has not been consolidated in these
financial statements. The Company received from the Trust the $7.0 million proceeds from the issuance of the securities
and the $217,000 initial proceeds from the capital investment in the Trust, and accordingly has shown the funds due to the
Trust as $7.2 million junior subordinated debentures.

The current regulatory rules allow certain amounts of junior subordinated debentures to be included in the
calculation of regulatory capital.

NOTE 12 - UNUSED LINES OF CREDIT

At December 31, 2005, the Bank had two unused lines of credit to purchase federal funds that totaled $18.1
million. The lines of credit are available on a one to seven day basis for general corporate purposes of the Bank. The
lender has reserved the right to withdraw the line at their option. The Bank has an additional line of credit with the
Federal Home Loan Bank to borrow funds, subject to a pledge of qualified collateral. The Bank has collateral that would
support approximately $20.0 million in additional borrowings.

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has entered into a three year employment agreement with its president and chief executive
officer and a two year employment agreement with each of its three executive vice presidents. These agreements include
a) an incentive program, b) a stock option plan, ¢) a one-year non-compete agreement upon termination and d) a
severance payment equal to one year of compensation. The total estimated aggregate commitment is approximately
$600,000.

The Company has entered into an agreement with a data processor with a remaining term of four years to
provide ATM services, item processing and general ledger processing. Components of this contract include monthly
charges of approximately $23,000.

The Bank may become party to litigation and claims in the normal course of business. As of December 31,
2005, management believes there is no material litigation pending.

The Bank has signed a ten-year, five-month lease on a new site for its headquarters and main office that are to
be relocated in 2006. The lease provides for a substantial reduction in the rent rate for the first five months of the lease in
order to induce the Bank into the agreement. In accordance with SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” the discounted
rent will be amortized over the initial lease term. Beginning in mid-2006, the monthly rent expense will be approximately
$41,000. The lease provides for annual lease rate escalations based on cost of living adjustments.

The Bank also has a land lease on property used for a branch office. Beginning in May of 2005, the monthly
rent was $4,804. The lease provides for annual lease rate escalations based on cost of living adjustments.

Future minimum lease payments under these operating leases are summarized as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2000.. ... $ 363,732
2007 896,088
2008, 939,808
2009... .o 930,876
201000 598,079

Thereafter™ ... 4,383,199
$ 8,111,782

*Amount is estimated based on an increase of 2.49 percent per year. Actual lease will be adjusted annually by
the cost of living index as stated in the Consumer Price Index.
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NOTE 14 - INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were as
follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Current income taxes:
Federal. .. ..o s $ 2356411 § 1383364 § 918,080
AL ettt et e e 199,000 106,000 53,548
Total current tax eXpense. ........o.vvvvviveerininenrenirennanenn 2,555,411 1,489,364 971,628
Deferred income tax benefit and change in
valuation allowance. ... (1,014,480) (255,642) {355,094)
INCOME taX EXPEIISE. .. euverrereite ittt it eraeerarieaenanne $ 1,540,931 § 1,233,722 § 616,534

The following is a summary of the items that caused recorded income taxes to differ from taxes computed
using the statutory tax rate:

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Tax expense at StAtULOTY Tate......couviverieirviiiieceenieieneneen '$ 1,378,728 § 1,103,746 3§ 551,633
Effect of state inCOmMe taxes .......ovvvreiniviiiieniiiiieneininn 131,340 69,960 35,342
Change in valuation allowance...............cocvevvevinieennininnnn - - (16,123)
01 1= S O P . 30,863 60,016 45,632
INCOME taX EXPEINSE. . o\vur ittt eeeerarerreerrenerearenees $ 1,540,931 $§ 1,233,722 § 616,534

The components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for [0an J0SSES. .. ..vivrii i $ 1,383,285 $ 1,104,641
Netdeferred 10an f8es. ..o 232,966 218,060
Real estate impairment Charge...........covvviviiiririiniicie e e 510,000 -
Property and eqQUIPIMENT. . .......euitiii it 8,133 -
Unrealized loss on securities available forsale.................oocvii 77,583 -
OFBET. oottt ROOTTPIRO 24,653 13,858
: 2,236,620 1,336,559
Valuation alloWanCe. ......c.vuee ittt (63,877 (63,877)
2,172,743 1,272,682
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on securities available forsale....................... PEOTTOP $ - $ 25,751
Property and eqUIPmMEnt.........c.ouiuii vttt - 103,939
101117 ST U PO OO PRSPPI 38,031 126,093
38,031 255,783
Net deferred tax @SSEl........viriirt ittt e iee e aeas $ 2,134,712 $ 1,016,899

The net of current taxes payabl: and net deferred tax assets is included in other assets.
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NOTE 15- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain directors, executive officers, and companies with which they are affiliated, are clients of and have
banking transactions with the Bank in the ordinary course of business. These loans were made on substantially the same
terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable arms-length transactions.

A summary of loan transactions with directors, including their affiliates and executive officers is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004
Balance, beginning of year............cocooiiiiiiiiiciiiin e $ 7,513,256 $ 4,983,535
N W OIS it 17,488,496 12,035,257
Less 1oan payments.........coovivinvniiniiiiii e (11,141,916) (9,505,536)
Balance, end of year...........oooiiiiiiiiii $ 13,859,836 § 7,513,256

Deposits by officers and directors and their related interests at December 31, 2005 and 2004, were  $959,939
and $894,149, respectively.

The Bank purchased signage for its two new branch offices during 2005 from the same vendor used in the past
for such signage. During 2005, one of the Bank’s directors became chairman of the board for the respective company.
The Bank paid $16,568 to the company for the year ended December 31, 2005. The Bank is of the opinion that the cost
of signage represents market costs that could have been obtained in similar “arms length” transactions.

One of the Bank’s executive officers is a shareholder of a company which owns a local newspaper. During the
year ended December 31, 2003, the Bank paid $29,376 to the company for advertising expenses. The Bank is of the
opinion that the advertising costs represent market costs that could have been obtained in similar “arms length”
transactions.

In 1999, the Bank entered into a 20 year lease on the Haywood Road office building. Monthly payments on
the lease were $33,343 in 2005. On December 30, 2005, the Company exercised its option to purchase the building for
$3.1 million from Halton Properties LLC, a company owned by director Mark Cothran who is a real estate developer.
The $3.1 million purchase price was based on an agreed upon formula that was included in the original lease agreement.
See Note 6 for further discussion. '

On September 20, 2005, the Bank entered into a ten year lease with various renewal options. The Company
plans to move the corporate office and branch operation, to the new leased space in the third quarter of 2006. Mr.
Cothran, a director of the bank and real estate developer by occupation, assisted the bank in the negotiation of the lease.
The lessor paid Mr. Cothran a leasing agency fee of $164,414, of which $ 82,207 was paid in 2005. The remainder of the
agency fee will be paid to Mr. Cothran at the time the Bank occupies the building.

The Bank also has a land lease with Mr. Cothran on the property for a branch office, with monthly payments
of $4,804. In addition, the Bank had various consulting agreements with a director for development, administration and
advisory services related to the purchase of property and construction of current and future branch office sites. During
2005, the Bank paid the director $40,000 under these agreements.

The Bank is of the opinion that the lease payments and consulting fees represent market costs that could have
been obtained in similar “arms length” transactions.

NOTE 16 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF BALANCE SHEET RISK

In the ordinary course of business, and to meet the financing needs of its customers, the Company is a party to
various financial instruments with off balance sheet risk. These financial instruments, which include commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit, involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of
the amounts recognized in the balance sheets. The contract amount of those instruments reflects the extent of
involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments.
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NOTE 16 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF BALANCE SHEET RISK. Continued

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of
those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it
does for on balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
material condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 2005, unfunded commitments to extend credit were
approximately $70.8 million, of which $27.6 million is at fixed rates and $43.2 million is at variable rates. The Company
evaluates each customer’s credit-worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower.
Collateral varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and commercial and
residential real estate. ‘

At December 31, 2005, there was a $3.8 million commitment ynder letters of credit. The credit risk involved
in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral
varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, marketable securities and property. Since most of the
letters of credit are expected to expire without being drawn upon, they do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The fair value of off balance sheet lending commitments are based on fees currently charged to enter into
similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties credit standing. The
total fair value of such instruments is not material. ‘

NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PI AN

On January 1, 2000, the Comipany adopted the Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. Profit Sharing and 401(k)
Plan for the benefit of all eligible employzes. The Company contributes to the Plan annually upon approval by the Board
of Directors. Contributions made to the Plan in 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounted to approximately $75,000, $57,000 and
$53,000, respectively.

NOTE 18 - STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

On March 21, 2000, the Company adopted a stock option plan for the benefit of the directors, officers and
employees. The Board may grant up to 258,750 options (adjusted for 3 for 2 stock split) at an option price per share not
less than the fair market value on the date of grant. On December 20, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved
accelerating all unvested options granted to officers ‘and employees effective December 28, 2005. The options expire 10
years from the grant date.

A summary of the status of the plan and changes for the years ended December 31, are presented below:

2005 ' 2004 2003
Weighted - Weighted Weighted
average average average
exercise exercise exercise
Shares price Shares price Shares _price
QOutstanding at beginning of year.......... 252,250  $  8.60 227,250  $ 755 186,750  $ 6.75
Granted........coovvviiiiiiii 2,500 21.21 25,000 18.18 40,500 11.23
Exercised................o, 10,725 690 - - - -
Forfeited or expired.......................... - - - - - -
Outstanding at end of year.................. 244,025 § 881 252,250 §  8.60 227,250  $ 7.55
Options exercisable at year-end............ 244,028 165,188 133,000
Shares available for grant................... 4,000 6,500 31,500

Upon completion of the 1999 stock offering, the Company issued warrants to each of its organizers to
purchase up to an additional 194,175 shares (adjusted for 3 for 2 stock split) of common stock at $6.67 per share. These
warrants vested over a three-year period, are currently exercisable, and expire on October 27, 2009. There were 193,175
warrants outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 194,175 warrants outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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NOTE 19 - COMMON STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share” requires that the Company present basic and diluted net earnings per
common share. The assumed conversion of stock options and warrants can create a difference between basic and diluted
net earnings per common share. The weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic earnings in 2005
was 2,656,730, and the weighted average number of common shares assumed outstanding in 2005 for diluted earnings per
common share was 2,930,368. The weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic eamings in 2004
was 1,972,087, and the weighted average number of common shares assumed outstanding in 2004 for diluted earnings per
common share was 2,239,702

NOTE 20 - DIVIDENDS

There are no current plans to initiate payment of cash dividends and future dividend policy will depend on the
Bank’s and the Company’s earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and other factors considered relevant by the
Company’s Board of Directors. The Bank is restricted in its ability to pay dividends under the national banking laws and
regulations of the OCC. Generally, these restrictions require the Bank to pay dividends derived solely from net profits.
Moreover, OCC prior approval is required if dividends declared in any calendar year exceed the Bank’s net profit for that
year combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two years.

NOTE 21 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and the Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company and Bank’s
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the assets, liabilities, and certain off
balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification
are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets,
and of Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management believes, as of December 31, 2005, that the Company and Bank meet
all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
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NOTE 21 - REGULATORY MATTERS. Continued

As of December 31, 2005, the most recent notification of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no
conditions or events, since that notification that ‘management believes have changed the Bank’s category. The
Company’s and Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios and minimum regulatory amounts and ratios are presented as

follows:
To be well capitalized
For capital under prompt corrective
adequacy purposes action provisions
Actual ‘Minimum Minimum
Amount =~ Ratio Amount Ratio Amount - Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
As of December 31, 2005
The Company , Lo ‘
Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 47,610 149% § 25,651 80% § 32,064 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assets) 43,623 13.6 12,826 4.0 19,239 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 43,623 11.6 15,093 4.0 18,866 5.0
The Bank
Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 43,552 13.7% § 25,478 8.0% $ 31,848 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assets) 39,565 124 12,739 4.0 19,109 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 39,565 10.5 15,093 4.0 18,866 5.0
As of December 31, 2004
The Company
Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 37,218 146% & 20,365 80% $ 25456 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assets) 34,029 13.4 10,182 4.0 15,273 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 34,029 11.0 12,381 4.0 15,476 5.0
The Bank
Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 34,832 13.7% $ 20,365 80% $ 25456 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assets) 31,643 12.4 10,182 4.0 15,273 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 31,643 10.2 12,381 4.0 15,476 5.0
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NOTE 22 - SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Following is a summary of operations by quarter:

2005 - Quarters ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
Interest INCOME. .. ....vvieeeierneninrneencnenens $ 4,582,162 $§ 5,228,296 $ 5,669,311 $ 6,189,776
Interest EXPense. . .vvereierinreerncrieiananns 1,901,572 2,306,957 2,564,442 2,811,892
Net interest iNCOME. .......ovrveeremnennens 2,680,590 2,921,339 3,104,869 3,377,884
Provision for loan losses.........ccoevevenvnnns 345,000 265,000 - 225,000 165,000
Noninterest INCOME. .....oovvivvvernrnreerainanns 213,375 217,494 201,851 193,061
Noninterest eXPenses. ... ..cc.uvveeeeerinnnnsns 1,484,211 1,548,577 1,586,042 3,236,550
Income before provision for
INCOME tAXES. ...vivevnrnrreeerinaneeeneanns 1,064,754 1,325,256 1,495,678 169,395
Income tax expense..............cocevveenienin, 404,606 503,598 568,357 64,370
Net iICOME. ..ottt eerieeieiiieees $ 660,148  § 821,658 $ 927,321 $ 105,025
Earnings per share
BaSiC. ittt $ 25 8 31 3 .35 3 04
Diluted.......ooiiniiiiiieieei e $ 23 $ 28 $ .32 $ 04
Weighted average common shares
BasiC...viviriiiiii e 2,647,994 2,659,475 2,659,725 2,659,719
Diluted....ooovvviii e 2,918,272 2,937,315 2,931,363 2,945,497
2004 Quarters ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
INterest INCOME. c.vvvnveerirarereneenireneiennens $ 2967320 $ 3,175,615 $ 3,635,254 $ 4,186,511
Interest Xpense........ooveviiiiiiiiinin i 1,034,335 1,215,170 1,444,123 1,622,929
Net interest iNCOME..........oovvrivineeeenne 1,932,985 1,960,445 2,191,131 2,563,582
Provision for loan losses...........coveeeeiinnnns 350,000 300,000 375,000 285,000
Noninterest iNCOME.......ccoovevrieiririeeereenns. 162,323 200,577 184,421 214,142
Noninterest €XPenses.......o.vvervrieeieriieinies 1,119,582 1,193,514 1,182,770 1,357,429
Income before provision for
income taxes........... TR 625,726 667,508 817,782 1,135,295
Income tax expense............cocoeeeiiiniinnnn. 237,776 253,657 310,876 431,413
NEtINCOMIE. ..ottt iee e reanns $ 387950 § 413,851 $ 506,906 $ 703,882
Earnings per share
BasiC. i $ 22 5 24 $ 28 3 27
Diluted.....oovriiiiieiee e $ 19§ 21 $ 25 $ 24
Weighted average common shares
BasiC..oi v e 1,725,494 1,725,494 1,788,864 2,648,494
Diluted.......ooooviii 2,007,634 1,988,584 2,044,963 2,915,606
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NOTE 23 -FAIR VALUE OF FINANCJAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” requires disclosure of fair value
information, whether or not recognized in the consolidated balance sheets, when it is practical to estimate the fair value.
SFAS No. 107 defines a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity or contractual
obligations which require the exchange cf cash or other financial instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded
from the disclosure requirements, including the Company’s common stock, premises and equipment and other assets and
liabilities.

Fair value approximates carrying value for the following financial instruments due to the short-term nature of
the instrument: cash and due from banks, federal funds sold, federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreement to
repurchase and official checks.

Securities are valued using quoted fair market prices. Fair value for the Company’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments is based on the discounted present value of the estimated future cash flows.

Fair value for variable rate loans and borrowings that reprice frequently and for loans that mature in less than
one year is based on the carrying value. Fair value for fixed rate mortgage loans, personal loans and all other loans
(primarily commercial) maturing after one year is based on the discounted present value of the estimated future cash
flows. Discount rates used in these computations approximate the rates currently offered for similar loans of comparable
terms and credit quality.

Fair value for demand deposit accounts and interest-bearing accounts with no fixed maturity date is equal to
the carrying value. Certificate of deposit accounts and FHLB advances with a maturity within one year are valued at their
carrying value. The fair value of certificate of deposit accounts and FHLB advances with a maturity after one year are
estimated by discounting cash flows from expected maturities using current interest rates on similar instruments.

The Company has used management’s best estimate of fair value based on the above assumptions. Thus, the
fair values presented may not be the amounts that could be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of the instrument.
In addition, any income taxes or other e:penses, which would be incurred in an actual sale or settlement, are not taken
into consideration in the fair value presented.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as

follows:
2005 2004
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and due frombanks..............ooeiiiiiiiinnns. $ 6223397 $§ 6223397 % 3943877 § 3,943,877
Federal fundssold.............oooiiiiii i 19,380,755 19,380,755 1,394,459 1,394,459
Investment securities available for sale................... 11,310,956 11,310,956 12,159,674 12,159,674
Investment securities held to maturity.................... 19,345,016 18,709,112 13,138,697 13,088,613
Other INVEStMENTS. ..o\ vviiei e 5,475,400 5,475,400 3,863,850 3,863,850
LOoans, et . .vit it 334,040,776 330,057,600 276,630,484 278,400,000
Financial Liabilities:
DePOSIES. ettt e 254,148,041 246,595,200 204,864,142 205,000,000
Official checks outstanding.....................coeein 7,786,468 7,786,468 1,384,480 1,384,480
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements. .. 14,680,000 14,680,000 13,099,999 13,099,999
Federal Home Loan Bank advances....................... 79,500,000 78,463,500 60,660,000 60,916,000
Junior subordinate debentures.......................co.ene 13,403,000 13,403,000 6,186,000 6,186,000
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NOTE 24 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following is condensed financial information of Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. (parent company only):

Condensed Balance Sheets
December 31,

2005 2004
Assets :
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS. ..ot ivitiiirt e $ 4,938,484 $ 2,249,411
Investment in SUbSIAIAIIES . ..ottt e e e 39,816,507 31,878,987
Property and eqUIPIMEnt...........oviiiiiit it 2,030,384 -
101315 g < O PRV P RPN 135,000 153,000
B ) BT PP $ 46,920,375 $ 34,281,398
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity .
Accounts payable and accrued Xpenses........cvoviiiiiiiin i $ 3,044,628 § 16,810
Junior subordinate debentures. . .. .. i e 13,403,000 6,186,000
Shareholders’ eqUity........cooviiiiii 30,472,747 28,078,588
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity............ccociiiii . $ 46,920,375 $ 34,281,398

Condensed Statements of Income

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Revenues
IEr et INCOMIE. ... v ettt et e e et et eens $ 17,393  § 5,150 § 1,196
Expenses
INtETESt EXPEIISE. . euv ettt ettt e e e et et et e 419,362 338,801 183,666
D PTECIAtION. L.\t e it ettt e e e e 4,988 - -
Impairment of long lived assets..........covviiiiiiiiiiiii 1,500,000 - -
Loss before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries............. (1,906,957) (333,651) (182,470)
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries........................... 4,421,109 2,346,240 1,188,385

NELINCOMIC. .ottt ettt ettt et ettt e eeeaees $ 2,514,152 $ 2,012,589 § 1,005,915
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NOTE 24 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION, Continued

(Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

Operating activities
DA A 111+ o o ¢ 1T U PR - $ 2,514,152 % 2,012,589 § 1,005915
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities

Equity in undistributed net income o subsidiaries................... ‘ (4,421,109) (2,346,240) (1,188,385)
Depreciation. .......vuenieii i 4,988 - -
Impairment of long lived assets........c.cccocoeviiiiiinniineenn, 1,500,000 - -
Decrease in Other @sSetS......ovivirii it erteieriereneiereeeenens 18,000 18,000 (171,000)
Increase in accounts payable and acciued expenses.................. 3,027,818 2,091 13,350
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities........... ; 2,643,849 (313,560) (340,120)

Investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment...............cccocoiiiiiiiin (3,535,374) - -
Investment in SUbSIAIATIES. ....vvtivet et (3,717,000) (12,500,000} (3,386,000)
Net cash used for investing activities...................coevevnn. (7,252,374)  (12,500,000) (3,386,000)

Financing activities

Proceeds from note payable...............cc - 3,000,000 500,000
Repayment of note payable.............coooiiiiiii - (3,000,000) (3,000,000)
Proceeds from junior subordinate debentures.............................. 7,217,000 - 6,186,000
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net......................o.oo - 14,906,029 -
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options and warrants............... 80,598 20,010 -
Net cash provided by financing activities....................... 7,297,598 14,926,039 3,686,000
Net increase (decrease) in cash ind cash equivalents......... 2,689,073 2,112,479 (40,120)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year..................... 2,249,411 136,932 177,052

Cash and cash equivalents, end of vear..........c..cvvvriiniennnens A 4,938484 $ 2,249.411 $ 136,932




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. and
Subsidiary as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity
and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the

results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

W LLl

Greenville, South Carolina
February 17, 2006
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Contrels and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with
the participation of our management, iacluding our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e). Based upon that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our current disclosure controls
and procedures are effective as of December 31, 2005. There have been no significant changes in our internal controls
over financial reporting during the fourtt fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2005 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

The design of any system of controls and procedures is based in part upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events. There can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all
potential future conditions, regardless of how remote.

Item 9B. Other Information

There was no information required to be disclosed by the company in a report on Form 8-K during the fourth
quarter of 2005 that was not so disclosed.

PART II1

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

In response to this Item, this information is contained in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on May 17, 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation,

In response to this Item, this information is contained in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on May 17, 200¢ and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

In response to this Item, the information required by Item 201(d) is contained in Item 5 of this report. The other
information required by this item is con:ained in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held
on May 17, 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information is contained it our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May
17, 2006 is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

In response to this Item, this information is contained in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on May 17, 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a)(1) Financial Statements
The following consolidated financial statements are located in Item 8 of this report.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements , '

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

These schedules have been omitted because they are not required, are not applicable or have been included in
our consolidated financial statements.

(3)  Exhibits

The following exhibits are required to be filed with this Report on Form 10-K by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

3.1. Articles of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registration
Statement on Form SB-2, File No. 333-83851).

3.2. Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registration Statement on Form SB-2, File No.
333-83851).

4.1. See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions in Greenville First Bancshares's Articles of Incorporation and

Bylaws defining the rights of holders of the common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
the Registration Statement on Form SB-2, File No. 333-83851).

4.2. Form of certificate of common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registration
Statement on Form SB-2, File No. 333-83851).

10.1. Employment Agreement dated July 27, 1999 between Greenville First Bancshares and Art Seaver
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registration Statement on Form SB-2, File No. 333-
83851).*

10.2. Lease Agreement incorporated by reference between Greenville First Bank and Halton Properties, LLC,

formerly Cothran Properties, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Form 10-K filed on
March 28, 2000).

10.3 Data Processing Services Agreement dated June 28, 1999 between Greenville First Bancshares and the
Intercept Group (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registration Statement on Form SB-2,
File No. 333-83851).

10.4 Form of Stock Warrant Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registration
Statement on Form SB-2, File No. 333-83851).*

10.5 2000 Greenville First Bancshares, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan and Form of Option Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the period ended March
31, 2000).*

10.6 Employment Agreement dated April I, 2004 between Greenville First Bank, N.A., Greenville First

Bancshares, Inc., and James M. Austin, I1I (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Form 10-QSB for the pertod ended June 30, 2004).*

10.7 Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Greenville First Bank, N.A. and Frederick
Gilmer, III (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the period
ended June 30, 2004).*

10.8 Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Greenville First Bank, N.A. and J. Edward Terrell
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the period ended June
30, 2004).*

10.9 Consulting Services Agreement between Greenville First Bank, N.A. and Cothran Properties, LLC

dated January 12, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for
the period ended June 30, 2004).
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10.10 Consulting Services Agrecement between Greenville First Bank, N.A. and Cothran Properties, LLC
dated June 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the
period ended June 30, 2004).

10.11 Sublease Agreement between Greenville First Bank, N.A. and Augusta Road Holdings, LLC dated
February 26, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 10-QSB for the
period ended June 30, 2004).

10.12 Bonaventure I Office Lease Agreement with Greenville First Bank, N.A., dated September 20, 2005
(incorporated by refererce to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2005).

10.13 First Amendment to Office Lease Agreement with Greenville First Bank, N.A., dated September 20,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2005).

2] Subsidiaries.

24 Power of Attorney (contained herein as part of the signature pages).
311 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer.

32 Section 1350 Certificaticns.

*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an Exhibit to this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), the
registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GREENVILLE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

Date: March 21, 2006 By: /s/ R. Arthur Seaver. Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints R. Arthur Seaver, Jr., his truz and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto attorney-in-fact and agent full power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises, as
fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that attorney-in-fact
and agent, or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
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Signature Title Date

/s/ James M. Austin

James M. Austin, II] Chief Financial Officer, March 21, 2006
Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer

/s/ Andrew B. Cajka, Jr,
Andrew B. Cajka, Jr. Director March 21, 2006

/s/ Mark A. Cothran
Mark A. Cothran Director March 21, 2006

Leighton M. Cubbage Director March 21, 2006

/s/ David G. Ellison
David G. Ellison Director March 21, 2006

/s/ Anne S. Ellefson
Anne S. Ellefson Director March 21, 2006

/s/Tecumseh Hooper, Jr.
Tecumseh Hooper, Jr. Director March 21, 2006

Rudolph G. Johnstone, III, M.D. Director March 21, 2006

/s/ James B. Orders
James B. Orders, IIT Director, Chairman March 21, 2006

William B. Sturgis Director March 21, 2006

/s/ R. Arthur Seaver

R. Arthur Seaver, Jr. Director, Chief Executive March 21, 2006
Officer and President
(principal executive officer)

/s/ Fred Gilmer, Jr.
Fred Gilmer, Jr. Director, Senior Vice- March 21, 2006
President
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